
Requests from persons with disabilities who need assistance to participate in this meeting or hearing should be made to Clerk’s Office at (715) 
223-3444

City of Abbotsford 
  PO Box 589, 203 N. First Street, Abbotsford, WI  54405 

 City Hall (715) 223-3444 Fax (715) 223-8891  

AGENDA FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING TO BE HELD 

August 5, 2019 AT 6:00 PM
IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS OF THE ABBOTSFORD CITY HALL 

203 NORTH FIRST STREET, ABBOTSFORD WI  
All items listed will be brought before the Abbotsford City Council for discussion and 
possible approval.   

1. Call the regular meeting to order
a. Roll call
b. Pledge of Allegiance

2. Establish Order of the Day
3. Communications:

a. Update on Copper Testing
b. Minutes from Employee Handbook Committee Meeting Minutes June 10, 2019
c. Minutes from Employee Handbook Committee Meeting Minutes June 24, 2019
d. Minutes United Mayors of Clark County Meeting July 22, 2019

4. Comments by the Mayor
5. Administrator’s Update
6. Comments by the Public Pertaining to the Agenda
7. Minutes from the Council held July 1, 2019

a. Waive the reading and approve the minutes
8. Municipal Court Update
9. Library Update
10. Fire Department Update
11. Comments by the Police Chief

a. Approval/Disapproval of Abby-Colby Police Department Bills
12. Ordinance 2019-5 – Updating Ordinances Regarding the Abbotsford-Colby Police Department
13. Ordinance 2019-7 – Install 4-way Stop Signs on W. Spruce Street and N. 4th Avenue
14. General Obligation Bonds and TIF Update
15. Public Works Items:

a. MSA Update
b. Certified Survey Map for Webb Property/Industrial Park Road
c. Safe Roads to School and Spruce Street Resurfacing
d. Final Pay Application for Cedar and 2nd Street – Haas Construction
e. $0 Balance Change Order for Cedar and 2nd Street – Project Completion
f. Pay Application for Swampbuck Drive and Change Order
g. Disaster Declaration for July 19 & 20. 2019 Storms
h. Discussion:  Flood prone areas of the City
i. Discussion: Naming New Subdivision and Park (and possibly soccer field)
j. Discussion: Naming “Industrial Park Drive” by the Webb Property

1



Requests from persons with disabilities who need assistance to participate in this meeting or hearing should be made to Clerk’s Office at (715) 
223-3444

16. Discharge Permit Reissuance Notification and Proposed Rules for Eau Pleine Water Treatment Plant
17. Water Utility Quotes
18. Request by the DNR to Conduct Testing for PFAS

a. Wisconsin State Journal Article Regarding DNR Request to Test for PFAS
b. Information From Wisconsin Rural Water Association Regarding PFAS Testing

19. Financials for June 2019
20. Discussion: Proposed New Solid Waste Collection Agreement
21. Technology Update
22. Bonding for City Employees Update
23. Resolution 2019-5 - Requiring two signatures on all checking and savings accounts
24. Resolution 2019-6 – Creating a Separate Savings Account for the Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund
25. Approve/Disapprove Operator Licenses
26. Approve/Disapprove Retail Beer License – New Owners of Holiday
27. Items for Future Agendas – No Action Will Be Taken
28. Next Scheduled Meeting Dates:  City Council – September 2, 2019, Committee of the Whole –

August 21, 2019.  Note:  September 2, 2019 is Labor Day
29. Adjournment

2



City of Abbotsford WWTF Copper Results

Sample Influent Effluent Effluent
Date (ug/L) (ug/L) (ug/L) (old sampling method)

05/28/18 125  22 (06/04/2018)
07/09/18 144  13
08/06/18 79  36

06/17/19 82 13
06/18/19 93 13
06/19/19 96 13

06/24/19 69 13
06/25/19 67 13
06/26/19 80 11

07/01/19 63 9
07/03/19 49 9
07/04/19 61 9

07/08/19 43 12
07/09/19 53 13
07/10/19 73 13

07/15/19 n.a. 13 30

07/22/19 45 12 27  

3



Minutes from the June 10, 2019 Abbotsford Employee Handbook 
Committee held in the Abbotsford City Hall Small Conference Room. 
Mr. Anders called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 

Roll Call: Mayor Voss, Alder Huther, Administrator Grady, Gerry Anders, Sue Sossaman, Marsha 
Hochholter, and Interim Water/Wastewater Supervisor Josh Soyk 

Others present: Public Works Director Stuttgen, Deputy Clerk Luedtke (part of meeting) Kevin 
O’Brien (Tribune Phonograph,  

The committee questioned Deputy Clerk Luedtke regarding how Civics breakdowns employee 
hours and how it applies hours to different department.  Deputy Clerk Luedtke explained that 
Civics will apply hours and benefits automatically.  Civics will award vacation automatically on 
an employee’s anniversary date, can go down to the ¼ hour, apply labor to different 
departments and budget lines, and let the user define the data anyway that the City would like. 

In Workhorse, everything has to be hand entered; nothing is automatic.  In addition, Workhorse 
is very limited in how data can be defined. 

The committee discussed whether the city should move to a PTO plan or PTO plan plus vacation 
or some other variation.  It was generally felt that PTO should be accrued and the time built up 
capped.  The goal is to limit any unfunded liability that the city may have.  It was agreed that 
current employees would be grandfathered and stay in the current system while new 
employees would be part of the new system. 

The committee discussed sick leave and whether to drop the current limit of 460 to 230 hours 
to help alleviate any long term liability for the city.  The concern from an employee perspective 
is that it would limit an employee’s options if they were injured on the job.  The committee 
then discussed short-term disability and long-term disability plans.  

The Committee then discussed instituting a flex spending plan which would be a voluntary pre-
tax payroll deduction for employees to use to fund health care related expenses.  The 
committee also discussed instituting a HSA or HRA program.   

The committee also looked at health insurance.  Currently, employees that do not accept health 
insurance offered by the city ae eligible for an additional payment in the amount of $4200.00.  
The thought behind the payment is that it costs the city less to pay the employee an additional 
$4,200.00 than if the employee opted to go on the City’s health insurance. 

Administrator Grady reported that the City is currently in a tough spot with health insurance.  
Because the City’s pool is so small it is hard to find insurers that will provide policies and, when 
they do, the price is not always the best. 

4



The committee decided to make no recommendations regarding compensation and meet again 
on June 24, 2019 at 2:00 P.M. 

The committee adjourned at 3:49.P.M. 

5



Minutes from the June 24, 2019 Abbotsford Employee Handbook 
Committee held in the Abbotsford City Hall Small Conference Room. 
Mr. Anders called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. 

Roll Call: Mayor Voss, Alder Huther, Administrator Grady, Gerry Anders, Marsha Hochholter, 
and Public Works Director Stuttgen (for Interim Water/Wastewater Supervisor Josh Soyk) 

Others present: Renee Hinderson  

The committee decided to replace all references of “probationary period” to “training period.” 

The committee spoke about section 4 – compensation.  It was suggested that the city set up a 
vacation signup sheet so that employees can claim a weekend.  Public Works Director Stuttgen 
stated that they already do something similar.  The employees are allowed to sign up for a 
period, but cannot take that same period the next year without allowing the other employees 
to have a chance at that weekend first. 

The committee discussed whether accrue vacation instead of awarding the whole amount on 
an employee’s anniversary date.  The committee decided to accrue starting from the first day of 
employment, but employees cannot take vacation during their training period.  Accrued 
vacation amount will be expressed on the bi-weekly payroll. 

The committee discussed the length of an employee training period.  It is currently ~180 days.  
Many felt that this was too long a time period and that the City should know if an employee is 
going to work out before that time.  The committee settled on a 90 day training period with the 
direct manager or the City Administrator able to extend the period if necessary.  If the training 
period is extended the City should provide the employee with an action plan to help improve 
any performance issues. 

The committee discussed changing the cap on sick time from the current 480 hours to 240 
hours.  The major concern expressed was that changing the cap would prevent employees from 
taking off the needed time in case of injury.  Administrator Grady stated that he was getting a 
quote on long term disability plans that would help solve this situation.  The committee decided 
to change the sick day cap to 240 hours and allow those who already earned more hours to 
keep those hours.  Questions that still remain.  Can a certain number of sick days be cashed 
out?  Can sick days be transferred to deferred compensation for retirement? 

The committee discussed personal days.  The committee decided to reduce the amount of 
personal days from 6 days to 3 days then make the following City holidays: Christmas Eve, the 
day after Thanksgiving, and one floating holiday. 

The committee discussed total number of vacation days and decided to cap the number of 
possible vacation days at 20 days.  The committee also decided that vacation time and personal 
days are use it or lose it unless otherwise approved due to unusual circumstances. 

6



Administrator Grady went over a few health care options that may save the City money and 
provide a better benefit to employees.  These discussions are in the early stages. 

The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday July 9, 2019 at 1:00 P.M. 

The committee adjourned at 3:41PM. 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



Minutes from the July 1, 2019 Abbotsford City Council Meeting held in 
the Abbotsford City Hall Council Chambers. 
Mayor Voss called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

Roll Call: Mayor Voss, Mason Rachu, Jim Weix, Jeremy Totzke, Frankie Soto, Brent Faber, Roger 
Weideman and, Dennis Kramer.  (Lori Huther – Late – arrive at 6:27PM) 

Others present: Administrator Grady, Public Works Director Stuttgen,  Deputy Clerk Luedtke, 
Police Chief Bauer, Municipal Court Clerk Weich, Library Director Jochimsen, Mike Johnson, 
Jennifer Kimpke, Ann Teske, Dr. Paul Writz, Nina Writz, Max Morines, Jeff Stewart (DOT) Dan 
Borchardt (MSA Professional Services), and Kevin O’Brien (Tribune Phonograph) 

Pledge of Allegiance: Held 

Establish Order of the Day – No Changes 

Comments from the Mayor – Mayor Voss commented on the need for new stop signs in the 
City to force drivers to slow down.  On too many roads, it has become unsafe for pedestrians 
because of the unsafe speeds. 

Comments from the Administrator –   The City recently submitted its required action plan for 
copper at the wastewater plant to the DNR.  Highlight of the plan include:   

Plans for a higher copper limit 

- The feasibility of increasing the hardness of the water at the wastewater treatment 
plant by adding sodium bicarbonate thereby increasing the pH of the effluent water. 
This may help in further precipitation of copper in the water at the wastewater 
treatment plant. 

- Establish whether Elm Brook stream is non-zero which would lead to higher copper 
limits.  This would require constructing a 400ft pipe from the wastewater treatment 
plant to the steam.  Essentially, what we are arguing is that since the DNR based their 
limits on the stream existing solely because of our wastewater treatment plant’s 
effluent water that the values should be revisited because Abbyland land has a 
continuous effluent flow from their wastewater plant.  Our effluent would mix with 
theirs diluting the concentration of whatever the City’s waste water treatment plant 
puts out. 

- Continue to pursue a copper variance. 
 
Plans for copper removal. 

- pH adjustment at the wastewater treatment facility 
- Chemical additions at the wastewater treatment facility.  This is the jar test that Josh 

explained at the last meeting 

14



- Looking at industrial source reduction.  Are one of the local businesses contributing to 
our copper levels although it does not seem that is the situation.   

- Water corrosion optimization or adding chemicals to the drinking water - either caustic 
or phosphates.  Again, this is our least desirable option.  It is expensive and may not 
work leaving the city at square 1. 

Public Comments Pertaining to the Agenda – Dr. Writz spoke in favor of Ordinance 2019-6.  
Nina Writz spoke in favor of Ordinance 2019-6.  Max Morines spoke in favor of Ordinance 2019-
6. 

Minutes from the Council held June 3, 2019 – Motion to approve by Weix/Kramer.  Unanimous 
 
Minutes from the Council held June 19, 2019 - Motion to approve by Faber/Weix.  Unanimous 
 
Minutes from Employee Handbook Committee Meeting Minutes June 10, 2019 - Tabled until 
next meeting. 
 

Municipal Court Update – Municipal Court Clerk Weich presented the May financials for the 
Municipal Court.  She was asked how many people were paying on time.  Municipal Court Clerk 
Weich responded the on-time payment rate was about 50% and that it is comparable to what 
other municipal courts see.  In addition, the total uncollected is similar to what other municipal 
courts see.  The use of the TRIP program seems to helping out with collections. 
 
Comments by the Police Chief/Police Department Bills and Minutes – Chief Bauer is meeting 
with the Marathon County District Attorney and should have an answer regarding the officer 
involved in discharging a weapon recently.  Harland Schraufnagel recently donated $32,000 to 
the Abby/Colby Police Department to purchase new squad and body cameras.   
 
Chief Bauer also said that the police department has been patrolling Pine Street more because 
of speeding complaints.  Chief Bauer was asked if there should be 2 intersections with stop 
signs on Pine Street.  Chief Bauer preferred to wait and see how it worked out with adding the 
stop signs on West Pine Street and North 4th Avenue first. 
 
Motion to approve the Police Department minutes and bills by Weideman/Rachu. Unanimous. 
 
Ordinance 2019-6 – Install Stop Signs on West Pine Street at the Corner of N. 4th Ave – Chief 
Bauer stated that there has been a lot of complaints regarding excessive speeding on Pine 
Street.  Alder Weix stated that he sees a lot of heavy traffic on Pine Street and is strongly in 
favor of adding stop signs.  It was noted that the dump trucks seen on Pine Street were not 
coming from the Schilling Addition as construction there had not yet started. 
 

15



Chief Bauer was asked if the stop signs were going to push traffic on to other streets.  Chief 
Bauer did not believe that it would. 
 
Motion to approve Resolution 2019-6 by Rachu/Weix.  Unanimous. 
 
Fire Department Update – Alder Weideman gave an overview of the Fire Department meeting. 
 
Library Update – Library Director Jochimsen gave an update of the library.  The summer 
reading program is in full swing.  The events are becoming very popular.  Today’s event was 
attended by 50 children, the UFO event was attended by 20 adults, and the “Read to a Dog” is 
so popular that the library is having problems giving all of the kids an opportunity. 
 
Highway Repair Agreement with DOT – Jeff Stewart from the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation stated that the DoT has scheduled some work on the Highway 29 and 13 ramps 
in 2020 that would necessitate closing the ramps for several weeks.   
 
The DoT was seeking an agreement with the City to allow highway 29 traffic to be routed down 
Spruce Street.  The detour agreement would require the state to assess the road condition and 
pay for any repairs to Spruce Street that occurred as a result of the detour of highway 29 traffic. 
 
The City could expect to see 2000 more vehicles the 1st week, 1000 more the 2nd week, and 
1000 more the 3rd week of the detour.  Not approving the detour would mean that the DoT 
would have to find an alternate route and that the City would be responsible for any road 
damage that might occur as a result of motorists ignoring the alternate detour. 
 
Administrator Grady expressed concern that much of the damage to the road may not be seen 
until following spring after the freeze/thaw cycle.  Mr. Stewart stated that the DoT could not 
take responsibility for possible damage the next spring because there was no way to determine 
if the proposed detour caused any new damage. 
 
Public Works Director Stuttgen stated that the City was going to resurface Spruce Street in 2020 
as part of the Safe Roads to School program; maybe the City and the DoT could coordinate 
timing.  Mr. Stewart did not know about the federally funded program occurring on Spruce 
Street.   
 
The City Council expressed reservations about all of the additional traffic on the Spruce Street 
and agreed to see if the DoT could modify their schedule or the Safe Roads to School program 
schedule could be modified.  The City Council agreed to table the issue until the next meeting. 
 
Payment Application #1 for Steen Construction (Industrial Park Road) – Administrator Grady 
stated that the initial invoice was being rejected because it contained some work that Steen 

16



had not yet performed.  MSA provided a revised invoice that covers all of the work completed 
to the date of the payment app.  It was noted that the rejected dollar amount will likely show 
up on the next invoice.  Motion by Faber/Weix to pay the new MSA version of the invoice in the 
amount of $72,863.10.  Unanimous. 
 
Final Payment Application for CBS2 – Sycamore Street Project – This payment application is to 
pay the contractor.  All of their work is completed.  Any other work in the area that needs to be 
completed is the responsibility of the gas company.  Motion approve payment of $46,886.40 by 
Faber/Kramer. Unanimous 
 
Discussion/Approve/Disapprove updating City Fees schedule – Administrator Grady explained 
that the city currently only charges the bank fees for any NSF submitted for deposit.  The City 
does not recoup any fees associated with labor needed by City staff to handle a NSF check.   
Motion by Rachu/Huther to charge $25 plus any bank per NSF occurrence.  Unanimous. 
 
Administrator Grady stated that currently the City does not charge a notary fee.  Most 
municipalities charge a modest fee for notary service.  Motion Faber/Soto to create a $5 notary 
fee.  Unanimous. 
 
May 2019 Financials – Administrator Grady presented the May 2019 Financials. 
 
Operators Licenses – Administrator Grady stated that Police Department had no issues with 
any of the operator’s licenses.  Motion by Faber/Rachu to approve all licenses.  Unanimous. 
 
Discussion On Naming and Marketing New Subdivision and Park - Administrator Grady stated 
that for marketing purposes the City should come with a name for the new development and 
asked City Council members to think of something that was appropriate.  Kevin O’Brien agreed 
to put question in the Tribune Phonograph for residents to provide their input. 
 
The new city park also needs a name.  Does the City want to name it for a local resident?  A 
resident from history?  A name important to the City?  The new park and the soccer field can 
have two different names so the city can honor 2 different people. 
 
Communications – None 
 
Future Agenda Items – No Action will be Taken – update on bonding for city employees, 
payroll for city council members, technology update, and stop sign on W. Spruce St & N 4th Ave 
 
Next Meeting: Committee of the Whole July 17, 2019; City Council August 5, 2019 
 
Adjournment – Motion to adjourn by Weix/Rachu.  The City Council adjourned at 7:39PM 

17



 

18



19



LIBRARY
EXPECTATIONS

A B B O T S F O R D  P U B L I C

 BE SAFE

Keep hands and feet to yourself .
No running - walking feet.  

 
BE RESPECTFUL

Use appropriate language.
Use appropriate voice volume.
Respect other patrons and staff .  
No food or dr ink in the l ibrary.
Do not move l ibrary furnishings and
use furnishings respectfuly.

INSPIRE

Lead by example.
Keep the l ibrary clean- pick up things
even if  they are not yours.
Report unusual behavior to the l ibrarian.

Thank You!20



Abbotsford Public Library 
REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING: Meeting called to order July 15th 2019 / 5:00 PM / Conference Room 
ATTENDEES 
 Braun, Jochimsen, Giffin, Suttner, Bittner, Hinrichsen 
 Members absent: Writz, Dukelow 
AGENDA 
Previous minutes:  Read and approved. Motion to approve by Suttner, seconded by Bittner, motion passes.  
Public Comment: Mason Rachu present.  
Old Business  

• August Performer, “Dreamer Boy”, Aug. 9th at 6:00pm before movie night. John Mitchell was at the library January 
2018 for the Cheeseheads the Documentary. Cost would be $175. Presentation would be before movie night. Giffin 
moved to have performer using M. B. donation, Suttner seconded. Motion passes.  

• Staff computers to replace this year. They are over 10 years old, possible older than 12 years old. The Director’s 
computer had a hard drive crass in 2018 due to age, was repaired without loss of data, but the risk is there that it 
will happen again. Director will get quotes from WVLS.  

• Closed Saturday of Festival: three people commented that they tried to return to the outside drop but were 
understanding to the closer, no complaints about being closed on Friday. Like last year, the library was fenced off 
starting the Thursday night before the festival.  The library book drops were closed during the festival and the library 
back dated all materials returned the three work days following the festival to avoid fines on items that could have 
been due Saturday or Friday. The library will be closed the Saturday of the festival in 2020.  

• Afternoon book club discontinued. This book club was down to 4 members. Unfortunately, a member just passed.  
The other members have decided to discontinue with the book club at this time.  

• Trustees Training Week is set for August 12-16. Webinars will occur each day that week at 12 p.m., and they will be 
recorded and archived.  

New Business 
• Apology Letters from the two boys who make threats have been received. Both boys have shown good behavior 

since returning to the library.  
• Hosting a UW-Madison speaker for the Wisconsin Science Festival (WSF). The Festival will take place October 17 in 

the morning.  There is no charge for this service. Our speaker will be talking about internet privacy.  
• Memorial given in memory of Audrey Juedes. The director has selected an assortment of picture books and adult 

books. A memory plate will be placed in each of the books. There would still be money left to purchase a Display 
Stand for magazines. The library’s magazine are in the back corner and a stand featuring face-out display will 
increase magazine circulation.  

• Sign Thank You Letter for Mary. B.  
• City Hand Book: when handbook is finished the library board will read through to determine if the library 

observance of items like holidays can match city halls.  
Treasurer’s Report: 44% 
 -Director will ask about phone bill increase from 2018 to 2019 and get estimate for 2020 budget.  
Circulation Report: 
 -Total Circulation:     

o  June, 2,783       Last month: 2664 
o June 2018: 2,942   June 2017: 3,232   June 2016: 2354    June 2015: 2591  June 2014: 2673   

 -Circulation Break-down:   
 Books: 1403, DVD: 557, Spoken Record: 68, Music Large Print: 14, Magazines: 40,    Other:  44 
Other Usage Report:  

• Wireless Sessions:  June: 186   May: 188   April: 299   March: 146   Feb. 32   Jan. 313     
• Overdrive E-material Checkout: June: 188   May: 166   April: 210   March: 203   Feb. 195    Jan. 188    
• Monthly Reference: 

This Month: 73 
•  Patron Count: 

June 2019: 1086   June 2018: 1019    June 2017: 1543   June 2016: 1417 
    

21



Policy Review: Key Behavior Points (attached) - a flyer to be on display and handed to youth as a 
reminder/summary of the library’s standard of behavior.  By Laws postponed.  
WVLS report:  
Director Report    

• Last Month Program Count:  
 Monthly Program total: 16 programs, 366 attendance   

• Future Programs: See handout.  
• Summer Reading update 

-Last day for youth is July 22nd at 1:00pm, Musician Troy Graham to perform.  
• Clark County Funding: Clary County Board library representative Bryce Luchterhand will try for 78% 

county founding, past funding has been at 70% or 73%.  
Staffing/Operating Issues  
  Report on misbehaving youth: two youths asked to leave on two different occasions.  There is a group of 13 

years whose behavior is borderline, will be given the library expectations flyer and a discussion of what the 
library expectations of behavior is.   

Next meeting: to be determined by email survey 
Adjourn: Meeting adjourned at 5:46 pm motion by Giffin, seconded by Bittner, motioned passed.  
 
    

 
 

2438 2591
2354

3232
2942

2783

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Circulation Report:  of June 2014-2019 

Series 1

22



 

Purple=teen White = youth Blue=adult kids teens adults
Other Reading Drop In

6/10/2019 1 Plant a Pizza Garden 50 39 2 9
6/14/2019 1 Summer School Visit 32 28 4
7/12/2019 1 Read to Rover 17 13 4
7/12/2019 1 UFOs of Wisconsin 27 27
7/14/2019 1 Book Club Pizza at the Farm 7 7
7/14/2019 1 Family Movie Night: how to train your dra 28 15 13
7/14/2019 1 Teen Movie Night: Captain Marvel 8 5 3
6/17/2019 1 Summer Reading with Nancy 32 27 5
6/19/2019 1 Read to Rover 7 5 2
6/19/2019 1 Middle School Book Club 7 5 2
6/20/2019 1 Adult Craft Night 21 2 1 18
6/21/2019 1 Summer School Visit 32 28 4
6/24/2019 1 Summer Reading with Nancy 32 26 6
6/26/2019 1 Read To Rover 19 15 4
6/26/2019 1 Bead Necklaces 15 12 3
6/28/2019 1 Summer School Visit 32 25 2 5

Monthly Program Total: 16 366

June Program Type

23



Central Fire & EMS District Meeting Minutes 
July 18, 2019 – 7:00 p.m. 

Station 3 - Dorchester Fire Hall 
 
Call to order: 
The July 18, 2019 meeting of the Central Fire & EMS District was called to order by Vice President Pat 
Tischendorf at 7:06 p.m. 
 
Meeting posted per statute 
 
Roll Call: 
City of Abbotsford, Jeremy Totzke; City of Colby, Nancy O'Brien; Town of Colby, absent; Town of Holton, 
Pat Tischendorf; Town of Hull, Shane Graffunder; Township of Mayville, Dennis Engel; Village of 
Dorchester, absent. 
 
Meeting minutes from June 20, 2019: 
A motion was made by Nancy O’Brien, second by Shane Graffunder to dispense with the reading of the 
June 20, 2019 meeting minutes.  Motion carried. 
 
Nancy O'Brien, District Treasurer's report: 
Nancy O'Brien presented the Treasurer's report (see attached).  A motion was made by Shane 
Graffunder, second by Dennis Engel to approve the Treasurer’s report as presented.  Motion carried. 
 
Bills for payment:    
Discussion was held on the bills for payment totaling $11,797.37 (see attached); a motion was made by 
Shane Graffunder, second by Dennis Engel to pay the bills totaling $11,797.37.  Motion carried.   
 
Public discussion: 
Travis Nixdorf stated that the new ambulance is here and will hopefully be placed in service within the 
next two weeks. 
 
DNR Grant: 
Chief Mueller requested permission to apply for the DNR grant for 2019 to purchase additional radios, 
pagers and boots.  The grant will be applied for in the amount of $10,000 with the District responsible for 
50% of the grant.  A motion was made by Shane Graffunder, second by Nancy O’Brien to approve a 
50/50 grant with the DNR.  Motion carried. 
 
Resolution for fire charges amendment; hourly charge for truck, rate increase: 
Discussion was held on the fire charges currently in place for the District, more specifically the rate 
charged for motor vehicle accidents and the firefighter per hour rate charged.  A motion was made by 
Shane Graffunder, second by Dennis Engel to table this discussion until the August meeting to gather 
more information.  Motion carried. 
 
Ambulance cot adaptor kit: 
A cot adaptor kit is needed for the new ambulance equipped with the power lift system.  A motion was 
made by Dennis Engel, second by Shane Graffunder to approve this purchase in the amount of 
$2,800.00.  Motion carried.  
 
Chief’s Report: 
Chief Mueller presented his monthly chief’s report (see attached). 
 
Next meeting date: 
The next regular monthly meeting of the Central Fire & EMS District was scheduled for August 15, 2019 
at Station 1 – Colby Fire Hall beginning at 7:00 p.m. 
 

24



There being no further business, a motion was made by Nancy O’Brien, second by Shane Graffunder to 
adjourn at 7:50 p.m.  Motion carried. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Carol Staab, Secretary 

25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



2019-5

62



63



64



65



66



67



ORDINANCE NO:  2019-7 
Amending Section 10-1-13(b) 

Stop Signs Enumerated  

1 The Abbotsford/Colby Police Department has received numerous complaints of 
2 Excessive Speeding on West Spruce Street.  Increased traffic and excessive speeding 
3 Has created public safety concerns for residents and children walking to and from 
4 School.  The Abbotsford/Colby Police Department does not have adequate 
5 Manpower to enforce the speed limit.  As such, the Abbotsford/Colby Police 
6 Department has requested that the intersection of North Fourth Avenue and West 
7 Spruce Street be made into a 4 way stop intersection. 
8 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that the Abbotsford City Council approves 
9 Of amending Section 10-1-13 (b), Stop Signs Enumerated, by adding the following 
10 Lines: 
11 (118) West Spruce Street, eastbound, at North 4th Avenue 
12 (119) West Spruce Street, westbound, at North 4th Avenue 

_____________________________ 
Mayor Lori Voss 

Attest: 

_________________________________  ______________________________ 
Dan Grady – City Administrator/Clerk/Treasurer Duly and Officially Adopted on 

68



Exhibit 1 For Discussion Only

City of Abbotsford, WI

General Obligation Borrowing Capacity - As of August 1, 2019

`

Beginning End
2009 2010 2010 2012 2015 2015 5% Beginning of Year Beginning End of Year End

TID In G.O. State Trust Water Tax G.O. G.O. G.O. G.O. of Year Remaining of Year Total of Year Remaining of Year
Levy Collect Equalized Prom. Note Fund Loan G.O. Bond Ref. Bond Prom. Note Prom. Note Borrowing Principal Borrowing Percent Principal Principal Borrowing Percent
Year Year Valuation $140,000 $100,000 $1,220,000 $2,325,000 $35,000 $579,699 Capacity Outstanding Capacity Remaining Payment Outstanding Capacity Remaining

2018 2019 130,972,600 70,000        6,548,630 2,499,499 4,049,131 62% 70,000 2,429,499    4,119,131 63%
2019 2020 130,972,600 12,093        75,000        155,000            7,406          6,548,630 2,429,499 4,119,131 63% 249,499 2,180,000    4,368,630 67%
2020 2021 130,972,600 75,000        155,000            6,548,630 2,180,000 4,368,630 67% 230,000 1,950,000    4,598,630 70%
2021 2022 130,972,600 80,000        160,000            6,548,630 1,950,000 4,598,630 70% 240,000 1,710,000    4,838,630 74%
2022 2023 130,972,600 80,000        165,000            6,548,630 1,710,000 4,838,630 74% 245,000 1,465,000    5,083,630 78%
2023 2024 130,972,600 85,000        170,000            6,548,630 1,465,000 5,083,630 78% 255,000 1,210,000    5,338,630 82%
2024 2025 130,972,600 90,000        175,000            6,548,630 1,210,000 5,338,630 82% 265,000 945,000       5,603,630 86%
2025 2026 130,972,600 90,000        180,000            6,548,630 945,000 5,603,630 86% 270,000 675,000       5,873,630 90%
2026 2027 130,972,600 105,000      185,000            6,548,630 675,000 5,873,630 90% 290,000 385,000       6,163,630 94%
2027 2028 130,972,600 190,000            6,548,630 385,000 6,163,630 94% 190,000 195,000       6,353,630 97%
2028 2029 130,972,600 195,000            6,548,630 195,000 6,353,630 97% 195,000 0 6,548,630 100%

Total -              12,093        750,000      1,730,000         7,406          -              

Prepared by Ehlers . 7/30/201969



Exhibit 2 For Discussion Only

City of Abbotsford, WI

Debt Levy - Existing

2009 2010 2010 2012 2015 2015
TID Out G.O. State Trust Water Tax G.O. G.O. G.O. Projected Projected

Levy Collect Equalized Prom. Note Fund Loan G.O. Bond Ref. Bond Prom. Note Prom. Note Total Debt Equalized
Year Year Valuation $140,000 $100,000 $1,220,000 $2,325,000 $35,000 $579,699 Subtotal Revenues Levy Mill Rate

2018 2019 112,342,200 17,672        12,638        112,825            197,440            7,621          76,321        424,517    204,107    220,410      1.96          
2019 2020 112,342,200 12,638        114,675            199,390            8,610          335,313    127,313    208,000      1.85          
2020 2021 112,342,200 111,300            196,213            307,513    111,300    196,213      1.75          
2021 2022 112,342,200 111,800            197,785            309,585    111,800    197,785      1.76          
2022 2023 112,342,200 107,000            198,923            305,923    107,000    198,923      1.77          
2023 2024 112,342,200 107,200            199,735            306,935    107,200    199,735      1.78          
2024 2025 112,342,200 107,100            200,160            307,260    107,100    200,160      1.78          
2025 2026 112,342,200 101,700            200,190            301,890    101,700    200,190      1.78          
2026 2027 112,342,200 108,150            199,803            307,953    108,150    199,803      1.78          
2027 2028 112,342,200 198,990            198,990    198,990      1.77          
2028 2029 112,342,200 198,023            198,023    198,023      1.76          

Prepared by Ehlers 7/30/201970



Exhibit 3 For Discussion Only

City of Abbotsford, WI

Debt Revenues - Existing
TID 5 TID 5 Water Water

2009 2010 2010 2015
G.O. State Trust Water Tax G.O.

Levy Collect Prom. Note Fund Loan G.O. Bond Prom. Note Total
Year Year $140,000 $100,000 $1,220,000 $579,699 Revenues

2018 2019 17,672        12,638        112,825            60,972        204,107    
2019 2020 12,638        114,675            127,313    
2020 2021 111,300            111,300    
2021 2022 111,800            111,800    
2022 2023 107,000            107,000    
2023 2024 107,200            107,200    
2024 2025 107,100            107,100    
2025 2026 101,700            101,700    
2026 2027 108,150            108,150    

Prepared by Ehlers 7/30/201971



Exhibit 2 Sale Results

City of Abbotsford, WI

Tax Increment Forecast 

TID No. 6 - Mixed Use District (With Boundary Amendment approved in 2018)

Creation Date 9/21/2016
End of Expenditure Period 2031
Maximum Life of District (Final Year) 2036
Final Revenue Collection Year 2037

Inflation Factor: 0.00%
5 Apartments Blended
$2.4 Million Rate 2018 Primary Projected

Each Projected Tax Increment Use Remaining Schilling Estimated Estimated Estimated Projected Projected Projected
Construction Valuation Revenue Inflation New TID Value Tax Tax Revenue Bond Debt TID No. 1 Land Develop. Playground Swamp Buck Parks & Admin. Projected Annual Cumulative

Year Year Year Increment Valuation Increment Rate Increment $2,325,000 Coverage Revenues Purchase Incentive Equipment Drive Recreation Expenses Total Balance Balance
2015 2016 2017 -           - - (118,678)           
2016 2017 2018 -           10,853,000    23.98             260,251         260,251             47,000           20,000           20,000           87,000           173,251         54,573              
2017 2018 2019 -           15,992,000    25.10             401,353         152,758             2.63 248,592             40,000           50,000           7,500             97,500           151,092         205,665            
2018 2019 2020 -           2,400,000      18,392,000    25.10             461,586         306,750             1.50 154,834             40,000           7,500             47,500           107,334         312,999            
2019 2020 2021 -           7,200,000      25,592,000    25.10             642,285         307,720             2.09 334,563             40,000           40,000           7,500             87,500           247,063         560,062            
2020 2021 2022 -           2,400,000      27,992,000    25.10             702,518         308,260             2.28 394,255             40,000           7,500             47,500           346,755         906,817            
2021 2022 2023 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         303,370             2.32 399,145             40,000           7,500             47,500           351,645         1,258,462         
2022 2023 2024 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         308,265             2.28 394,250             40,000           7,500             47,500           346,750         1,605,213         
2023 2024 2025 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         307,515             2.28 395,000             40,000           7,500             47,500           347,500         1,952,713         
2024 2025 2026 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         306,335             2.29 396,180             40,000           7,500             47,500           348,680         2,301,393         
2025 2026 2027 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         304,725             2.31 397,790             40,000           7,500             47,500           350,290         2,651,684         
2026 2027 2028 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         307,685             2.28 394,830             40,000           7,500             47,500           347,330         2,999,014         
2027 2028 2029 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         702,518             40,000           7,500             47,500           655,018         3,654,032         
2028 2029 2030 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         702,518             40,000           7,500             47,500           655,018         4,309,049         
2029 2030 2031 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         702,518             7,500             7,500             695,018         5,004,067         
2030 2031 2032 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         702,518             7,500             7,500             695,018         5,699,085         
2031 2032 2033 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         702,518             7,500             7,500             695,018         6,394,102         
2032 2033 2034 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         702,518             7,500             7,500             695,018         7,089,120         
2033 2034 2035 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         702,518             7,500             7,500             695,018         7,784,137         
2034 2035 2036 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         702,518             7,500             7,500             695,018         8,479,155         
2035 2036 2037 -           27,992,000    25.10             702,518         702,518             7,500             7,500             695,018         9,174,173         

PRIMARY USE OF TID 6 REVENUES SECONDARY USE OF TID 6 REVENUESREVENUES

Prepared by Ehlers 7/30/201972



Balance
1/1/2018 Increases Decreases

 Balance
12/31/2018 

 Amounts
Due Within
One Year 

Governmental Activities
Bonds and notes payable:

General obligation debt 2,156,480$    -$                 205,565$     1,950,915$   200,513$    
TID revenue bonds -                    2,325,000     -                  2,325,000     75,000        
Add/Subtract Amounts For:
   Premiums/Discount on debt (23,355)         -                   (2,063)         (21,292)         -                  

Total bonds and
  notes payable 2,133,125      2,325,000     203,502       4,254,623     275,513      

Business-Type Activities
Bonds and notes payable:

General obligation debt 969,278$       -$                 160,539$     808,739$      128,739$    
Mortgage revenue bonds 17,464,100    -                   339,600       17,124,500   349,100      
Add/Subtract Amounts For:
   Premiums/Discount on debt (10,295)         -                   (1,143)         (9,152)           -                  

Total bonds and
  notes payable 18,423,083    -                   498,996       17,924,087   477,839      

73



Date of
Issue

Final
Maturity

Interest
Rate

Original
Indebtedness

Balance
12/31/2018

Governmental Activities
G.O. promissory note 2/11/2009 2/1/2019 2.35 - 3.95%  $       140,000  $      17,000 
State trust fund loan 3/16/2010 3/15/2020 4.50%           100,000          23,582 
G.O. refunding bonds 8/15/2012 3/1/2029 2.0 - 3.10%        2,325,000     1,880,000 
G.O. promissory note 3/17/2015 3/17/2020 2.90%             35,000          15,592 
G.O. promissory note 7/20/2015 7/20/2018 2.80%           227,732          14,741 
TID revenue bond 12/21/2018 10/1/2028 4.30%        2,325,000     2,325,000 

Total governmental
  activities 4,275,915$  

74



Years Principal Interest
2019 275,513$           127,965$           
2020 385,402             141,901             
2021 375,000             128,933             
2022 390,000             116,045             
2023 400,000             102,293             

2024-2028 2,255,000          278,403             
2025-2029 195,000             3,023                 

 Totals 4,275,915$        898,563$           

 Governmental Activities 

75



Date of
Issue

Final
Maturity

Interest
Rate

Original
Indebtedness

Balance
12/31/2018

Business-Type Activities
Water revenue bond 10/29/1997 10/1/2037 4.875% 2,747,300$    1,959,600$   
Water revenue bond 3/26/2012 10/1/2051 2.25% 9,187,000      8,021,500     
Water taxable G.O. bond 10/4/2010 5/1/2027 2.75-6.0% 1,220,000      750,000        
Water G.O. promissory note 7/20/2015 7/20/2018 2.80% 341,195         58,739          
Sewer revenue bond 6/16/2016 5/1/2056 2.25% 7,376,000      7,143,400     

17,933,239$       Total business-type activities

76



Years Principal Interest
2019 477,839$           478,761$           
2020 433,900             463,786             
2021 443,900             450,512             
2022 459,300             435,794             
2023 470,100             420,442             

2024-2028 2,495,500          1,850,438          
2029-2033 2,455,200          1,475,225          
2034-2038 2,680,800          1,094,724          
2039-2043 2,346,600          779,946             
2044-2048 2,625,300          501,469             
2049-2053 2,233,400          201,701             
2054-2056 811,400             27,659               

Totals 17,933,239$      8,180,457$        

 Business-Type Activities 

77



XIII A-1
JJJ

7/30/2019

Clark County Debt Limit 3,342,040 FF-09

Marathon County Debt Limit 3,206,590 FF-09

6,548,630

G.O. DEBT 2,759,654 42.14% note: water utilit

DEBT MARGIN 3,788,976 57.86%

Debt Margin
CITY OF ABBOTSFORD

12/31/2018

78

ldorn
Rectangle



Grand
$579,699 G.O 35K G.O. 2,325K TIF Bonds 140K G.O. 2,325 G.O 100 STFL Total $579,699 G.O 1,985K G.O MRB's Total Total

2019 P 14,741.85          7,197.31            75,000.00               17,000 150,000 11,574 275,512.67              58,739.22            - 419,100.00              477,839.22              753,351.89              
I 607.03               423.48               77,758.33               672  47,440 1,065  127,965.32              2,233.00               - 476,527.62              478,760.62              606,725.94              

2020 P - 8,394.55            210,000.00             155,000 12,009 385,403.33              - 433,900.00              433,900.00              819,303.33              
I - 215.23               96,750.00               44,390 546  141,900.90              - 463,786.24              463,786.24              605,687.14              

2021 P - 220,000.00             155,000 375,000.00              - 443,900.00              443,900.00              818,900.00              
I - 87,720.00               41,213 128,932.50              - 450,511.62              450,511.62              579,444.12              

2022 P - 230,000.00             160,000 390,000.00              - 459,300.00              459,300.00              849,300.00              
I - 78,260.00               37,785 116,045.00              - 435,794.36              435,794.36              551,839.36              

2023 P - 235,000.00             165,000 400,000.00              - 470,100.00              470,100.00              870,100.00              
I - 68,370.00               33,923 102,292.50              - 420,442.41              420,442.41              522,734.91              

2024 P - 250,000.00             170,000 420,000.00              - 486,300.00              486,300.00              906,300.00              
I - 58,265.00               29,735 88,000.00                - 404,743.02              404,743.02              492,743.02              

2025 P - 260,000.00             175,000 435,000.00              - 502,800.00              502,800.00              937,800.00              
I - 47,515.00               25,160 72,675.00                - 388,380.47              388,380.47              461,055.47              

2026 P - 270,000.00             180,000 450,000.00              - 514,700.00              514,700.00              964,700.00              
I - 36,335.00               20,190 56,525.00                - 371,346.46              371,346.46              427,871.46              

2027 P - 280,000.00             185,000 465,000.00              - 541,900.00              541,900.00              1,006,900.00           
I - 24,725.00               14,803 39,527.50                - 350,771.90              350,771.90              390,299.40              

2028 P - 295,000.00             190,000 485,000.00              - 449,800.00              449,800.00              934,800.00              
I - 12,685.00               8,990  21,675.00                - 335,196.07              335,196.07              356,871.07              

2029 P - -  195,000 195,000.00              - 462,800.00              462,800.00              657,800.00              
I - -  3,023  3,022.50 - 322,345.00              322,345.00              325,367.50              

2030 P - -  -  - - 476,500.00              476,500.00              476,500.00              
I - -  -  - - 309,059.31              309,059.31              309,059.31              

2031 P - -  -  - - 490,500.00              490,500.00              490,500.00              
I - -  -  - - 295,319.70              295,319.70              295,319.70              

2032 P - -  - - 505,200.00              505,200.00              505,200.00              
I - -  - - 281,104.74              281,104.74              281,104.74              

2033 P - -  - - 520,200.00              520,200.00              520,200.00              
I - -  - - 267,396.29              267,396.29              267,396.29              

2034 P - -  - - 535,600.00              535,600.00              535,600.00              
I - -  - - 251,177.85              251,177.85              251,177.85              

2035 P - -  - - 552,000.00              552,000.00              552,000.00              
I - -  - - 235,430.10              235,430.10              235,430.10              

2036 P - -  - - 568,600.00              568,600.00              568,600.00              
I - -  - - 219,124.34              219,124.34              219,124.34              

2037 P - -  - - 585,900.00              585,900.00              585,900.00              
I - -  - - 202,242.39              202,242.39              202,242.39              

2038 P - -  - - 438,700.00              438,700.00              438,700.00              
I - -  - - 186,748.89              186,748.89              186,748.89              

2039 P - 448,500.00              448,500.00              448,500.00              
I - 176,800.51              176,800.51              176,800.51              

2040 P - 458,600.00              458,600.00              458,600.00              
I - 166,628.26              166,628.26              166,628.26              

2041 P - 469,100.00              469,100.00              469,100.00              
I - 156,226.51              156,226.51              156,226.51              

2042 P - 479,800.00              479,800.00              479,800.00              
I - 145,586.26              145,586.26              145,586.26              

2043 P - 490,600.00              490,600.00              490,600.00              
I - 134,704.13              134,704.13              134,704.13              

2044 P - 501,700.00              501,700.00              501,700.00              
I - 123,576.76              123,576.76              123,576.76              

2045 P - 513,200.00              513,200.00              513,200.00              
I - 112,197.39              112,197.39              112,197.39              

2046 P - 524,700.00              524,700.00              524,700.00              
I - 100,558.13              100,558.13              100,558.13              

2047 P - 536,800.00              536,800.00              536,800.00              
I - 88,655.64                88,655.64                88,655.64                

2048 P - 548,900.00              548,900.00              548,900.00              
I - 76,480.89                76,480.89                76,480.89                

2049 P - 561,200.00              561,200.00              561,200.00              
I - 64,032.77                64,032.77                64,032.77                

2050 P - 574,000.00              574,000.00              574,000.00              
I - 51,303.39                51,303.39                51,303.39                

2051 P - 587,000.00              587,000.00              587,000.00              
I 38,284.89                38,284.89                38,284.89                

2052 P 252,700.00              252,700.00              252,700.00              
I 26,915.63                26,915.63                26,915.63                

2053 P 258,500.00              258,500.00              258,500.00              
I 21,164.63                21,164.63                21,164.63                

2054 P 264,400.00              264,400.00              264,400.00              
I 15,282.00                15,282.00                15,282.00                

2055 P 270,400.00              270,400.00              270,400.00              
I 9,265.50 9,265.50 9,265.50 

2056 P 276,600.00              276,600.00              276,600.00              
I 3,111.75 3,111.75 3,111.75 

- 

P 14,741.85          15,591.86          2,325,000.00          17,000.00               1,880,000.00          23,582.29               4,275,916.00           58,739.22            - 17,874,500.00         17,933,239.22         22,209,155.22         
I 607.03               638.71               588,383.33             671.50 306,650.00             1,610.65 898,561.22              2,233.00               - 8,178,223.82           8,180,456.82           9,079,018.04           

15,348.88          16,230.57          2,913,383.33          17,671.50               2,186,650.00          25,192.94               5,174,477.22           60,972.22            - 26,052,723.82         26,113,696.04         31,288,173.26         

Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2019 275,512.67             127,965.32             403,477.99             477,839.22              478,760.62              956,599.84              
2020 385,403.33             141,900.90             527,304.23             433,900.00              463,786.24              897,686.24              
2021 375,000.00             128,932.50             503,932.50             443,900.00              450,511.62              894,411.62              
2022 390,000.00             116,045.00             506,045.00             459,300.00              435,794.36              895,094.36              
2023 400,000.00             102,292.50             502,292.50             470,100.00              420,442.41              890,542.41              

2024-2028 2,255,000.00          278,402.50             2,533,402.50          2,495,500.00           1,850,437.92           4,345,937.92           
2029-2033 195,000.00             3,022.50 198,022.50             2,455,200.00           1,475,225.04           3,930,425.04           
2034-2038 -  -  -  2,680,800.00           1,094,723.57           3,775,523.57           
2039-2043 -  -  -  2,346,600.00           779,945.67              3,126,545.67           
2044-2048 -  -  -  2,625,300.00           501,468.81              3,126,768.81           
2049-2053 -  -  -  2,233,400.00           201,701.31              2,435,101.31           
2054-2056 -  -  -  811,400.00              27,659.25                839,059.25              

4,275,916.00          898,561.22             5,174,477.22          17,933,239.22         8,180,456.82           26,113,696.04         

Governmental Funds

City of Abbotsford

12/31/2018
Amortization for Footnote Disclosure

79



City of Abbotsford, WI

UPDATE
Page 1 of 2

V:\Administration\Marshfield Office Administration\Project Updates\ABBOTSFORD\2019\Abbotsford August 2019 Project Update.docx 

UPDATE  A Review of MSA’s Commitment to Your Community

CLIENT LIAISON:
Dan Borchardt, PE
Phone: 715.304.0448

Cell: 715.216-3601
dborchardt@msa-ps.com

DATE:
August 5, 2019

SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL DESIGN - MSA PROJECT #07681015
SPRUCE ST. (BUS. 29) RECONDITIONING PROJECT - MSA PROJECT #07681024
PROJECT STATUS UPDATE - SRTS
Real estate in progress.  Railroad coordination with WisDOT indicated easement needed from
railroad to address sidewalk crossing the tracks.

The Plat is complete signed and recorded.

INDUSTRIAL PARK CONNECTION TO STH 13 - MSA PROJECT #07681025
CONSTRUCTION UPDATE
Prime Contractor Steen Construction needs to complete the final lift of asphalt and perform
restoration work.  Substantial completion was July 26, and Final completion was August 2.  The City
is allowing O’Reilly’s to utilize the new roadway segment for their site construction. To minimize
damage to the surface, asphalt and restoration work has paused on this project.

SCHILLING SUBDIVISION – MSA PROJECT #07681026
CONSTRUCTION UPDATE
Haas will work on cleaning up the Schilling subdivision site by topsoiling and fine grading for asphalt
July 29-August 2.  Haas will bring manholes to grade August 2 and 5.  They will clean 4th Avenue on
August 5, and place remaining asphalt on August 7.  The City plans on playground equipment
arriving August 12, for installation.

2018 STREET & UTILITY PROJECT (CEDAR & 2ND) - MSA PROJECT #07681014
CONSTRUCTION UPDATE
All work has been completed on this project and it is ready for final payment.  A zero-balance
change order will adjust all the estimated unit quantities in the contract to show the project is 100%
complete.

 

80



 
 

PROJECT UPDATE 
Page 2 of 2 

V:\Administration\Marshfield Office Administration\Project Updates\ABBOTSFORD\2019\Abbotsford August 2019 Project Update.docx 

 
PROJECT UPDATE 

City of Abbotsford, WI 
August 5, 2019 

 
 
 

 SPORTSMAN’S ADDITION STREET IMPROVEMENTS – MSA PROJECT #07681027 
CONSTRUCTION UPDATE 
Contractor Francis Melvin’s anticipated schedule is shown below:  
 
Week of August 5 – August 9 

 Storm Sewer 
 Grading 

Week of August 12 – August 16 
 Concrete Curb 

Week of August 19 – August 23 
 Paving 

Week of August 26– August 30 
 Restoration 

 
COPPER COMPLIANCE ACTION PLAN– MSA PROJECT #07681034 
MSA submitted a Copper Action Plan to the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources on July 1.  
The Copper Action Plan was required as part of the City’s WPDES permit compliance schedule for 
copper.  As of August 2, the WDNR had not provided any comments or questions regarding the 
Copper Action Plan. 
 
The results of recent tests of effluent copper at the wastewater treatment plant utilizing a different 
sampling protocol have been consistently low, and suggest that the future monthly average effluent 
copper limit of 22 ug/L may be achievable.  The results of three samples utilizing both the old and 
new sampling protocol resulted in a significant difference in test results.  However, the influent 
copper concentrations during that time were also quite low.  MSA had recommended testing of three 
influent and effluent samples per week for four weeks.  We are now recommending that sampling of 
one influent and effluent sample per week continue until there is a high degree of confidence that the 
future copper limits can be met when the influent copper concentrations are higher.  In the 
meantime, the items in the Copper Action Plan are “on hold” as it appears the issue might be 
resolved by the simple change in sampling protocol. 
 

SOUTH 1ST AVENUE REHAB (LINDEN TO ELM) – MSA PROJECT #07681030 
This project design is approximately 75% complete and is anticipated to follow the bid schedule 
below.   
 
Run Ad for Bids:   August 14 and 21, 2019  
Bid Opening:        August 30, 2019 @ 9:00AM 
Award Contract:   September 3 or 11, 2019 (Council Board Meeting) 
 

81



1835 NORTH STEVENS STREET, RHINELANDER, WI 54501 

P (715) 362-3244    TF (800) 844-7854    F (715) 362-4116 
WWW.MSA-PS.COM 

Page 1 of 1 
P:\7600s\7680s\7681\07681025\Documents\survey info\Final CSM\Memo.docx 

Memo

To: Dan Grady, City of Abbotsford Administrator 

From: Chad Besaw, PLS 

Subject: Industrial Park Connection (Oreilly’s) Certified Survey Map 

Date: July 10, 2019 

Dan, 

Enclosed is the recordable copy of the Industrial Park Connection Certified Survey Map. Please take a 
moment to review it and let me know if there any desired edits to be made. If it is satisfactory, please 
put it on the August 5th agenda for review, acceptance, and signatures (page 3 of 3). After it is approved 
and signed, it needs to be recorded at Clark County Register of Deeds Office.  
Please mail the map back to me if you prefer MSA records it. Or, if you prefer to record it, request a 
recorded copy to be emailed to you and forward it to me for our records. The cost to record it and 
purchase a recorded copy should be $34.00. Please let me know who will be recording the document. 

Thank you, 

MSA Professional Services 
Chad Besaw, PLS Senior Project Surveyor 

82



N 89°12'10" E
202.77'

S

 

4

2

°

4

3

'

4

6

"

 

E

5

3

.

5

0

'

95'

6
6
'

S.T.H.13 ROW

MARATHON COUNTY

V.439 P.556

CLARK COUNTY CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP # 

OWNER:

PROJECT NO.

CHECK BY:

DRAWN BY: 

FILE NO.

SHEET NO.

C
:
\
U

s
e
r
s
\
c
b
e
s
a
w

\
a
p
p
d
a
t
a
\
l
o
c
a
l
\
t
e
m

p
\
A

c
P

u
b
l
i
s
h
_
1
5
4
4
\
7
6
8
1
0
2
5
 
C

S
M

.
d
w

g
 
1
0
 
J
u
l
 
2
0
1
9
 
8
:
3
1
a
m

 
L
e
g
a
l
C

S
M

1

07681025

CAB

EJS

07681025

1 OF 3

CITY OF ABBOTSFORD

203 NORTH FIRST STREET

ABBOTSFORD, WI, 54405

N 89°12'10" E  214.17'

N

 
1

0

°
3

5

'
3

5

"
 
W

 
 
2

1

3

.
8

1

'

(
S

 
0

9

°
2

7

'
2

5

"
 
W

 
 
2

1

3

.
0

9

'
)

S 88°52'10" W  213.08'

(S 89°40'50" E  217.92')

S
 
0
0
°
3
2
'
4
1
"
 
E

 
 
2
4
9
.
9
7
'

N

 

4

1

°

0

8

'

0

5

"

 

E

1
0
3
.
6
6
'

1
4
6
.
3
1
'

1

4

6

.
8

3

'

6

6

.
9

8

'

LOT 1

 C.C.C.S.M.#490

VOL. 556, PAGE 365-366

0 60 12030

N

E
W

S

WI

MARSHFIELD

© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL

                               www.msa-ps.com(715) 384-2133
146 North Central Ave, Marshfield WI 54449

PART OF LOT 1 OF CLARK COUNTY CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 490,

AND LANDS DESCRIBED IN CLARK COUNTY DOCUMENT NO. 629340,

BEING LOCATED IN THE NE 1/4 OF THE SE1/4,

OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 1 EAST,

CITY OF ABBOTSFORD, CLARK COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

71.23'

142.94'

DOC. #627746

DOC. #627746

S
 
0
1
°
0
9
'
1
8
"
 
E

 
 
2
6
0
8
.
1
5
'

 
 
(
S

 
0
°
0
7
'
5
0
"
 
E

)

E
A

S
T

 
L
I
N

E
 
S

E
 
1
/
4

S 89°00'20" W

52.68'

EAST 

1

4

 CORNER

SEC. 1, T28N, R1E

2" IRON PIPE FD.

SOUTHEAST  CORNER

SEC. 1, T28N, R1E

1.25" IRON ROD FD.

2
3
8
7
.
9
8
'

S
.
T

.
H

.
 
"
1

3
"
 
(
F

O
U

R
T

H
 
S

T
.
)

R
/
W

R
/
W

R
/
W

R
/
W

FUTURE ROAD DEDICATED TO THE PUBLIC

OUTLOT 1

17,588 SQ.FT. (0.40 ACRES)

LOT 1

31,837 SQ.FT. (0.73 ACRES)

DOC. #616658

DOC. #616658

3

0

'

3

0

'

1

0

0

'

1

0

0

'

B
e
a
r
i
n
g
s
 
r
e
f
e
r
e
n
c
e
d
 
t
o
 
C

l
a
r
k
 
C

o
u
n
t
y

G
r
i
d
 
N

A
D

8
3
(
2
0
1
1
)
 
t
o
 
w

h
i
c
h
 
t
h
e
 
E

a
s
t
 
l
i
n
e

o
f
 
t
h
e
 
S

E
 
1
/
4
 
o
f
 
S

e
c
.
 
1
,
 
T

2
8
N

,
 
R

1
E

,

m
e
a
s
u
r
e
d
 
t
o
 
b
e
a
r
 
S

0
1
°
0
9
'
1
8
"
E

.

W

I
S

C

O

N

S

I
N

 
C

E

N

T

R

A

L

 
L

T

D

.
 
R

R

(
C

A

N

A

D

I
A

N

 
N

A

T

I
O

N

A

L

 
R

A

I
L

W

A

Y

)

LEGEND

       GOV'T CORNER VERIFIED AS NOTED

       SEE USPLS MONUMENT RECORD

       FOUND 0.75" IRON ROD

       SET 0.75"X18" IRON ROD - 1.50 LBS/FT

       COMPUTED POSITION

  ( )  PREVIOUSLY RECORDED AS INFORMATION

DOC. #629340

5

4

.

4

6

'

DOC. #630453

RIGHT OF WAY NOTE:

S.T.H. 13 RIGHT OF WAY DETERMINED

FROM RIGHT OF WAY PROJECT

NUMBER 1623-8-24 AND MARATHON

COUNTY WISDOT DEED V.439 P.556

R/W

R/W

C

L

C

L

P.O.B.

CORNER FALLS

IN PEDESTAL

2
2
0
.
1
7
'

83



SHEET NO.

FILE:

PROJECT NO.

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CLIENT:

C
:
\
U

s
e
r
s
\
c
b
e
s
a
w

\
a
p
p
d
a
t
a
\
l
o
c
a
l
\
t
e
m

p
\
A

c
P

u
b
l
i
s
h
_
1
5
4
4
\
7
6
8
1
0
2
5
 
C

S
M

.
d
w

g
 
1
0
 
J
u
l
 
2
0
1
9
 
8
:
3
1
a
m

 
L
e
g
a
l
C

S
M

2

2 OF 3

07681025

07681025

CAB

EJS

© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL

                               www.msa-ps.com(715) 384-2133
146 North Central Ave, Marshfield WI 54449

CLARK COUNTY CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP # ______

Surveyor's Certificate:

I, Chad A. Besaw, Wisconsin Professional Land Surveyor #S-3029 hereby certify: That in full compliance with the provisions of
Chapter 236 of the Wisconsin Statutes, Chapter AE-7 of the Wisconsin Administrative Code, and Title Fourteen - Subdivision
Regulations of the City Ordinances of the City of Abbotsford,  that under the direction of the City of Abbotsford, I have
surveyed, divided, and mapped this plat; that such plat correctly represents all exterior boundaries of the land surveyed to
the best of my knowledge and belief; and that this land is part of Clark County Certified Survey Map Number 490, and lands
described in Clark County Document Number 629340, being located in the Northeast Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of
Section 1, Township 28 North, Range 1 East, City of Abbotsford, Clark County, Wisconsin, containing 49,426 Square Feet or
1.13 acres of land more or less and described as follows:

Commencing at the East Quarter corner of said Section 1;
thence S01°09'18"E along the East line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 1 a distance of 220.17 feet;
thence S89°00'20"W a distance of 52.68 feet to the West right of way line of State Trunk Highway "13" and being the Point of
Beginning;
thence S00°32'41"E along said West right of way line of State Trunk Highway "13" a distance of 249.97 feet to the North line
of a parcel described in Document No. 616658;
thence S88°52'10"W along the North line of said parcel a distance of 213.08 feet to the East right of way line of Wisconsin
Central LTD Railroad (Canadian National Railway);
thence N10°35'35"W along said right of way line a distance of 213.81 feet to the Northwest corner of Lot 1 of Clark County
Certified Survey Map No. 490;
thence N89°12'10"E along a portion of the North line of said Lot 1 a distance of 214.17 feet;
thence N41°08'05"E a distance of 54.46 feet to the Point of Beginning.

Together with and subject to any and all easements, restrictions, covenants, and right of ways of record.

_______________________________________________________
MSA PROFESSIONAL SERVICES                                             DATE
CHAD A. BESAW,
WISCONSIN PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR, #S-3029

CITY OF ABBOTSFORD

203 NORTH FIRST STREET

ABBOTSFORD, WI, 54405

PART OF LOT 1 OF CLARK COUNTY CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 490,

AND LANDS DESCRIBED IN CLARK COUNTY DOCUMENT NO. 629340,

BEING LOCATED IN THE NE 1/4 OF THE SE1/4,

OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 1 EAST,

CITY OF ABBOTSFORD, CLARK COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

84



SHEET NO.

FILE:

PROJECT NO.

CHECKED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CLIENT:

C
:
\
U

s
e
r
s
\
c
b
e
s
a
w

\
a
p
p
d
a
t
a
\
l
o
c
a
l
\
t
e
m

p
\
A

c
P

u
b
l
i
s
h
_
1
5
4
4
\
7
6
8
1
0
2
5
 
C

S
M

.
d
w

g
 
1
0
 
J
u
l
 
2
0
1
9
 
8
:
3
1
a
m

 
L
e
g
a
l
C

S
M

2
 
(
2
)

3 OF 3

07681025

07681025

CAB

EJS

© MSA Professional Services, Inc.

ENGINEERING | ARCHITECTURE | SURVEYING
FUNDING | PLANNING | ENVIRONMENTAL

                               www.msa-ps.com(715) 384-2133
146 North Central Ave, Marshfield WI 54449

CLARK COUNTY CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP # ______

CITY OF ABBOTSFORD

203 NORTH FIRST STREET

ABBOTSFORD, WI, 54405

Owner's Certificate of Dedication:
As owner(s), I (we) hereby certify that I (we) caused the land described on this plat to be surveyed, divided, mapped and
dedicated as represented on the plat. I (we) also certify that this plat is required by s.236.10 or s.236.12 to be submitted to
the following for approval or objection: City of Abbotsford

WITNESS the hand and seal of said owner(s) this                day of                      _, 20         .

                                                                                                                      .
Lori Voss, Mayor

(Owner's Notary Certificate)

STATE OF WISCONSIN)

COUNTY) SS

Personally came before me this                        day of                             , 20           , the above named                                            to
me known to be the same person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same.

(Notary Seal)                                                                                   .

Notary Public,                                                                , Wisconsin

My commission expires                                                      .

Common Council Approval Certificate

Resolved, that this Certified Survey in the city of Abbotsford,  _______________________, representative of owner, is
hereby approved by the common council.

Date ____________

Approved __________________________________________
                  Lori Voss, Mayor

Date ____________

Signed _____________________________________
             Attest: City Clerk

PART OF LOT 1 OF CLARK COUNTY CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO. 490,

AND LANDS DESCRIBED IN CLARK COUNTY DOCUMENT NO. 629340,

BEING LOCATED IN THE NE 1/4 OF THE SE1/4,

OF SECTION 1, TOWNSHIP 28 NORTH, RANGE 1 EAST,

CITY OF ABBOTSFORD, CLARK COUNTY, WISCONSIN.

85



Reconditioning Length 5200
Existing Curb Width Face of Curb to Face of Curb 49
Driving Lane Width 12
Parking Lane Width 6

2.5
Assumed ROW Width 66

ITEM ITEM ESTIMATED UNIT TOTAL

NO. DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNITS PRICE PRICE

General

1. Mobilization, Bonds, and Insurance 1 LS 32,000.00$    32,000.00$   

2. Site Maintenance and Restoration 1 LS 10,000.00$    10,000.00$   

3. Erosion and Sedimentiaton Controls 1 LS 2,500.00$   2,500.00$   

4. Concrete Quality Control 1 LS 2,000.00$   2,000.00$   

5. Traffic Control 1 LS 10,000.00$    10,000.00$   

Storm Sewer

6. Storm Inlet (2-Foot x 3-Foot) 18 EA 2,200.00$   39,600.00$   

7. Storm Manhole (4-Foot Dia.) 9 EA 2,500.00$   22,500.00$   

8. 12-Inch HDPE Storm Sewer 375 LF 32.00$   12,000.00$   

9. 18-Inch HDPE Storm Sewer 1,550 LF 40.00$   62,000.00$   

10. 24-Inch HDPE Storm Sewer 1,550 LF 48.00$   74,400.00$   

11. Connect to Existing Storm Sewer 2 EA 500.00$   1,000.00$   

Street Construction

12. Mill and Remove 2-Insphalt Pavement 26,000 SY 1.75$   45,500.00$   

13. 2-Inch Asphaltic Pavement 22,100 SY 12.00$   265,200.00$    

14. 4-Inch Asphaltic Pavement Lower Layer 3,500 SY 18.00$   63,000.00$   

15. 12-Inch Base Aggregate Dense, 1 1/4" 3,500 SY 7.50$   26,250.00$   

16. 6-Inch Underdrain 6,200 LF 6.50$   40,300.00$   

17. Geotextile Fabric 3,500 SY 7.50$   26,250.00$   

18. Unclassified Excavation, Fill and Grading 1 LS 8,500.00$   8,500.00$   

19. 30-Inch Curb & Gutter 6,200 LF 12.00$   74,400.00$   

20. 6-Inch Concrete Sidewalk/Driveway w/Base 6,000 SF 6.00$   36,000.00$   

Estimated Subtotal 853,400.00$    

Estimated Engineering 133,000.00$    

Estimated Contingencies (10%) 85,000.00$   

Geotechnical Investigation 3,000.00$   

ESTIMATED TOTAL 1,074,400.00$   

Scope of Work: 

The project will recondition approximately 5,200 lineal feet of Spruce Street from Hiline Rd. to STH 13.  The estimate assumes narrowing 3,200 

feet of the corridor (5th Avenue to Railroad crossing) from 49-feet (face-to-face) to 41-feet (face-to-face) and installing new 5-foot sidewalks with 

grass terraces as part of the SRTS project.  New storm sewer is also assumed between 5th Avenue and the Railroad crossing. 

Assumptions: 

Curb and Gutter Width

City of Abbotsford

Spruce Street (Bus. 29) Reconditioning Hiline Rd to STH 13

Construction Cost Estimate 

Prepared by:  MSA Professional Services, Inc.

Updated: October 12, 2017

86



87



88



89



90



91



EJCDC C-941 Change Order (2007 Edition) 00 63 63-2

Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee and endorsed by the Construction Specifications Institute.

Change Order
Instructions

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

This document was developed to provide a uniform format for handling contract changes that affect Contract Price or
Contract Times. Changes that have been initiated by a Work Change Directive must be incorporated into a subsequent
Change Order if they affect Price or Times.

Changes that affect Contract Price or Contract Times should be promptly covered by a Change Order. The practice of
accumulating Change Orders to reduce the administrative burden may lead to unnecessary disputes.

If Milestones have been listed in the Agreement, any effect of a Change Order thereon should be addressed.

For supplemental instructions and minor changes not involving a change in the Contract Price or Contract Times, a
Field Order should be used.

B. COMPLETING THE CHANGE ORDER FORM

Engineer normally initiates the form, including a description of the changes involved and attachments based upon
documents and proposals submitted by Contractor, or requests from Owner, or both.

Once Engineer has completed and signed the form, all copies should be sent to Owner or Contractor for approval,
depending on whether the Change Order is a true order to the Contractor or the formalization of a negotiated agreement
for a previously performed change. After approval by one contracting party, all copies should be sent to the other party
for approval. Engineer should make distribution of executed copies after approval by both parties.

If a change only applies to price or to times, cross out the part of the tabulation that does not apply.

92



Abbotsford 2018 Street & Utility Project (#5556497)

Owner: City of Abbbotsford

Solicitor: MSA Professional Services - Marshfield

04/02/2018 10:00 AM CDT

Change Order #3

Section Title Line Item Item Description Unit Quantity Unit Price

Balance to 

Finish Zero Balance

General

1 Mobilization, Bonds and Insurance LS 1 $10,000.00 $0.00 $0.00

2 Clearing and Grubbing LS 1 $14,100.00 $0.00 $0.00

3 Traffic Control LS 1 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00

4 Erosion Control LS 1 $3,500.00 $0.00 $0.00

5 Concrete Quality Control LS 1 $2,600.00 $0.00 $0.00

6 Site Maintenance and Restoration LS 1 $31,500.00 $0.00 $0.00

7 Imported Granular Fill CY 20 $20.00 $400.00 ($400.00)

8 Field Density Testing EA 7 $200.00 $1,400.00 ($1,400.00)

9 2-Inch Rigid Polystyrene Insulation SF 640 $2.00 $832.00 ($832.00)

10

Railroad Crossing Construction 

Requirements LS 1 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00

11 Salvage Existing Pavement SY 5440 $1.82 $0.00 $0.00

Water Main

12 Remove Existing Watermain LS 1 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00

13 6-Inch PVC Water Main LF 50 $39.25 ($58.88) $58.88

14 8-inch PVC Water Main LF 1530 $40.25 ($281.75) $281.75

15 8-Inch Valve and Box EA 11 $1,500.00 ($1,500.00) $1,500.00

16 6-Inch Valve and Box EA 4 $1,200.00 $0.00 $0.00

17 8-Inch x 8-Inch Cross EA 2 $1,960.00 $0.00 $0.00

18 8-Inch x 8-Inch Tee EA 1 $700.00 $0.00 $0.00

19 8-Inch x 6-Inch Tee EA 4 $300.00 $0.00 $0.00

20 8-Inch x 6-Inch Reducer EA 3 $825.00 $0.00 $0.00

21 1-Inch HDPE Water Service LF 540 $28.10 ($646.30) $646.30

22 1-Inch Corp., Curb Stop & Box (Saddle) EA 17 $425.00 ($850.00) $850.00

23 Connect to Existing Water Service EA 17 $90.00 ($180.00) $180.00

24 Connect to Existing Water Main EA 7 $600.00 $0.00 $0.00

25 Fire Hydrant Complete EA 2 $3,350.00 ($3,350.00) $3,350.00

26 Salvage and Reinstall Existing Hydrant EA 2 $1,050.00 $1,050.00 ($1,050.00)

27 Temporary Water Service LS 1 $8,500.00 $0.00 $0.00

Sanitary Sewer

28

Sanitary Manhole, 4-Foot Diameter, 

Complete EA 5 $2,960.00 $0.00 $0.00

29

Sanitary Manhole w/Outside Drop, 4-Foot 

Diameter, Complete EA 2 $4,810.00 $0.00 $0.00

30 8-Inch PVC Sanitary Sewer LF 1710 $46.50 $46.50 ($46.50)

31 6-Inch PVC Sanitary Sewer Lateral LF 220 $35.75 $2,252.25 ($2,252.25)

32 8-Inch x 6-Inch Sewer Wye EA 25 $85.00 $425.00 ($425.00)

33 Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer EA 9 $460.00 ($1,380.00) $1,380.00

34 Connect to Existing Sanitary Lateral EA 25 $90.00 $450.00 ($450.00)

35 Sanitary Sewer Lateral Investigation LS 1 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00

36

Adjust Existing Sanitary Manhole and 

Casting EA 1 $750.00 $0.00 $0.00

Storm Sewer

37 Remove Storm Sewer LS 1 $3,000.00 $0.00 $0.00

38 12-Inch HDPE Storm Sewer LF 375 $35.25 ($158.63) $158.63

39 15-Inch HDPE Storm Sewer LF 410 $37.30 $223.80 ($223.80)

40 18-Inch HDPE Storm Sewer LF 110 $40.00 $40.00 ($40.00)

41 Nyloplast 2-Ft x 3-Ft Curb Inlet (24-Inch) EA 14 $2,650.00 $0.00 $0.00

42 48-Inch Diameter Storm Manhole EA 4 $2,550.00 $0.00 $0.00

43 Connect to Existing Storm Sewer EA 3 $800.00 $0.00 $0.00

Roadway

44 Unclassified Excavation and Grading LS 1 $68,000.00 $0.00 $0.00

45 Excavation Below Subgrade (EBS) CY 200 $29.50 $5,074.00 ($5,074.00)

46

4-Inch Asphaltic Concrete Pavement (2 

Lifts) SY 6350 $15.40 $0.00 $0.00

47 2-Inch Asphalt Driveway w/Base SY 30 $32.50 $0.00 $0.00

48 4-Inch Asphalt Driveway w/Base SY 250 $33.50 ($3,350.00) $3,350.00

49 30-Inch Curb and Gutter, Type L LF 3100 $11.05 ($784.55) $784.55

50 12-Inch Gravel Driveway (3/4 Inch CABC) SY 100 $11.11 $0.00 $0.00

51

1 1/4 Inch Dense Graded Base (12-Inch 

Depth) Alley A SY 570 $8.17 $0.00 $0.00

52

1 1/4 Inch Dense Graded Base (8-Inch 

Depth) SY 7825 $6.11 ($739.31) $739.31

53 Select Crush Material (16-Inch Depth) SY 7825 $8.88 $0.00 $0.00

54

4-Inch Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk 

w/Base SF 11400 $4.70 $855.40 ($855.40)

55

6-Inch Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk 

w/Base SF 3000 $5.45 ($1,329.80) $1,329.80

56 6-Inch Concrete Driveway w/Base SF 270 $5.10 ($2,177.70) $2,177.70

57 4-Inch Concrete Carriage Walk w/Base SF 215 $4.85 ($897.25) $897.25

58 Detectable Warning Field EA 14 $360.00 $720.00 ($720.00)

59 6-Inch HDPE Underdrain LF 320 $8.60 ($23,262.99) $23,262.99

60 Geotextile Fabric Type SAS SY 8395 $2.00 ($106.00) $106.00

Change Order 1

C1 Clear and Grub/Contract Extension LS 1 $2,520.00 $0.00 $0.00

Change Order 2

C2 Core Drill Sanitary Manholes LS 1 $3,330.00 $0.00 $0.00

($27,284.21) $27,284.21

Haas Sons, Inc.

Thorp, WI

BASE BID TOTAL ITEMS: #1-#60

TOTAL

93



94



EJCDC C-941 Change Order (2007 Edition) 00 63 63-2

Prepared by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee and endorsed by the Construction Specifications Institute.

Change Order
Instructions

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

This document was developed to provide a uniform format for handling contract changes that affect Contract Price or
Contract Times. Changes that have been initiated by a Work Change Directive must be incorporated into a subsequent
Change Order if they affect Price or Times.

Changes that affect Contract Price or Contract Times should be promptly covered by a Change Order. The practice of
accumulating Change Orders to reduce the administrative burden may lead to unnecessary disputes.

If Milestones have been listed in the Agreement, any effect of a Change Order thereon should be addressed.

For supplemental instructions and minor changes not involving a change in the Contract Price or Contract Times, a
Field Order should be used.

B. COMPLETING THE CHANGE ORDER FORM

Engineer normally initiates the form, including a description of the changes involved and attachments based upon
documents and proposals submitted by Contractor, or requests from Owner, or both.

Once Engineer has completed and signed the form, all copies should be sent to Owner or Contractor for approval,
depending on whether the Change Order is a true order to the Contractor or the formalization of a negotiated
agreement for a previously performed change. After approval by one contracting party, all copies should be sent to the
other party for approval. Engineer should make distribution of executed copies after approval by both parties.

If a change only applies to price or to times, cross out the part of the tabulation that does not apply.

95



Owner: City of Abbbotsford

Solicitor: MSA Professional Services - Marshfield

07/11/2018 02:00 PM CDT

Line Item Item Description UofM Quantity Unit Price Extension

C1 Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance LS 1 $9,500.00 $9,500.00

C2 Traffic Control LS 1 $1.00 $1.00

C3 Erosion Control LS 1 $250.00 $250.00

C4 Concrete Quality Control LS 1 $500.00 $500.00

C5 Site Maintenace and Restoration LS 1 $7,300.00 $7,300.00

C6 Nyoplast 2-Ft x 3-Ft curb inlet (24-inch) EA 2 $4,400.00 $8,800.00

C7 Nyoplast Drain Basin EA 1 $4,400.00 $4,400.00

C8 18-Inch HDPE Storm Sewer LF 472 $34.00 $16,048.00

C9 Connect to Existing Storm Sewer EA 1 $550.00 $550.00

C10

Sanitary Manhole, 4-Foot Diameter, 

Complete EA 2 $2,750.00 $5,500.00

C11 8-Inch PVC Sanitary Sewer LF 600 $43.75 $26,250.00

C12 6-Inch PVC Sanitary Sewer Lateral LF 210 $27.50 $5,775.00

C13 8-Inch x 6-Inch Sewer Wye EA 6 $200.00 $1,200.00

C14 Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer EA 1 $550.00 $550.00

C15 8-Inch PVC Water Main LF 597 $33.00 $19,701.00

C16 6-Inch PVC Water Main LF 41 $34.75 $1,424.75

C17 6-Inch Valve and Box EA 2 $1,350.00 $2,700.00

C18 8-Inch x 6-Inch Tee EA 2 $675.00 $1,350.00

C19 8-Inch Plug EA 1 $200.00 $200.00

C20 1-Inch HDPE Water Service LF 190 $23.50 $4,465.00

C21 1-Inch Corporation, Curb Stop & Box EA 5 $375.00 $1,875.00

C22 Rigid Polystyrene Insulation 2-Inch SF 385 $2.00 $770.00

C23 Connect to Existing Water Main EA 1 $850.00 $850.00

C24 Fire Hydrant Complete EA 1 $3,750.00 $3,750.00

C25 Adjust Existing Water Valve EA 1 $200.00 $200.00

C26 Excavation Common LS 1 $31,900.00 $31,900.00

C27 Excavation Below Subgrade (EBS) CY 50 $15.00 $750.00

C28

1 1/4-Inch Dense Graded Base (8-Inch 

Depth) SY 2720 $5.11 $13,899.20

C29 Select Crush Material (16-Inch Depth) SY 2720 $8.86 $24,099.20

C30 4-Inch Asphalt Pavement SY 2020 $17.50 $35,350.00

C31

30-Inch Concrete Curb & Gutter 

Mountable LF 1136 $12.50 $14,200.00

C32 6-Inch HDPE Underdrain LF 1195 $7.00 $8,365.00

C33 6-Inch Concrete Driveway w/Base SF 288 $6.00 $1,728.00

C34 Geotextile Fabric Type SAS SY 2720 $2.00 $5,440.00

TOTALS: C1-C34 $259,641.15

Haas Sons, Inc.

CHANGE ORDER 1 SWAMPBUCK TO WEST

96



97



Progress Estimate Contractor's Application
Proicct Abbotsford Schilling farm Applicatron Number:4

Application Date: 7/24l19

B2 C l) E I CBI I

Work Completed
Ilcm Tot Completed & Stored to

Date

Bid
Item f

Description

Bid

aty

tlnrt Unit

Price

Bid

From Prev.

Application
Qty this

Period

value this

Application lotinCorl

Materials
Pres.

Stored $

(c.Bl + E+F)
vo

(G/B)

Balance to Finish

(8. G)

I
2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0
ll
t2
l3

BASE BID
General
Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance
Clearing and Crubbing
Traffic Control
Erosion Control
Concrete Quality Control
Site Maintenance and Restoration

Field Density Testing
Silt Fence

Rip Rap

Erosion Mat Class I, Type A
Erosion Mat Class lll, Type C
2-lnch Rigid Polstyrene Insulation
4-lnch Rigid Polstyrene Insulation

Water Main
6-tnch PVC Water Main
8-lnch PVC Water Main
E-tnch Valve and Box
6-lnch Valve and Box
E-lnch x 8-lnch Cross
E-Inch x 8-lnch Tee
8-lnch x 6-Inch Tee
6-lnch Plug

8-lnch Plug
l-lnch HDPE Water Service
l-lnch Corporation, Curb Stop & Box (Saddle)

2-tnch HDPE Water Service
2Jnch Corporation, Curb Stop & Box (Saddle)

Connect to Existing Water Main
Fire Hydrant complete
Remove, Salyage and Reinstall Existing Valve
Remove and Salvage Existing Tee

Sanitary Sewer
Sanitary Manhole, 4-Foot Diameter, Complete
Sanitary Manhole w/ Outside Drop, 4-Foot Dia
8-lnch PVC Sanitary Sewer

$29.7 s

$33.00
$ l,700.00
$ 1,350.00

$1,200.00
$E25.00
$675.00
$140.00
$ 185.00

$23.s0
$375.00
$24.50

$925.00
$850.00

$3,7s0.00
$1,200.00

$505.00

s267 .7 5

$1,089.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

7

2,000
185

8,006
52

E00

800

$22,000.00
$10,000.00
$1,000.00
$2.000.00
$r,500.00
$6,700.00

$200.00
$1.40

s48.00

$1.60
$2.00
$2.00
$3.00

$5,500.00
$10,000.00

$0.00
-$500.00

$1,500.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$22,000.00

$10,000.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$1,s00.00
$0.00

$0.00

$2,88s.40
$8,880.00

$0.00
$0.00

$ 1,600.00

$2,400.00

$7,407 .7 s

$64,350.00
$13,600.00

$9,450.00

$ 1,200.00

$1,6s0.00
$4,725.00

$420.00

$370.00

$6,932.50

$3,750.00

$245.00

$925.00

$1,700.00

$15,000.00
$0.00

$0.00

$17,600.00

$5,900.00

$78.665.60

LS
LS
LS
LS
LS
LS
EA
LF

CY
SY
SY
SF

SF

LF
LF
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
LF
EA
LF
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA

0.7 5 0.25

I

100%
100%
l00o/o

l00o/o

l00o/o

0o/o

0%
l03o/o

l00o/o

0o/o

0o/o

l00o/o

l00o/o

100%
100%
l00o/o

t00vo
33%

200o/o

t00%
l00o/o

l00o/o

1000/0

t00l,/0

l43o/o

l00o/o

1000/0

100%

0o/o

0%

$22.000.00
$r0,000.00
$1,000.00
$2,000.00
$ r,500.00

$6,700.00
$ 1,400.00

$2,800.00
$8.880.00

$12,809.60
$ t04.00

$r.600.00
$2,400.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
s0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
s0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

$6,700.00
$1,400.00

-$85.40

$0.00

$12,809.60
$104.00

$0.00
$0.00

I
1.25 -o.25

I

t4
l5
t6
t7
l8
l9
20
21

22
23

24
25

26
27
28

29
30

249
1,9s0

8

7

3

I
7

2

296
l0
,l

I
2

4

I
2

$4.400.00
$5,900.00

$48.80

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$2,400.00
-$82s.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$23.50
$0.00

-$73.s0

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$1,200.00
$1,010.00

$0.00
$0.00

eg5 $4E.E0

$7,407 .7 s

$64,350.00
$13.600.00

$9,450.00
s3,600.00

s825.00

$4,725.00
$420.00
$370.00

$6,956.00
$3,750.00

st7l.50
$925.00

$r,700.00
$15.000.00

$1,200.00
$1.0t0.00

2061
t 85

800
800

240
t9t7

8

7

I
2

7

3

2

295
l0
l0
I
2

4

9

33

4
I

t6t2

lO0Yo

t00%
l00o/o

3l
32
33

4

I
1,613

EA
EA
LF

$17,600.00
$5,900.00

$78,714.40

$0.00
$0.00
s0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.0098



34
35

36

6-lnch PVC Sanitary Sewer Lateral
8-lnch x 6-lnch Sewer Wye
Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer

Storm Sewer
l2-lnch HDPE Storm Sewer
15-lnch HDPE Storm Sewer
l8-lnch HDPE Storm S€wer
24-lnch HDPE Storm Sewer
30-lnch HDPE Storm Sewer
2l-lnch Class lll RCP Storm Sewer
36-lnch Class tll RCP Storm Sewer
36-lnch Class III RCP Apron Endwall

last 2-Ft x 3-l--t curb lnlet (24-lnch)
4-Foot Diameter Storm Manhole
5-Foot Diameter Storm Manhole
6-Foot Diamet€r Storm Manhole
Connect to Existing Storm Sewer/Manhole
Wet Detention Basin Excavation and Grading
Pond Outlet Structure (4-Foot) w/ Grate

l 75-lnch Upper Layer Asphaltic Concrete Pa

30-lnch Curb and Cutter, Type HM
I l/4 Inch Dense Graded Base (8-lnch Depth)
Select Crush Material (l6Jnch Depth)
4-lnch Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk w/ Base

6-lnch Reinforced Concrete Sidewalk Base

6-lnch Concrete Driveway w/ Base

6-lnch HDPE Underdrain
Geotextile Fabric Typ€ SAS

Additive Alternat€ A
Generrl
Mobilization, Bonds & lnsurance
Traffic Control
Erosion Control
Concrete Quality Control
Site Maintenance and Restoration
Field D€nsity Testing

463
t4
I

LF
EA
EA

$29.75
$200.00
$650.00

$13,774.25
s2,800.00

$650.00

564
t4
I

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$16.779.00

$2.800.00
s650.00

l22o/o

100%
100%

-$3,004.7s

$0.00
$0.00

37
38

39
40
4t
42
43
44
45
46
47
4E

49
50

5l

$29.75
s3l .75

$34.00
$49.50

$55.25
$56.00
$93.00

$2,325.00
$3.400.00
$2,670.00
$4,850.00
$s,200.00

s850.00

$s4"000.00
$5,500.00

$0.00
$0.00
s0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$7,840.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$o.oo
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

I
150

4,7 44

4,7 44
I ?q?

4,917
4,917
3,800
240
486

, l SO

4,9r7

$25,000.00
$6.00
$9.20
$8.10

$12.50
$s.l I

$8.86
$0.50
$6.40
$6.00
$8.10
$2.00

$13,476.7 5

s762.00
$ t4.450.00

$2,920.s0
$ 13,978.25

$7.840.00
$4,650.00
$2.325.00

$44,200.00
$2,670.00
$4,850.00
$5,200.00
$3.400.00

$54,000.00
$s,s00.00

$25,000.00
$900.00

$43,644.80
$3E,426.40
$29,900.00
$25,125.87
$43,564.62
$1,900.00
$ I,536.00
$2,916.00

$19.107.90
$9,834.00

$0.00
$0.00
$o.oo
$0.00

$3,07s.00
$0.00
$0.00

$r,900.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$ r 2,495.00

$ 1.905.00

$15,334.00
$3,415.s0

$ 13,978.25

$7,840.00

$4.650.00

$2,32s.00
$44.200.00

s2,670.00
$4.850.00

$s,200.00
$1,700.00

$s4.000.00
$5,500.00

$25,000.00
$0.00

$32.982.00
$1.725.30

$27.700.00
$2s.12s.87
s43,564.62

$1.900.00

$1.536.00

$2,700.00

$ r 5,867.90

$9.834.00

$981.75
-$ 1,143.00

-$EE4.00

-$495.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$1,700.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$900.00

$10,662.80
$36,70 t.10
$2,200.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$216.00
$3,240.00

$0.00

4s3
24
42s
59

253
140

50

I
l3
I
I
I
4
I
I

LF
LF
LF
LF
LF
LF t40

246

3800

50

I

t3
I

I

I

2

I

I

LF
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
EA
LS
LS

420
60

451

69

253

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

93o/o

250o/o

l06Yo

I l7o/o

100%
l00Yo
t000/0

l00o/o

l00o/o

100%
100o/o

l00o/o

50%
100%
100%

l00o/o

00/o

760/o

40/o

93%
l00o/o

100%
l00o/o

1000/0

93o/o

83o/o

t00%

52
53

54
55

56
57
58

59
60
6t
62
63

LS
CY
SY
SY
LF
SY
SY
SF

SF

SF

LF
SY

3585
213
1970

4917

4917

240
450
1959

49t7

Roadwsy
Unclassified Excavation and Grading (Road an

Excavation Below subgrade (EBS)
2.25-lnch Lower Layer Asphaltic Concrete Pav

I
I
I

I
I

3

I

2

4

5

6

LS
LS
LS
LS
LS
EA

$1,250.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

l00o/o

l00o/o

l00o/o

0o/o

0o/o

0o/o

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$500.00
$2,000.00

of 5$600.00

llcnr
wor[ Compleled

Tot Completed & Stored to
Date

Bid
Item #

Rid

Qry this

Period

Value this

Application rolin(orI

Materials
Pres

Stored s

(c+Bl + E+F)

I)escription

Bid

Qtv

IJnil Unit

Price

Balance to linish

(B - (i)

$2,500.00
$100.00
$500.00
$500.00

$2,000.00
$200.00

$2,500.00
$t00.00
$500.00
$s00.00

$2,000.00
$600.00

0.5 0.5 $0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$2,s00.00
$t00.00
$500.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

I

Application

99



Tot. Completed & Stored lo
Date

work Completed
Itenr Meterials

Pres

Stored

lotinCorl
$

(c.Bl+ E+F)

oh

(G/B)

BalaDce to Finish

(B -G)

Bid

From Prev.

Application

Qty this

Period

value this

Applicslion

Bid
Item #

Description

Bid

Qty

Unil Unit

Price

7

E

9

l0
ll
l2
l3

t4
l5
l6
t7
l8
l9
20

2l
22

7

E

9

l0

l2
t3
l4

Storm Sewer
l2-lnch HDPE Storm Sewer
ls-lnch HDPE Storm Sewer
l8-lnch HDPE Storm Sewer

21-lnch Class lll RCP Storm Sewer
2l-lnch Class lll RCP Apron Endwall
Nyoplast 2-Ft x 3-Ft curb lnlet (24Jnch)
4-Foot Diameter Inlet Manhole
Roadway
Unclassified Excayation and Grading (Road an

Excavation Below subgrade (EBS)
2.25-lnch Lower Layer Asphaltic Concrele
1.75-lnch Upper Layer Asphaltic Concrete Pav

3olnch Curb and Gutter, Type HM
I l/4 lnch Dense Graded Base (8lnch Depth)
Select Crush Material (16-lnch Depth)
6-lnch HDPE Underdrain
Geotextile Fabric Type SAS

Additive Alternete B
Genersl
Mobilization, Bonds & Insurance
Traflic Control
Erosion Control
Concrele Quality Control
Site Maintenance and Restoration
Field Density Testing

Water Main
6-lnch PVC Water Main
8-lnch PVC Water Main
6-lnch Valve and Box
8-lnch x 6-Inch Tee
I -lnch HDPE Water Service
l-lnch Corporation, Curb Stop & Box (Saddle)

Connect to Existing Water Main
Fire Hydrant Complete

Sanitary Sewer
Sanitary Manhole w/ Outside Drop, 4-Foot Di
8-lnch PVC Sanitary Sewer

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$ I68.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

9l
661

't77

I

7

I

50

2,184
2,184
t,228
2,797
2,797
1',r1'l

2,797

LS
CY
SY
SY
LF
SY
SY
LF
SY

9l
66r
37

2797
2797
1250
2797

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

l00o/o

00/o

0%
0o/o

t000/0

1000/0

l00Yo
t02%
100%

LF
LF
LF
LP
EA
EA
EA

$29.7s
$31.75
$34.00
$s6.00

$815.00
$4,400.00
$2,7s0.00

$r2,000.00
$6.00
$9.20
$8.20

$ 12.50

s5.l I

$8.E6

$8. l0
$2.00

$2.70'1.25

s20,9E6.7s
$ 1,258.00

$9,912.00
$81s.00

$30,E00.00
$E,250.00

$12,000.00
$300.00

$20,092.80
$ 17,908.80

$15,3s0.00
s14,292.67
$24;781.42

$9,898.20
$s,594.00

$2,000.00
$r00.00
$500.00
$500.00

$2,000.00
$600.00

$764.50

$19,701.00
$ 1,350.00

$675.00
$3,8s4.00
$2,250.00

s8s0.00

$3.750.00

$5,350.00
$26,E I E.75

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$ t 5,350.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$o.oo

s2;107.25
$20.986.75

$ 1,2s8.00

$9,744.00
$815.00

$30,800.00
$8.2s0.00

$ 12,000.00

$0.00
s0.00

$0.00

$1s.350.00
$14,292.67
s24,781.42
$ 10.12s.00

$5,594.00

$0.00
$300.00

$20,092.80
$17,908.80

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

-$226.80

$0.00

174
I
,1

J

t228

0.550I

I

I

I

I

3

I

2

3

4

5

6

575

61

6

I

I

22
s97

I

I
164

6

I
I

LS
LS
LS
LS
LS
EA

LF
LF
EA
EA
LF
EA
EA
EA

$2,000.00
$ 100.00

$500.00
$s00.00

$2,000.00
$200.00

$34.7s
$33.00

$ 1,3s0.00

$675.00
$23.50

$37s.00
$850.00

$3,750.00

$ 1,000.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$2,000.00
$r00.00
$500.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

l00Yo
100%
l0OYo

0%
0%
0o/o

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$500.00
$2,000.00

$600.00

22

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
s0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$764.50

$ I E,975.00

$ 1,350.00

$67s.00

$3,854.00

$2,250.00

$8s0.00
$3,750.00

$5,350.00
$25,725.00

'100o/o

960/o

100%
t00%
100%
100%
100%
l00Vo

$0.00
$726.00

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

00

00
$0

$0
l5
l6 6ll

EA
LF

$5,350.00
$43.7s s88

1000A

96% oft
$0.00

,093.75

1000/0

1000/0

l00o/o

98o/o

l00o/o

l00o/o

1000/0

II

100



Tot. Completed & Stored to
Date

Work Complcted

$

(c*Bt + E+F)
%

(c/8)

BalaDce to Iinish

(R.C)
Qty this

Period

Value this

Application

Materials

Stored

rotinCorl

tln it Unrt

Price

Bid

Applicat,on

Bid
hem #

Descnplion

Bid

aty

t7
l8
t9

6-lnch PVC Sanitary Sewer Laleral
8-lnch x 6-lnch Sewer Wye
Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer

Roadway
Unclassified Excavation and Grading (Road

Excavation Below subgrade (EBS)
2.25-lnch Lower Layer Asphaltic Concrete Pav

1.75-lnch Upper Layer Asphaltic Concrete Pa

30-lnch Curb and Gutt€r, Type HM
I l/4 Inch Dense Graded Base (8-lnch Depth)
Select Crush Material (16-lnch Depth)
6-lnch HDPE Underdrain
Geotextile Fabric Type SAS

C}IANGE ORDERS/ EXTRAS

CHANGE ORDER #l Swampbuck to West
Getleral
Mobilization. Bonds & lnsurance
Traflic Control
Erosion Control
Concrete Quality Control
Site Maintenance and Restoration

Storm Sewer
Nyoplast 2-Ft x 3-Ft curb Inlet (24-lnch)
Nyloplast Drain Basin
l8-lnch HDPE Storm Sewer
Connecl to Existing Storm Sewer

Sanitary Sewer
Sanitary Manhole, 4-Foot Diameter, Complete
8-lnch PVC Sanitary Sewer
6-lnch PVC Sanitary Sewer Lateral
8-lnch x 6-lnch Sewer Wye
Connect to Existing Sanitary Sewer

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

180

6

I

I

50

2,342
2,342
1,243
2,81',7

2,81'7

1,226

2,E17

LF
EA
EA

LS
CY
SY
SY
LF
SY
SY
LF
SY

0o/o

0%
0%

l00o/o

1000/"

l00o/o

100%

l00Yo

t243

$27.s0
s200.00
$5s0.00

$9,500.00
s 1.00

$250.00
$s00.00

$7,300.00

$4,400.00
$4,400.00

s34.00
$550.00

$2,750.00
$43.7s
$27.s0

$200.00
$550.00

$4,950.00
$1.200.00

$550.00

$t2,000.00
$300.00

$21,546.40
$19,204.40
$ 15,537.50

$r4,394.87
$24,958.62

$8,582.00
$5,634.00

$8.800.00
$4,400.00

$16,048.00
$550.00

$5,500.00
$26,250.00

$5,775.00
$ 1,200.00

$s50.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$ 15,537.50

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
s0.00

s8,800.00
$4,400.00

$ 16,048.00

$550.00

$5,500.00
$26.t62.s0

$5.637.s0
$r,200.00

$5s0.00

$ 12,000.00

s0.00

s0.00
s0.00

$t5.537.50
$r4.394.87
$24,958.62

$E,582.00

$5,634.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$5,362.50
$1,200.00

$550.00

1080/0

1000/0

100%

-$412.50

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$87.50

$ 137.50

$0.00
$0.00

20

2t
22

23

24

25

26

27
28

$r2,000.00
$6.00
$9.20
$8.20

s12.50
$s.l I
$8.86
$7.00
$2.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$300.00

$21,546.40
$19,204.40

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

00%

I

2

3

4
5

6
,7

8

9

LS
LS
LS
LS
LS

$9,500.00
$r.00

$250.00
$500.00

$7,300.00

0.7 5

0.7 5

0.7 5

$7, r 25.00

$0.75
$ I E7.50

$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$7,r 2s.00

$0.75

$ 187.50

$0.00
$0.00

$2,375.00
$0.25

$62.50
$500.00

$7,300.00

150/o
'7 50/o

7 so/o

00/"

0o/o

2

I

472
I

EA
EA
LF
EA

EA
LF
LF
EA
EA

$8.800.00
$4,400.00

$ 16,048.00

s550.00

l0
ll
t2
t3
t4

2

600
210

6

I

2

s98
205

6

I

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$5,s00.00
s26.162.50

$5.637.s0
$1.200.00

$5s0.00

t000/0

t000/0

980/"

100Yo

100%

4of5

llem

195

6

I

2817
2817
1226
2817

I

2

I

472
I

1000/0

l00o/o

l00o/o

100%

101



Ilem
Bid

aty

tlnil Unit

Price

Bid

Value

Work Compleled Materials
Pres.

Stored

lotinCorl

Tot Completed & Srored to
Date Balance to Finish

(B-G)

Bid
Item #

Descriplion [_rom Prev.

Application
Qty rhis

Period

Value this

Application

$

(c*Bt+ E+F)
%

(G/B)

l5
t6
17

l8
l9
20
2t
22
23

24
25

26
27
28
29

30

3l
32

33

34

Water Main
8-lnch PVC Water Main
6-lnch PVC Water Main
6-lnch Valve and Box
8-lnch x 6-lnch Tee
EJnch Plug
l-lnch HDPE Water Service
l-lnch Corporation, Curb Stop & Box
Rigid Polystyrene Insulation 2-Inch
Connect to Existing Water Main
Fire Hydrant Complete
Adjust Existing Water Valve

Rosdway
Excavation Common
Excavation Below subgrade (EBS)
I l/4 lnch Dense Graded Base (8-lnch Depth)
Select Crush Material (l6lnch Depth)
4-lnch Asphalt Pavement
30lnch Conrete Curb & Gutter Mountable
6-lnch HDPE Underdrain
6-Inch Concrete Driveway w/Base
Ceotextile Fabric Type SAS

TOTAL

I

50

2,720
2,720
2,020
1,136

r,195
288

2,720

LF
LF
EA
EA
EA
LF
EA
SF

EA
EA
EA

LS
CY
SY
SY
SY
LF
LF
SF

SY

$33.00

$34.75
$ l,350.00

$67s.00
$200.00

$23.50
s375.00

$2.00
$850.00

$3,750.00
$200.00

$31,900.00
$ | 5.00

$s.r I

$E.66
$17.50
$12.50

$7.00
$6.00
$2.00

$19,70r.00
$1,424.7 5

s2.700.00
$1,350.00

$200.00

$4,46s.00
$ 1.E75.00

$770.00

$850.00
$3,750.00

$200.00

s31,900.00
$750.00

$r3.E99.20
s24,099.20
$35,350.00
$14,200.00

$8,365.00
$ l,726.00
$5,440.00

$ t,4 t0,879.67

600
48
2

2
I

204
5

385
I

I

2720
2720

I195

2720

$19,800.00
$ t,668.00
$2,700.00
$r,350.00

$200.00
$4,794.00
$ I,875.00

$770.00
$850.00

$3,7s0.00
$0.00

$31,900.00
$0.00

$13,899.20
$24,099.20

$0.00
$0.00

$E,365.00
$0.00

$5,440.00

$261 0.90

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
s0.00
s0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$0.00

$19.800.00
$1,668.00
$2,700.00

$ r,350.00

$200.00

$4,794.00

$ 1,875.00

$770.00

$8s0.00
$3.750.00

$0.00

$3 r,900.00
$0.00

$t 3,899.20

$24,099.20
$0.00
$0.00

$8,365.00
$0.00

$5,440.00

$l 186 t72.42

t0to/o
I lTYr
t000/0

1000/0

1000/0

1070/0

l00Yr
t000/0

1000/0

l00o/o

0(,/o

t00l,/0

0o/o

100%
l00o/o

00/o

0o/o

100l,/0

Oo/o

1000/0

-$99.00
-s243.25

$0.00

$0.00
$0.00

-$329.00

$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

$200.00

$0.00
$750.00

$0.00
$0.00

$3s,350.00
$ r4,200.00

$0.00
$1,728.00

$0.00

$224

Preprred by the [ngineers' Joint Contr{ct Documents (]ommittee rnd cndorscd by the Associsted (;enersl (lontrtcto rs of Americlt,nd the Construction Speciricrtions lnstitute,

5of5

'707.25

EJCDC No. C-620 (2007 Edition)

59?

4t
2

2

I
190

5

3E5

I

I

I

102



DISASTER DECLARATION 

WHEREAS on July 19 and 20, 2019, a disaster, namely severe storm events has struck 

the City of Abbotsford, WI; and 

WHEREAS, because of such emergency conditions, the Common Council, is unable to 

meet with promptness; and 

WHEREAS,  it is necessary and expedient for the health, safety, welfare and good order 

of the City to proclaim that emergency conditions exits; and   

WHEREAS, the disaster has caused the City of Abbotsford to expand, commit and 

exhaust all of its available resources; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Abbotsford is asking for county assistance and requests the 

county to advise the State of Wisconsin of our emergency conditions: 

NOW, THEREFORE, pursuant to sections 323.11 and 323.14 (4) of the Wisconsin 

Statutes, as Chief Elected Official of the City of Abbotsford in testimony whereof I have hereunto 

set my hand and have caused the great seal of the City of Abbotsford to be affixed. 

Done at the City hall this 5th day of August, 2019. 

__________________________________ 
Mayor Lori Voss 

NOTE: Under 323.14(4)(b), Stats., this proclamation shall be subject to ratification, alteration, 
modification or repeal by the governing body as soon as that body can meet, but the subsequent 
action taken by the governing body shall not affect the proper validity of this proclamation.  

ATTEST: 

_______________________________________ 
Dan Grady – City Administrator/Clerk/Treasurer 

103



From: Natalyn Jannene
To: Dan Grady
Subject: Naming of the new subdivision
Date: Friday, July 5, 2019 8:39:48 PM

Hello!

Here are my family’s ideas for the name of the new subdivision.

Cole Jannene - Schilling Meadows - named after the lady who sold the City the land. 

Natalyn Jannene - Olde Abbott Manor - after Edwin Abbott who the City was named after. 

Preston Belanger - Twin County Crossings - because we are split between Clark and Marathon
County and “crossings” because of HWY 13 and 29. 

Hope those help! 

This email message (and attachments) may contain confidential AbbyBank information. If you
are not the intended recipient, you cannot use, distribute, or copy the message or attachments.
In such a case, please notify the sender by return email immediately and erase all copies of the
message and attachments. Opinions, conclusions, and other information in this message and
attachments that do not relate to official business are neither given nor endorsed by
AbbyBank.

104

mailto:natalynj@abbybank.com
mailto:d.grady@ci.abbotsford.wi.us


July 22, 2019 

Todd Medenwaldt 
Abbotsford, City 
PO Box 589 
Abbotsford, WI 54405    

Subject: Public Notice Reminder Letter 
Reissuance to WPDES General Permit No. WI-0046540-06-0 
Permittee Name: Abbotsford, City 
Facility Name: Abbotsford Eau Pleine Water Treatment Plant 
Facility Address: Maple Road, Abbotsford, WI 54405 
Site ID (FIN): 61057 
Facility ID (FID):   

Dear Permittee: 

The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (hereafter Department) has public noticed its intent to reissue 
the Water Treatment and Conditioning Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (WPDES) General 
Permit No. WI-0046540-06-0 on July 23, 2019. The department is sending this letter out to all facilities that 
currently have coverage under the Potable Water Treatment and Conditioning WPDES General Permit No. WI-
0046540-05-0 as indicated by our records. This general permit covers waste disposal discharges (e.g. backwash 
water, regeneration water, concentrate or reject water, unit washwater or drainage water, and decant water or 
supernatant) from water treatment and conditioning processes to surface waters or indirectly to groundwaters via 
seepage. You will have 30-days (August 22, 2019) to comment on the proposed permit. Public comment 
procedures can be found on the public notice. A summary of proposed changes can be found on the public notice 
as well. More specific changes from the previous permit and justification for those changes can be found in the 
fact sheet for the proposed permit. The proposed general permit, fact sheet, and the public notice are available on 
the DNR webpage for “WPDES Permits on public notice” here: 
http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Wastewater/PublicNotices.html. To view a public notice, click on the date of public notice 
indicated under the column heading entitled "Notice Publication Date". The proposed permit can be downloaded 
by clicking on the file size indicated under the column entitled "Permit Draft". The fact sheet can be downloaded 
by clicking on the file size indicated under the column entitled "Supporting Documents". 

If you have any questions, please contact me by email: Trevor.Moen@Wisconsin.gov or by phone: (920) 424-
7883. 

Thank you, 

Trevor Moen 
Wastewater Engineer 
Bureau of Water Quality 

Tony Evers, Governor 
Preston D. Cole, Secretary 

 Telephone 608-266-2621 
Toll Free 1-888-936-7463 

TTY Access via relay - 711 

State of Wisconsin 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
Oshkosh Service Center 
625 E County Rd Y STE 700 
Oshkosh WI 54901-9731 

105

http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Wastewater/PublicNotices.html
mailto:Trevor.Moen@Wisconsin.gov


WPDES Permit No. WI-0046540-06-0 

WPDES PERMIT 
STATE OF WISCONSIN 

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
GENERAL PERMIT TO DISCHARGE UNDER THE  

WISCONSIN POLLUTANT DISCHARGE ELIMINATION SYSTEM 

In compliance with the provisions of Chapter 283, Wisconsin Statutes, any facility engaged in 

WATER TREATMENT AND/OR CONDITIONING 

located in the State of Wisconsin and meeting the applicability criteria listed in this General Permit, is 
permitted to discharge wastewaters from these operations directly to surface waters of the state and/or 
indirectly to groundwaters of the state in accordance with the effluent limitations, monitoring 
requirements and other conditions set forth in this permit. 

State of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (hereafter department) 
For the Secretary 

By _________________________ 
Adrian Stocks 
Director, Bureau of Water Quality 

_________________________ 
Date Permit Signed/Issued  

PERMIT TERM: EFFECTIVE DATE – November 1, 2019 EXPIRATION DATE – October 31, 2024    

106



WPDES Permit No. WI-0046540-06-0 
Water Treatment and/or Conditioning 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
1 APPLICABILITY CRITERIA ............................................................................................................................... 1 

2 OBTAINING PERMIT COVERAGE .................................................................................................................... 4 

3 SURFACE WATER DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS ...................................................................................... 5 

4 GROUNDWATER DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS ....................................................................................... 12 

5 IMPAIRED WATERS & TMDL REQUIREMENTS FOR SURFACE WATER DISCHARGES ................ 16 

6 WATER TREATMENT ADDITIVES ................................................................................................................. 17 

7 STANDARD REQUIREMENTS .......................................................................................................................... 18 

8 SUMMARY OF REPORTS DUE ......................................................................................................................... 25 

107



1 

1  Applicability Criteria 

 Discharges Covered 
This permit is applicable to water treatment and conditioning facilities that result in any of the 
following discharges to a water of the state: 

 Discharges of backwash water;

 Discharges of regeneration water;

 Discharges of concentrate or reject water;

 Discharges of unit washwater or drainage water;

 Discharges of decant water or supernatant; and

 Discharges of other similar wastewaters as determined by the department to be applicable
under this general permit on case-by-case basis.

This general permit may cover the following water treatment and conditioning processes: 

 Iron/manganese filters;

 Demineralizers or ion exchange units;

 Granular media filters;

 Membrane filtration units;

 Lime/soda ash softeners;

 Coagulation/flocculation and sedimentation units; or

 Other water treatment and conditioning processes.

 Discharges Not Covered 
The discharges listed in this section are not applicable to this general permit and may require 
application under an another general or individual WPDES permit. The following discharges to the 
waters of the state are not applicable to this general permit: 

 The disposal or land application of sludges or precipitated solids from water treatment
systems;

 Discharges from sodium or potassium cycle ion exchange regeneration units;

 Discharges from water treatment systems operated to meet drinking water standards for
arsenic, radium or other radionuclides;

 Discharges from water treatment processes that significantly concentrate metals and have a
reasonable potential to exceed the surface water quality standards in chs. NR 105 and NR
106, Wis. Adm. Code or groundwater standards in ch. NR 140, Wis. Adm. Code;

 Discharges of domestic wastewater, contaminated stormwater, contaminated groundwater,
industrial process wastewaters, whey, whey permeate, whey filtrate, contact cooling water,
noncontact cooling water, cooling tower blowdown, leachates, boiler blowdown, or
condensates;

 Discharges from the development or rehabilitation of water supply wells;

108



2 

 Discharges from the draining, flushing, leakage testing, or hydrostatic testing of water
distribution or storage systems;

 Discharges to a seepage cell or pond system that have a maximum monthly average flow rate
equal to or greater than 15,000 gallons per day and require groundwater monitoring in
accordance with s. NR 214.21, Wis. Adm. Code. The department may waive the requirement
to install a groundwater monitoring well system, allowing facilities to remain eligible under
this permit pursuant to s. NR 214.21(1)(d), Wis. Adm. Code;

 Discharges from any accidental or unplanned release, spill, leak, or overflow;

 Discharges containing water treatment additives where the additive use is not approved in
writing by the department;

 Discharges to a wetland where the department has determined that the discharge of pollutants
will not meet the wetland protection requirements of ch. NR 103, Wis. Adm. Code;

 Discharges directly to an outstanding resource water as defined in s. NR 102.10, Wis. Adm.
Code, or discharges that would lower the water quality of downstream outstanding resource
waters;

 Discharges directly to an exceptional resource water as defined in s. NR 102.11, Wis. Adm.
Code, or discharges that would lower the water quality of downstream exceptional water
resources;

 Discharges that result in the significant lowering of water quality in fish and aquatic life
waters identified in s. NR 102.13, Wis. Adm. Code, Great Lakes system waters, and variance
waters identified within ss. NR 104.05 through 104.10, Wis. Adm. Code;

 The increased discharge to fish and aquatic life waters identified in s. NR 102.13, Wis. Adm.
Code, Great Lakes system waters, and variance waters identified within ss. NR 104.05
through 104.10, Wis. Adm. Code;

 Discharges of hazardous substances that are required to be reported under ch. NR 706, Wis.
Adm. Code;

 Discharges that will adversely impact endangered and threatened species, including causing
an incidental take, unless the department determines that the discharges comply with the
endangered and threatened resource protection requirements of s. 29.604, Wis. Stats., and ch.
NR 27, Wis. Adm. Code;

 Discharges that will adversely affect any historic property that is listed property, or on the
inventory or on the list of locally designated historic places under s. 44.45, Wis. Stats., unless
the department determines that the discharges will not have an adverse effect on any historic
property pursuant to s. 44.40(3), Wis. Stats.;

 Discharges from properties within tribal lands. The Tribe or U.S. EPA regulates discharges
within tribal lands (land owned by or held in trust for the tribes and land within recognized
reservation boundaries);

 Discharges containing substances that will have a reasonable potential to exceed the surface
water quality standards in chs. NR 102, NR 104, NR 105, NR 106, NR 207, and NR 217 Wis.
Adm. Code, or other applicable surface water quality standards; and

 Discharges containing substances that will have a reasonable potential to exceed the
groundwater quality standards in ch. NR 140, Wis. Adm. Code.

 Permit Exclusions 
The discharges listed below are excluded from requiring coverage under this WPDES permit: 

109



3 

 Discharges to a holding tank that are pumped and hauled to a publicly owned treatment
works;

 Discharges to a sanitary sewer system that conveys the wastewater to a publicly-owned
treatment works; and

 Discharges to a sanitary sewer system that conveys the wastewater to a privately-owned
treatment works.

110



4 

2 Obtaining Permit Coverage 
An applicant shall comply with the following requirements to obtain coverage and authorization to 
discharge to the waters of the state under this general permit. 

 Submittal of a Notice of Intent 
The applicant shall submit a complete notice of intent (NOI) under this general permit to the 
department at least thirty (30) business days before the expected start date of discharge. The NOI can 
be found at http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/wastewater/GeneralPermits.html. NOIs shall be submitted 
electronically, if made available by the department, or mailed to the attention of “Wastewater General 
Permits” at the headquarters office of the region in which the project is located unless otherwise 
indicated on the department’s webpage. A list of the department general permit reviewers for each 
region with contact information can be found at 
http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/wastewater/GeneralPermits.html. Please scroll to the “How to Apply” section 
and click the department region that you are located. 

Note: The department is in the process of developing and requiring electronic submissions of NOIs to 
discharge under this general permit. Once the NOIs are online, paper copies will be no longer 
accepted. The department will post this update on our general permit webpage. 

 Incomplete NOI 
The department may require an applicant to submit additional information if the department 
determines a NOI is incomplete. The applicant shall submit the requested information. 

 Granting of Coverage 
All applicants meeting the applicability requirements of this general permit shall receive a letter from 
the department granting coverage under this general permit prior to commencing discharge to the 
waters of the state. If the applicant has not received a coverage letter from the department granting 
coverage under this general permit, an applicant may not discharge to the waters of the state until 
coverage under this general permit is granted by the department. 

Note: If the department notifies an applicant that a discharge is ineligible for coverage under this 
general permit but still requires WPDES permit coverage, the applicant shall apply for and obtain 
coverage under an individual WPDES permit (or alternative general permit, if available) prior to 
discharging to the waters of the state. The necessary steps to apply for coverage under an individual 
permit can be found at the department website: 
http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/wastewater/PermitApplications.html..

111



 

5 
 

3 Surface Water Discharge Requirements 
The requirements of this section only apply to surface water discharges. Surface water discharges means 
any discernible, confined and discrete conveyance system including but not limited to any pipe, ditch, 
channel, tunnel, conduit, swale, or storm sewer that will carry wastewater to surface waters within the 
state of Wisconsin. Discharges to a storm water pond that is hydraulically connected to a surface water is 
considered a surface water discharge. 

 Sampling Point(s) 
The discharge(s) shall be limited to the waste type(s) designated for the listed sampling point(s). 

Sampling Point Designation 
Sampling 
Point 
Number 

Sampling Point Location, WasteType/Sample Contents and Treatment Description (as applicable) 

001 

Discharges from water treatment and/or conditioning processes shall be sampled following treatment (if 
applicable) and prior to discharge to surface water or wetlands via Outfall 001. The samples taken shall 
be representative of the discharge that consists solely of the treated effluent before mixing with any 
other water. Sampling is only required when wastewater is being discharged during the reporting period. 

 Monitoring Requirements and Effluent Limitations 
The permittee shall comply with the following monitoring requirements and limitations for each 
applicable outfall.  

 Sampling Point (Outfall) 001 – Surface Water Discharge 
Monitoring Requirements and Effluent Limitations 

Parameter Limit Type 
Limit and 

Units 
Sample 

Frequency 
Sample 
Type 

Notes 

Flow Rate  gpd Daily Total Daily See Section 3.4 

Suspended Solids, Total 
Daily Max 40 mg/L 

Monthly Grab See Sections 3.3 and 3.5 
Monthly Avg 40 mg/L 

pH Field 
Daily Min 6.0 s.u. 

Monthly Grab See Sections 3.3 and 3.6 
Daily Max 9.0 s.u. 

Chlorine, Total Residual 

Daily Max 19 µg/L 

Monthly Grab See Sections 3.3 and 3.7  Weekly Avg 7.3 µg/L 

Monthly Avg 7.3 µg/L 

Dissolved Oxygen Daily Min 
See Permit 

Note 
Monthly Grab See Sections 3.3 and 3.8 

Chloride Daily Max 760 mg/L Monthly Grab See Sections 3.3 and 3.9 

112



 

6 
 

Monitoring Requirements and Effluent Limitations 

Parameter Limit Type 
Limit and 

Units 
Sample 

Frequency 
Sample 
Type 

Notes 

Weekly Avg 400 mg/L 

Monthly Avg 400 mg/L 

Potassium Permanganate  

Daily Max 14 μg/L 

Monthly Measure 
See Sections 3.3 and 
3.10 

Weekly Avg 0.77 μg/L 

Monthly Avg 0.77 µg/L 

Manganese, Total 
Recoverable 

Daily Max  1700 µg/L 

Monthly Grab Comp 
See Sections 3.3 and 
3.11 

Weekly Avg 93 µg/L 

Monthly Avg 93 µg/L 

Iron, Total Recoverable Narrative 
No Visible 

Color 
Daily 

Visual 
Inspection 

Record in a daily log. 
See Sections 3.3 and 
3.12 

Cadmium, Total 
Recoverable 

- mg/L Monthly Grab Comp 
See Sections 3.3 and 
3.13 

Chromium (+3), Total 
Recoverable 

- mg/L Monthly Grab Comp 
See Sections 3.3 and 
3.13 

Copper, Total Recoverable - mg/L Monthly Grab Comp 
See Sections 3.3 and 
3.13 

Lead, Total Recoverable - mg/L Monthly Grab Comp 
See Sections 3.3 and 
3.13 

Nickel, Total Recoverable - mg/L Monthly Grab Comp 
See Sections 3.3 and 
3.13 

Zinc, Total Recoverable - mg/L Monthly Grab Comp 
See Sections 3.3 and 
3.13 

Hardness, Total as CaCO3 - mg/L Monthly Grab Comp 
See Sections 3.3 and 
3.13 

Phosphorus, Total - mg/L Quarterly Grab See Section 3.14 

Water Treatment 
Additives - Specify 

TBD TBD Monthly Grab Refer to Section 6 

 Sampling Frequency Reduction 
The department may approve in writing a sampling frequency reduction for total suspended solids, 
pH, total residual chlorine, dissolved oxygen, chloride, potassium permanganate, total recoverable 
manganese, total hardness, total recoverable cadmium, total recoverable chromium, total recoverable 
copper, total recoverable lead, total recoverable nickel, or total recoverable zinc. The permittee must 
comply with the following conditions: 

113



7 

1. To allow a reduced sampling frequency of quarterly rather than monthly, the permittee has
collected 24 representative samples of the discharge or two years of monthly discharge data
and the average of the monitoring results are less than 50% of the discharge limitations for
total suspended solids, total residual chlorine, chloride, potassium permanganate, or total
recoverable manganese. For pH, the average pH concentration must be between 6.0 to 9.0
s.u. For dissolved oxygen, the average concentration must be greater than 5.0 mg/L.

2. To allow a reduced sampling frequency of once per six months rather than monthly, the
permittee has collected 24 representative samples of the discharge or two years of monthly
discharge data and the average of the monitoring results are less than 25% of the discharge
limitations for total suspended solids, total residual chlorine, chloride, potassium
permanganate, or total recoverable manganese. For pH, the average pH concentration must
be between 6.5 to 8.5 s.u. For dissolved oxygen, the average concentration must greater than
6.0 mg/L. The sampling frequency for cadmium, chromium, copper, lead, nickel, zinc, and
effluent total hardness may be reduced to once per six months if the permittee has collected
24 representative samples of the discharge or two years of monthly discharge data and water
quality based effluent limits are determined not necessary based on chs. NR 105 and NR
106, Wis. Adm. Code.

3. Permittees requesting reduced sampling frequencies must submit a sampling frequency
reduction request to the department with supporting monitoring results. Permittees may use
historical discharge data, if available, in the sampling frequency reduction request.

4. Permittees may only receive reduced sampling frequencies if they are in substantial
compliance with the limits and have not had any violations with the permit limitations during
the two-year period or 24 representative samples.

5. Sampling frequency reductions are only valid for the term of the permit. Permittees shall
reapply each permit term.

6. If a limit exceedance occurs, a monthly monitoring frequency shall resume the following
month until the permittee can comply with conditions 1. or 2. above.

 Flow Rate 
The permittee shall estimate the total daily flow rate of the discharge. The flow rate may be estimated 
by the readings of a water meter on the discharge, readings from a calibrated pump handling the 
discharge, the total gallons pumped divided by the operating period of the pump per day or any other 
approved flow estimating methods in s. NR 218.04(15), Wis. Adm. Code. The permittee may request, 
in writing, the approval of an additional method for estimating flow. 

 Flow Rate Control 
The permittee shall control the flow rate to minimize the stream bank erosion, resuspension of 
sediment, downstream flooding, or property damage. 

 Total Suspended Solids (TSS) 
The permittee shall monitor the discharge for TSS and limit the TSS concentration to 40 mg/L or less. 
For the filter backwash water discharges, the TSS grab sample must be taken during the first five 
minutes of backwashing. The monthly average limit of 40 mg/L applies to continuous dischargers 
only.  

 Filter Backwashing 
If available, filter backwash discharges may have to be routed for the first thirty (30) seconds of 
the backwash cycle to a proper sanitary sewer system or other holding tank to meet TSS limits. 

114



8 

 pH Monitoring 
The permittee shall maintain the pH of the discharge between 6.0 to 9.0 standard units except if the 
department approves a higher daily maximum pH limit for lime softening discharges based on 
Section 3.6.1. 

 pH Monitoring for Lime Softening  
For lime softening dischargers, the permittee may request, at the time of the submittal of the 
Notice of Intent (NOI), a daily maximum pH limit of 11 s.u. if the receiving water flow (7−day 
flow that occurs once in 10 years) to average effluent flow ratio is greater than or equal to 2:1. 
Those facilities that fail to have enough mixing and dilution will have to meet a daily maximum 
pH limit of 9.0 s.u. at the end of the pipe. 

 Total Residual Chlorine (TRC) 
The permittee shall monitor the discharge for TRC and limit the TRC concentration to 19 µg/L as 
daily maximum and 7.3 µg/L as weekly average except if the department approves a higher TRC 
limit based on Section 3.7.1. The monthly average limit of 7.3 µg/L applies to continuous dischargers 
only. This permit requires TRC monitoring and limits only if the permittee chlorinates for disinfection 
purposes prior to discharge or the discharge contains chlorine-based additives. 

 TRC Limitations to High Flow Streams 
The permittee may request, at the time of the submittal of the Notice of Intent (NOI), a daily 
maximum limit of 38 µg/L and weekly and monthly average limit of 11 µg/L if the receiving 
water flow (7−day flow that occurs once in 10 years) to average effluent flow ratio is greater than 
or equal to 2:1. Those facilities that fail to have enough mixing and dilution will have to meet a 
daily maximum limit of 19 µg/L and a weekly and monthly average limit of 7.3 µg/L at the end of 
the pipe. 

 Dissolved Oxygen (DO) 
The permittee shall monitor the discharge for DO and limit the DO of the discharge to the minimum 
DO levels provided in Table 1. This permit requires DO monitoring and limits only if the water is 
chemically dechlorinated prior to discharge. 

Table 1. DO Limits 

Stream Classification DO Limit (mg/L) 

All Surface Waters excluding trout 
streams 

5 

Trout Streams 6 

Trout Spawning Season 7 

Note: Classified trout streams can be found here: 
https://dnr.wi.gov/topic/fishing/trout/streammaps.html. Trout spawning season runs September 15th 
through May 15th for all classified trout streams, the Root River (Racine County), the Kewaunee 
River (Kewaunee County) and Strawberry Creek (Door County). The regional Department Fisheries 
Biologist may waive or modify timing restrictions in writing. To find your biologist and request in 
writing a waiver or modification of trout spawning timing restrictions for your facility, use the 
webpage here: https://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Fishing/people/index.html. 

115



9 

 Chlorides 
The permittee shall monitor the discharge for chlorides and limit the chloride concentration of the 
discharge to 760 mg/L as daily maximum and 400 mg/L as a weekly average except if the department 
approves a higher chloride limit based on Section 3.9.1. The monthly average limit of 400 mg/L 
applies to continuous dischargers only. This permit requires chloride monitoring and limits only if the 
discharge is from softening or ion exchange treatment processes. 

 Chloride Limitations to High Flow Streams 
The permittee may request, at the time of the submittal of the Notice of Intent (NOI), a daily 
maximum limit of 1500 mg/L and weekly and monthly average limits of 600 µg/L if the 
receiving water flow (7−day flow that occurs once in 10 years) to average effluent flow ratio is 
greater than or equal to 2:1 and the receiving water is not on the 303(d) list for a chloride 
impairment. Those facilities that fail to have enough mixing and dilution will have to meet a daily 
maximum limit of 760 µg/L and a weekly and monthly average limit of 400 µg/L at the end of 
the pipe. 

 Potassium Permanganate Monitoring 
The permittee shall monitor the discharge for potassium permanganate and limit the potassium 
permanganate concentration to 14 µg/L as a daily maximum and 0.77 µg/L as a weekly average 
except if the department approves a higher weekly average limit based on Section 3.10.1. The 
monthly average limit of 0.77 µg/L applies to continuous dischargers only. The permit requires 
potassium permanganate monitoring and limits only if the discharge is from the water treatment 
processes that use potassium permanganate. 

 Potassium Permanganate Limitations to High Flow Streams 
The permittee may request, at the time of the submittal of the Notice of Intent (NOI), a weekly 
and monthly average limit of 1.2 µg/L if the receiving water flow (7−day flow that occurs once in 
10 years) to average effluent flow ratio is greater than or equal to 2:1. Those facilities that fail to 
have enough mixing and dilution will have to meet a weekly and monthly average limit of 0.77 
µg/L at the end of the pipe. 

 Test Method for Potassium Permanganate 
When testing for potassium permanganate, the permittee shall use approved Spectrophotometric 
Method #4500 – KMNO4 from the Standard Methods for the Examination of Waters and 
Wastewater or another EPA approved test method or department approved test method from ch. 
NR 219, Wis. Adm. Code. 

 Total Recoverable Manganese 
The permittee shall monitor the discharge for total recoverable manganese and limit the discharge 
concentration to 1700 µg/L as a daily maximum and 93 µg/L as a weekly average except if the 
department approves a higher weekly average limit based on Section 3.11.1. The monthly average 
limit of 93 µg/L applies to continuous dischargers only.  The permit requires total recoverable 
manganese monitoring and limits only if the discharge is from an iron/manganese removal process. 

 Total Recoverable Manganese Limitation to High Flow Streams 
The permittee may request, at the time of the submittal of the Notice of Intent (NOI), a weekly 
and monthly average limit of 140 µg/L if the receiving water flow (7−day flow that occurs once 
in 10 years) to average effluent flow ratio is greater than or equal to 2:1. Those facilities that fail 
to have enough mixing and dilution will have to meet a weekly and monthly average limit of 93 
µg/L at the end of the pipe. 

116



10 

 Total Recoverable Iron 
The permittees shall on a daily basis visually inspect the discharge for a yellowish or reddish-brown 
color and record the results in a daily log. The presence of yellowish or reddish-brown color in the 
discharge shall be considered an exceedance of the narrative permit limit and shall be reported to the 
department. The permit requires total recoverable iron monitoring and limits only if the discharge is 
from an iron/manganese removal process. 

 Metals and Hardness Monitoring 
The permittee shall monitor the discharge for total hardness, total recoverable cadmium, total 
recoverable chromium, total recoverable copper, total recoverable lead, total recoverable nickel, and 
total recoverable zinc. The permit requires metals and hardness monitoring and limits only if the 
discharge is from a membrane filtration unit. 

 Metals and Hardness Monitoring Waiver 
The department may approve in writing a monitoring waiver for total recoverable cadmium, total 
recoverable chromium, total recoverable copper, total recoverable lead, total recoverable nickel, 
total recoverable zinc, and total hardness monitoring. Permittees requesting a waiver must comply 
with the following conditions: 

1. The permittee has collected 11 representative samples of the discharge for total
recoverable cadmium, total recoverable chromium, total recoverable copper, total
recoverable lead, total recoverable nickel, or total recoverable zinc and results show no
detections. The Department may consider samples that exceed the limit of detection, but
are less than the limit of quantitation for this waiver if there is not a consistent pattern
within this range;

2. The permittee certifies that there is no reasonable chance that metals will be present from
the water treatment processes; and

3. The permittee submits a monitoring waiver request to the department with supporting
monitoring results. Permittees may use historical discharge data, if available, for this
monitoring waiver request.

4. Metals monitoring waivers are only valid for the term of the permit. Permittees shall
reapply each permit term.

 Total Phosphorus Monitoring 
The permit requires total phosphorus monitoring only if the discharge is from a water treatment 
process that uses polyphosphates additives. 

 Surface Water Uses and Criteria 
In accordance with s. NR 102.04, Wis. Adm. Code, surface water uses and criteria are established to 
govern water management decisions. Practices attributable to municipal, industrial, commercial, 
domestic, agricultural, land development or other activities shall be controlled so that all surface 
waters, including the mixing zone, meet the following conditions at all times and under all flow and 
water level conditions: 

a) Substances that will cause objectionable deposits on the shore or in the bed of a body of
water, shall not be present in such amounts as to interfere with public rights in waters of the
state.

b) Floating or submerged debris, oil, scum or other material shall not be present in such amounts
as to interfere with public rights in waters of the state.

117



 

11 
 

c) Materials producing color, odor, taste or unsightliness shall not be present in such amounts as 
to interfere with public rights in waters of the state. 

d) Substances in concentrations or in combinations which are toxic or harmful to humans shall 
not be present in amounts found to be of public health significance, nor shall substances be 
present in amounts which are acutely harmful to animal, plant or aquatic life

118



12 

4 Groundwater Discharge Requirements 
The requirements of this section only apply to groundwater discharges. Groundwater discharge means any 
wastewater (treated or untreated) that is allowed to infiltrate or seep into the soil from a permeable surface 
that may impact groundwater quality. Discharges to a storm water pond that is not hydraulically 
connected to a surface water and completely confined on the property of the permittee is considered a 
groundwater discharge. 

 Sampling Point(s) 
The discharge(s) shall be limited to the waste type(s) designated for the listed sampling point(s). 

Sampling Point Designation 
Sampling 
Point 
Number 

Sampling Point Location, WasteType/Sample Contents and Treatment Description (as applicable) 

002 

Discharges from water treatment and/or conditioning processes shall be sampled following treatment (if 
applicable) and prior to discharge to seepage systems then to groundwater via Outfall 002. The samples 
taken shall be representative of the discharge that consists solely of the treated effluent before mixing 
with any other water. Sampling is only required when wastewater is being discharged during the 
reporting period. 

 Monitoring Requirements and Effluent Limitations 
The permittee shall comply with the following monitoring requirements and limitations for each 
applicable outfall.  

 Sampling Point (Outfall) 002 – Groundwater Discharge 
Monitoring Requirements and Effluent Limitations 

Parameter Limit Type 
Limit and 

Units 
Sample 

Frequency 
Sample 

Type 
Notes 

Flow Rate gpd Daily Total Daily See Section 4.4 

Chloride, Dissolved Monthly Avg 125 mg/L Monthly Grab See Sections 4.3 and 4.5 

Manganese, Dissolved Monthly Avg 25 µg/L Monthly Grab See Sections 4.3 and 4.6 

Iron, Dissolved Monthly Avg 150 µg/L Monthly Grab See Sections 4.3 and 4.6 

Cadmium, Dissolved Monthly Avg 0.5 µg/L Monthly Grab See Sections 4.3 and 4.7 

Chromium, Dissolved Monthly Avg 10 µg/L Monthly Grab See Sections 4.3 and 4.7 

Copper, Dissolved Monthly Avg 130 µg/L Monthly Grab See Sections 4.3 and 4.7 

Lead, Dissolved Monthly Avg 1.5 µg/L Monthly Grab See Sections 4.3 and 4.7 

Nickel, Dissolved Monthly Avg  20 µg/L Monthly Grab See Sections 4.3 and 4.7 

Zinc, Dissolved Monthly Avg 2.5 mg/L Monthly Grab See Sections 4.3 and 4.7 

119



13 

 Sampling Frequency Reduction 
The department may approve in writing a sampling frequency reduction for dissolved chlorides, 
dissolved manganese, dissolved iron, dissolved cadmium, dissolved chromium, dissolved copper, 
dissolved lead, dissolved nickel, and dissolved zinc. The permittee must comply with the following 
conditions: 

1. To allow a reduced sampling frequency of quarterly rather than monthly, the permittee must
collect 24 representative samples of the discharge or two years of monthly discharge data
and the average of the monitoring results are less than 50% of the discharge limitations.

2. To allow a reduced sampling frequency of once per six months rather than monthly, the
permittee must collect 24 representative samples of the discharge or two years of monthly
discharge data and the average of the monitoring results are less than 25% of the discharge
limitations.

3. Permittees requesting reduced sampling frequencies must submit a sampling frequency
reduction request to the department with supporting monitoring results. Permittees may use
historical discharge data, if available, in the sampling frequency reduction request.

4. Permittees may only receive reduced sampling frequencies if they are in substantial
compliance with the limits and have not had any violations with the permit limitations during
the two-year period or 24 representative samples.

5. Sampling frequency reductions are only valid for the term of the permit. Permittees shall
reapply each permit term.

6. If a limit exceedance occurs, a monthly monitoring frequency shall resume the following
month until the permittee can comply with conditions 1. or 2. above.

 Flow Rate 
The permittee shall estimate the total daily flow rate of the discharge. The permittee is not required to 
report flow rate if the permittee is not required to sample for any other parameters. The flow rate may 
be estimated by the readings of a water meter on the discharge, readings from a calibrated pump 
handling the discharge, the total gallons pumped divided by the operating period of the pump per day 
or any other approved flow estimating methods in s. NR 218.04(15), Wis. Adm. Code. The permittee 
may request, in writing, the approval of an additional method for estimating flow. 

 Dissolved Chlorides 
The permittee shall monitor the discharge for chlorides and limit the chloride concentration of the 
discharge to the levels in Section 4.2.1. This permit requires chloride monitoring and limits only if the 
discharge is from a softening or ion exchange treatment process.  

 Dissolved Manganese and Iron 
The permittee shall monitor the discharge for dissolved manganese and iron and limit the 
concentration of these metals to the levels in Section 4.2.1. The permit requires dissolved manganese 
and iron monitoring and limits only if the discharge is from an iron/manganese removal process. 

 Metals Monitoring 
The permittee shall monitor the discharge for dissolved cadmium, chromium, copper, lead, nickel, 
and zinc and limit concentration of these metals to the levels in Section 4.2.1. The permit requires 
dissolved metals monitoring and limits only if the discharge is from a membrane filtration unit. 

120



14 

 Metals Monitoring Waiver 
The department may approve in writing a monitoring waiver for dissolved cadmium, chromium, 
copper, lead, nickel, and zinc. Permittees requesting a waiver must comply with the following 
conditions: 

1. The permittee has collected 11 representative samples of the discharge and the upper 99th

percentile of the monitoring results does not exceed the discharge limitations for
dissolved cadmium, chromium, copper, lead, nickel, and zinc;

2. The permittee certifies that there is no reasonable chance that metals will be present from
the water treatment processes;

3. The permittee submits a monitoring waiver request to the department with supporting
monitoring results. Permittees may use historical discharge data, if available, for this
monitoring waiver request; and

4. Metals monitoring waivers are only valid for the term of the permit. Permittees shall
reapply each permit term.

 Solids Removal 
The permittee shall visually inspect seepage areas during times of discharge to check that the 
infiltrative capacity of the soils is sustained. Any accumulated solids shall be removed from seepage 
areas to maintain the infiltrative capacity of the soils. 

 Discharge Location 
The permittee shall direct the discharge to grass, soil, gravel areas, or seepage areas to the extent 
possible and infiltration of the discharge shall be maximized. 

 Discharge Rate  
The permittee shall limit the discharge flow rate to a rate that can infiltrate into the soil surface. 

 Runoff Control 
The permittee shall limit the discharge flow rate to prevent the runoff from the site into surface 
waters. 

 Rainfall Events 
The water may not be discharged during any rainfall events that cause runoff from the site into 
surface waters except if the infiltration area is located such that runoff from the area cannot enter a 
surface water. 

 Erosion Control 
The permittee shall limit the discharge flow rate to prevent erosion when the vegetative cover has not 
developed sufficiently to anchor the soil and create the filter mat necessary for effective wastewater 
treatment. 

 Adequate Design 
Wastewater discharges to absorption, seepage, or stormwater pond systems shall be limited so that the 
discharge volume combined with the precipitation from a 10−year frequency, 24−hour duration 
rainfall event does not reduce the available freeboard to less than one foot below the top of the dike. 

121



15 

 Winter Operations 
Discharges to groundwater may be allowed during frozen conditions provided infiltration is adequate 
to prevent long term ponding or pooling of water. Since infiltration decreases in the winter, the 
department may require storage during cold weather when feasible. 

 Toxic Substances 
The discharge shall not contain substances in concentrations or combinations which are toxic or 
harmful to humans in amounts found to be of public health significance, nor shall substances be 
present in amounts that will have a significant damaging effect on groundwater quality. 

 Groundwater Quality 
The concentration of any wastewater parameter that may impact groundwater quality shall be limited 
at the point of discharge to a value that will minimize the concentration of the substance in the 
groundwater to the extent technically and economically feasible and will prevent exceedance of the 
preventive action limit in the groundwater. 

 Discharge Recordkeeping 
The permittee shall keep and maintain records of the discharge volume, date, and time as well as the 
results of the any visual inspections or monitoring. Records shall be made available for department 
inspection and submitted to the department upon request. Records shall be retained for a period of 
three years unless otherwise required by the department. 

122



16 

5 Impaired Waters & TMDL Requirements for Surface Water 
Discharges 

 Report Discharge to an Impaired Surface Water  
Permittees shall report, on the NOI, if the wastewater has a detectable pollutant of concern (as 
identified per required monitoring) that discharges to an impaired surface water or a surface water 
with a State and EPA approved Total Daily Maximum Load (TMDL) allocation. The section 303(d) 
list of Wisconsin impaired surface water bodies may be obtained by contacting the department or by 
searching for the section 303(d) list on the department’s Internet site. The department updates the 
section 303(d) list approximately every two years. The updated list is effective upon approval by 
EPA. The current link to the section 303(d) list is: 
http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/impairedwaters/2016IR_IWList.html. State and Federal Approved TMDLs 
can be identified by contacting the department, or by searching for the State and Federal Approved 
TMDL list on the department Internet site. The current link to identify the list of State and Federal 
Approved Final TMDLs is: http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/TMDLs/index.html. 

 TMDL Compliance  
Permittees that discharge a pollutant of concern that is subject to an approved TMDL shall comply 
with the requirements of the State and Federally approved TMDL allocation that is in effect on the 
effective date of this general permit. Existing pollutant discharges covered under this general permit 
are expected to be consistent with the baseline wasteload allocation granted to Wisconsin general 
permit discharges in all State and EPA approved TMDLs in effect on the effective date of this general 
permit. 

 New or Increased Pollutant Discharge to a 303(d) Listed 
Impaired Surface Water  
Applicants or permittees must notify the department when they propose a new or increased discharge 
of a pollutant of concern to an impaired water body in accordance with Section 7.1.6. The permittee 
may not establish a new or increased discharge of a pollutant of concern to an impaired water body 
until the department has determined that the new or increased discharge does not contribute to the 
receiving water impairment, or the discharge is consistent with a State and Federal approved TMDL 
wasteload allocation for the impaired water body. Any new or increased pollutant of concern 
discharge to an impaired surface water with a State and Federal approved TMDL authorized under 
this general permit shall be consistent with the baseline wasteload allocation for general permittees 
within the basin.

123



 

17 
 

6 Water Treatment Additives 

 Use of Water Treatment Additives 
Permittees shall not add any substance or water treatment additive to the discharge unless the use of 
the water treatment additive is reviewed and approved, in writing, by the department. Examples of 
water treatment additives include biocides (i.e. algaecides, microbicides, fungicides, molluscicdes, 
etc.), water quality conditioners (i.e. scale and corrosion inhibitors, pH adjustment chemicals, oxygen 
scavengers, conditioning agents, and water softening compounds, etc.), erosion control products, and 
clarifying agents.  

 Approval of Water Treatment Additives Usage 
A water treatment additive review and approval is necessary for substances that may enter surface 
water or groundwater without receiving treatment or substances that are used in a water treatment 
process but are not expected to be removed by wastewater treatment. Water treatment additive review 
and approval is not required for chlorine-based compounds and pH-adjusters. Also, chemicals added 
as part of a water treatment process (such as ferric chloride, alum or pickle liquor) are not considered 
water treatment additives and need not require a water treatment additive review. For each water 
treatment additive used, the permittee shall submit a copy of the Additive Review Worksheet (Form 
3400-213) to the department. Upon approval, the permittee shall comply with the conditions specified 
in the approval. If the permittee wishes to commence use of a new water treatment additive or 
increase the usage of an approved water treatment additive, the permittee shall submit a written 
request and receive written approval from the department prior to initiating such changes. For more 
information on the water treatment additive review process, see the guidance document titled Water 
Quality Review Procedures for Water treatment additives. 

Water treatment additive discharge concentrations shall comply with applicable secondary values and 
standards in ss. NR 102.04 and NR 105.05 and, Wis. Adm. Code, for surface water discharges, and 
shall comply with human health standards in ch. NR 140, Wis. Adm. Code, for discharges to 
groundwater.  

Please note that water treatment additives which are approved under ANSI/NSF Standard 60 
“Drinking Water Treatment Chemical” must receive additive review and approval by the department 
for discharges to surface water and are pre-approved for use by the department for discharges to 
groundwater. 

 Water Treatment Additive Usage Record 
The permittee shall maintain records of the monthly water treatment additive usage including the 
water treatment additive name, manufacturer, and daily maximum and monthly average amount used. 
Water treatment additive use may be recorded as the quantity of the pollutant added to the discharge. 

 Public Notice of Additive Use Restrictions 
If the department determines that a water treatment additive requires a usage restriction and effluent 
limits, the department is required to public notice those proposed limits prior to the limits becoming 
effective and implemented through this general permit. The public notice period is to last 30-days and 
be issued in a newspaper of general circulation in the area affected by the discharge and the 
department’s public notice webpage. The effluent limitations, limit type, and sample type for 
substances will be stated in the additive use approval letter. 

  

124



18 

7 Standard Requirements 
The conditions in ss. NR 205.07(1), 205.07(3), and 205.08(3), Wis. Adm. Code and 40 CFR 122 are 
included by reference in this permit. Some of these requirements are outlined in the Standard 
Requirements section of this permit. Requirements not specifically outlined in the Standard Requirements 
can be found in the ss. NR 205.07(1), 205.07(3), and 205.08, Wis. Adm. Code and 40 CFR 122. 

 Reporting Requirements 
The permittee shall comply with the following reporting requirements. 

 Submittal of Monitoring Results 
This permit requires that all monitoring data be submitted on an electronic discharge monitoring 
report (eDMR) in accordance with s. NR 205.07(1)(r), Wis. Adm. Code. Monitoring forms are 
due 21 days following the end of the reporting period. For instance, if a parameter is to be 
sampled monthly, the monitoring results are due 21 days following the end of each month. The 
eDMR shall be submitted regardless if there is a discharge or not during any reporting period. 
The eDMR shall be certified electronically by a responsible executive or municipal officer, 
manager, partner, proprietor or other duly authorized representative as specified in s. NR 
205.07(1)(g), Wis. Adm. Code, with an “eReport Certify” page that certifies that the electronic 
report form is true, accurate and complete. The eDMR can be accessed through DNR 
Switchboard (http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/switchboard/index.html) using Internet Explorer. Other 
browsers such as Safari, Firefox, and Google Chrome may not work with the Switchboard.  

Note: You must have or create a Wisconsin Web Access Management System (WAMS) ID and 
request access for each facility in order to access the forms. If you already have a WAMS ID, 
then you do not need to recreate one to access the eDMR. 

Instructions and help with Switchboard/WAMS ID Registration can be found here: 
http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/wastewater/documents/WAMsSwitchboardHelp.pdf.  

Instructions and help with filling out and submitting monitoring forms can be found here: 
http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/wastewater/eReporting.html. 

 Reporting Conventions 
The permittee shall use the following conventions when reporting effluent monitoring results 
except when otherwise noted: 

 Pollutant concentrations less than the limit of detection shall be reported as < (less than)
the value of the limit of detection. For example, if a substance is not detected at a
detection limit of 0.1 mg/L, report the pollutant concentration as < 0.1 mg/L.

 Pollutant concentrations equal to or greater than the limit of detection, but less than the
limit of quantitation, shall be reported and the limit of quantitation shall be specified
unless otherwise noted.

 For the purposes of reporting a calculated result, average or a mass discharge value, the
permittee may substitute a value of 0 (zero) for any pollutant concentration that is less
than the limit of detection. However, if the effluent limitation is less than the limit of
detection, the department may substitute a value other than zero for results less than the
limit of detection, after considering the number of monitoring results that are greater than
the limit of detection and if warranted when applying appropriate statistical techniques.

 For days with no flow, the flow rate shall be reported as “0” on those days.

125



 

19 
 

 More Frequent Monitoring 
As specified in NR 205.07(1)(r), if the permittee monitors any parameter more frequently than 
required by the permit, using test procedures specified in ch. NR 204 or 219, Wis. Adm. Code or 
as specified in the permit, the results of this monitoring shall be included in the calculation and 
reporting of the data submitted in the discharge monitoring report. 

 Noncompliance Reporting 
The permittee shall report the following types of noncompliance by a telephone call or email to 
the department's regional office within 24 hours after becoming aware of the noncompliance: 

 any noncompliance which may endanger health or the environment; 

 any violation of an effluent limitation resulting from a bypass; 

 any violation of an effluent limitation resulting from an upset; and 

 any violation of a maximum discharge limitation for any of the pollutants listed by the 
department in the permit, either for effluent or sludge. 

A written report describing the noncompliance shall also be submitted to the department as 
directed at the end of this permit within 5 days after the permittee becomes aware of the 
noncompliance. On a case-by-case basis, the department may waive the requirement for submittal 
of a written report within 5 days and instruct the permittee to submit the written report with the 
next regularly scheduled monitoring report. In either case, the written report shall contain a 
description of the noncompliance and its cause; the period of noncompliance, including exact 
dates and times; the steps taken or planned to reduce, eliminate and prevent reoccurrence of the 
noncompliance; and if the noncompliance has not been corrected, the length of time it is expected 
to continue. 

A scheduled bypass approved by the department as specified in s. NR 205.07(1)(u)2, Wis. Adm. 
Code, shall not be subject to the reporting required under this section. 

 Spill Reporting 
The permittee shall notify the department in accordance with ch. NR 706 (formerly ch. NR 158), 
Wis. Adm. Code, in the event that a spill or accidental release of any material or substance results 
in the discharge of pollutants to the waters of the state at a rate or concentration greater than the 
effluent limitations established in the permit, or the spill or accidental release of the material is 
unregulated in the permit, unless the spill or release of pollutants has been reported to the 
department under this section. 

Note: Section 292.11(2)(a), Wis. Stats., requires any person who possesses or controls a 
hazardous substance or who causes the discharge of a hazardous substance to notify the 
department immediately of any discharge not authorized by the permit. The discharge of a 
hazardous substance that is not authorized by this permit or that violates this permit may 
be a hazardous substance spill. To report a hazardous substance spill, call DNR's 24-hour 
HOTLINE at 1-800-943-0003. 

 Planned Changes 
In accordance with ss. 283.31 (4) (b) and 283.59 (1), Wis. Stats., the permittee shall report to the 
department any facility expansion, production increase or process modifications which will result 
in new, different or increased discharges of pollutants. The report shall either be a new general 
permit notice of intent or, if the new discharge will not violate the effluent limitations of the 
general permit, a written notice of the new, different or increased discharge. The notice shall 
contain a description of the new activities, an estimate of the new, different or increased 
discharge of pollutants and a description of the effect of the new or increased discharge on 

126



20 

existing waste treatment facilities. Following receipt of this report, the department may modify 
the general permit coverage letter to specify any discharges of pollutants not previously covered 
by the general permit. 

 General Conditions for General Permits 
The permittee shall comply with the following general conditions for general permits.  

 Delegation of Signature Authority 
The permittee must provide a delegation of signature authority (DSA) request (Form 3400-220, 
Delegation of Signature Authority) or equivalent for a duly authorized representative to submit 
specific documents on the behalf of a responsible executive, officer, manager, partner, or 
proprietor of a permitted discharge. An executive, officer, manager, partner, or proprietor can 
only delegate signature authority to a duly authorized representative if that person is responsible 
for the overall operation of the facility or activity regulated by this general permit. The DSA 
request shall specify the name of the individual and their employment position. The DSA request 
must be submitted to the department with the NOI or together with the submittal of any required 
documents. If there are any changes to this request, a new DSA request shall be submitted to the 
department.  

 Permit Coverage Transfers  
A permit is not transferrable to any person except after notice to the department. Permittees that 
wish to transfer general permit coverage to a new permittee must submit a Transfer of Coverage 
(TOC, Form 3400-222). The TOC must be submitted at least thirty (30) days in advance of the 
proposed transfer date. All TOCs shall be completed by both the existing and new permittees 
including the “Certification & Signature” section and sent via mail or email to the department. 
The department will then send a letter to the existing permittee stating that their coverage is 
terminated under this general permit. 

If the quality or quantity of the discharge has not changed at the facility, the department will send 
a letter of determination that grants coverage to the new permittee under this general permit. If 
there have been significant changes at the permitted facility, the new permittee shall submit a new 
NOI to the department. 

 Permit Coverage Terminations 
Permittees that wish to terminate their general permit coverage must submit a Notice of 
Termination (NOT, Form 3400-221) to the department. All NOTs must be completed by the 
permittee and including the “Certification & Signature” section and sent via mail or email to the 
department. The department will then send a termination letter to the permittee stating that their 
coverage is terminated under this general permit. 

 Continuation of an Expired General Permit 
If a permittee submitted a complete and timely NOI to be covered by this general permit, all 
conditions of an expired general permit shall continue to apply until the effective date of a new 
general permit. 

 General Conditions for WPDES Permits 

 Duty to Comply 
The permittee shall comply with all conditions of the permit. Any permit noncompliance is a 
violation of the permit and is grounds for enforcement action; permit coverage termination; or 
denial of reapplying for permit coverage. If a permittee violates any terms of the permit, the 
permittee is subject to the penalties established in ch. 283, Wis. Stats. 

127



 

21 
 

 Property Rights 
The permit does not convey any property rights of any sort, or any exclusive privilege. The 
permit does not authorize any injury or damage to private property or any invasion of personal 
rights, or any infringement of federal, state or local laws or regulations. 

 Inspection and Entry 
The permittee shall allow an authorized representative of the department, upon the presentation of 
credentials, to: 

 Enter upon the permittee's premises where a regulated facility or activity is located or 
conducted, or where records are required under the conditions of the permit; 

 Have access to and copy, at reasonable times, any records that are required under the 
conditions of the permit; 

 Inspect at reasonable times any facilities, equipment (including monitoring and control 
equipment), practices or operations regulated or required under the permit; and 

 Sample or monitor at reasonable times, for the purposes of assuring permit compliance, any 
substances or parameters at any location. 

 Recording of Results 
The permittee shall maintain records which provide the following information for each effluent 
measurement or sample taken: 

 the date, exact place, method and time of sampling or measurements; 

 the individual who performed the sampling or measurements; 

 the date the analysis was performed; 

 the individual who performed the analysis; 

 the analytical techniques or methods used; and 

 the results of the analysis. 

 Records Retention 
The permittee shall retain records of all monitoring information, including all calibration and 
maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring 
instrumentation, copies of all reports required by the permit, and records of all data used to 
complete the application for the permit for a period of at least 3 years from the date of the sample, 
measurement, report or application. All pertinent sludge information, including notice of intent 
information and other documents specified in the permit or ch. NR 204, Wis. Adm. Code, shall be 
retained for a minimum of 5 years. 

 Signatory Requirement 
All permit notice of intents, reports and other information requested by the department shall be 
signed by a responsible executive or municipal officer, manager, partner or proprietor as specified 
in s. 283.37(3), Wis. Stats., or a duly authorized representative of the officer, manager partner or 
proprietor that has been delegated signature authority pursuant to NR 205.07(1)(g)2, Wis. Adm. 
Code.  

 Proper Operation and Maintenance 
The permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain all facilities and systems of 
treatment and control which are installed or used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the 
conditions of the permit. 

128



22 

 Duty to Mitigate 
The permittee shall take all reasonable steps to minimize or prevent the likelihood of any adverse 
impacts to public health, the waters of the state, or the environment resulting from noncompliance 
with the permit. 

 Duty to Provide Information 
The permittee shall furnish the department, within a reasonable time, any information which the 
department may request to determine whether cause exists for modifying, terminating, 
suspending, revoking or reissuing the permit or to determine compliance with the permit. The 
permittee shall give advance notice to the department of any planned changes in the permitted 
facility or activity which may result in noncompliance with permit requirements. The permittee 
shall also furnish the department, upon request, copies of records required to be kept by the 
permittee. 

 Need to Halt or Reduce Activity Not a Defense 
It is not a defense for a permittee in an enforcement action to claim that it would have been 
necessary to halt or reduce the permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the 
conditions of the permit. 

 Sampling Procedures 
The permittee shall take samples and measurements that are representative of the volume and 
nature of the monitored discharge at points specified in the permit using sample types specified in 
the permit. The permittee shall also follow the effluent flow measurement and sample collection 
procedures in ch. NR 218, Wis. Adm. Code. 

 Testing Procedures 
Samples collected under this permit shall be tested for the parameters listed in this permit and 
follow approved test methods and procedures specified in ch. NR 219, Wis. Adm. Code. If the 
required level cannot be met by any of the methods available in ch. NR 219, Wis. Adm. Code, 
then the method with the lowest limit of detection shall be selected. Additional test procedures 
may be specified in the permit. 

 Laboratory Certification or Registration 
Samples collected under this permit shall be tested and analyzed by a laboratory certified or 
registered under ch. NR 149, Wis. Adm. Code. A list of Wisconsin DNR accredited laboratories 
can be found here: https://dnr.wi.gov/regulations/labCert/LabLists.html. The following tests are 
excluded from this requirement: 

 Temperature;
 Turbidity;
 Bacteria tests in wastewater effluent and sludges;
 pH;
 Chlorine residual;
 Specific conductance;
 Physical properties of soils and sludges;
 Nutrient tests of soils and sludges; and
 Flow measurements.

129



23 

 Other Information 
Where the permittee becomes aware that it failed to submit any relevant facts in a notice of intent 
or submitted incorrect information in a notice of intent or in any report to the department, it shall 
promptly submit such facts or correct information to the department. 

 Bypassing 
Except for a controlled diversion as specified in s. NR 205.07(1)(v), Wis. Adm. Code, any bypass 
is prohibited. The department may approve a bypass if the permittee demonstrates all the 
following conditions apply: 

 The bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, personal injury, or severe property
damage;

 There were no feasible alternatives to the bypass, such as the use of auxiliary treatment
facilities or adequate back-up equipment, retention of untreated wastes, reduction of
inflow and infiltration, or maintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime.
This condition is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment should have been installed
in the exercise of reasonable engineering judgment to prevent a bypass which occurred
during normal periods of equipment downtime or preventative maintenance. When
evaluating feasibility of alternatives, the department may consider factors such as
technical achievability, costs and affordability of implementation and risks to public
health, the environment and, where the permittee is a municipality, the welfare of the
community served; and

 The bypass was reported in accordance with the ‘Noncompliance Reporting’ section of
this permit.

 Permit as Enforcement Shield 
Compliance with a permit during its term constitutes compliance for purposes of enforcement 
with 33 USC 1311, 1312, 1316, 1317, 1328, and 1345 (a) and (b), except for any toxic effluent 
standard or prohibition, and standards for sewage sludge use or disposal. If a new or revised toxic 
effluent standard or toxic prohibition becomes effective during the term of the permit, the 
permittee may be subject to enforcement action if the discharge exceeds the new or revised 
effluent standard for the toxic pollutant even though the discharge is in compliance with the 
existing permit. The permittee may also be subject to enforcement action standards for sewage 
sludge use or disposal. However, a permit may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated 
during its term for cause as set forth in ch. 283, Wis. Stats., and ch. NR 203, Wis. Adm. Code. 

 Severability 
The provisions of this permit are severable, and if any provisions of this permit or the application 
of any provision of this permit to any circumstance, is held invalid, the application of such 
provision to other circumstances, and the remainder of this permit, shall not be affected thereby. 

 Removed Substances 
Solids, sludges, filter backwash or other pollutants removed from or resulting from treatment or 
control of wastewaters or intake waters shall be stored and disposed of in a manner to prevent any 
pollutant from the materials from entering the waters of the state. Land disposal or application of 
treatment plant solids and sludges shall be at a site or operation licensed by the department under 
chs. NR 500 to 538, Wis. Adm. Code or chs. NR 660 to 670, Wis. Adm. Code or in accordance 
with ch. NR 204 or 214, Wis. Adm. Code. 

130



24 

 Duty to Halt or Reduce Activity 
Upon failure or impairment of treatment facility operation, the permittee shall, to the extent 
necessary to maintain compliance with its permit, curtail production or wastewater discharges or 
both until the treatment facility operations are restored or an alternative method of treatment is 
provided. 

131



25 

8 Summary of Reports Due 
FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY 

Description Due Date Page 

Notice of Intent 
30 business days before 
the expected start date of 
discharge 

4 

Electronic Discharge Monitoring Report (eDMR) 
21 days following the 
end of the reporting 
period 

18 

Delegation of Signature Authority (Form 3400-220) 

Submitted with the NOI 
or together with the 
submittal of any required 
documents 

20 

Notice of Termination (Form 3400-221) 
After discontinuing 
permitted discharge 

20 

Transfer of Coverage (Form 3400-222) 
30 days in advance of the 
proposed transfer date 

20 

Report forms shall be submitted electronically in accordance with the reporting requirements herein. Any 
facility plans or plans and specifications of industrial wastewater systems shall be submitted to the Bureau 
of Water Quality, P.O. Box 7921, Madison, WI 53707-7921. All other submittals required by this permit 
shall be submitted to the department regional general permit contact. A listing of the general permit 
contacts for each region with mailing addresses and phone numbers can be found at 
http://dnr.wi.gov/topic/wastewater/GeneralPermits.html. 

132



133



134



135



State of Wisconsin  
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
101 S. Webster Street 
P.O. Box 7921 
Madison, WI 53707-7921 

 
wisconsin.gov Printed o

Recycle
Paper 

dnr.wi.gov 

Tony Evers, Governor 
 Preston D. Cole, Secretary 

Telephone: (608) 266-2621 
Toll Free 1-888-936-7463 

TTY Access via relay - 711 

July 22, 2019 

Subject: PFAS Monitoring Request for Municipal Wastewater Treatment Facilities with 
Industrial Pretreatment Programs or Users Expected to be PFAS sources 

Dear Permittee: 

The Department of Natural Resources (hereafter department) is launching a statewide initiative to identify and 
quantify sources of perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS, formerly referred to as PFCs) with 
specific emphasis on perfluorooctanesulfonic acid (PFOS) and perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA). In order to 
accomplish this, the department is requesting that municipal wastewater treatment facilities with industrial 
pretreatment programs or contributing industries expected to be sources of PFAS to sample their influent and 
effluent for PFAS compounds. 

Background 

PFAS are a group of humanmade chemical compounds that have been widely used in industrial and consumer 
products since the 1940s. Common products containing these compounds include: nonstick coatings, paper 
and packaging materials, certain firefighting foams, and metal plating materials.  

Studies indicate that PFOA and PFOS can cause reproductive and developmental, liver and kidney, and 
immunological effects in laboratory animals.1 For humans, the most consistent findings are increased 
cholesterol levels among exposed populations, with more limited findings related to infant birth weights and 
effects on the immune system.1 Additionally, PFAS have been shown to bioaccumulate in people, with 
detectable blood serum levels found in >98% of the US population.2  

With some exceptions for limited industrial uses, chemical manufacturers in the United States have 
voluntarily ceased production of PFOA and PFOS, but these compounds are still manufactured in other 
countries and may be imported through consumer goods including carpets, paper and packaging, and 
coatings. It is also still legal to use existing stocks of PFOS-containing firefighting foams (Class B) in the 
United States. Due to the persistent nature of these compounds, PFAS may be present on or near sites years 
after they were used.  

The following types of industries are known sources of PFAS compounds3: 

• Platers/metal finishers
• Paper and packaging manufacturers
• Tanneries and leather/fabric/carpet treaters
• Manufacturers of parts with PTFE (polytetrafluoroethylene, Teflon type)
• Facilities that manufacture or use coatings
• Centralized waste treaters

136



2 

1 – US Environmental Protection Agency (www.epa.gov/pfas/basic-information-pfas#health) 
2 – Calafat et al, Polyfluoroalkyl Chemicals in the U.S. Population: Data from the National Health and Nutrition Examination 
Survey (NHANES) 2003–2004 and Comparisons with NHANES 1999–2000 (ehp.niehs.nih.gov/doi/pdf/10.1289/ehp.10598)   
3 – Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development (www.oecd.org/chemicalsafety/portal-perfluorinated-
chemicals/aboutpfass) 

• Dairy processing facilities and cheesemakers, where milk supply is sourced from livestock grazing on
fields that have received PFAS-contaminated biosolids

• Fire-fighting equipment manufacturers
• Military bases
• Airports
• Household cleaning product manufacturers

Centralized waste treaters and/or wastewater treatment facilities are not sources that generate PFAS 
compounds; however, the compounds are often directed to and accumulate in or passed through these 
facilities. 

Note: The above list may not be exhaustive. 

Requested Actions 

As Phase 1 of the department’s initiative, the department is requesting that if your POTW has an industrial 
pretreatment program, industries expected to be sources of PFAS discharge wastewater to your POTW, or if 
you have other reason to believe your POTW effluent may contain PFAS, the department requests that your 
facility completes the following steps: 

1. Monitor influent and effluent for PFAS: The department is requesting that the influent and effluent
of your facility be sampled and analyzed for PFAS within 90 days of receipt of this letter. Although PFOS 
and PFOA are the primary pollutants of concern at this time, the department has an interest in a suite of 
34 additional PFAS compounds. Based on past experience, the department expects that lab costs will be 
approximately $300 - $400/sample. Please submit all of the reported PFAS compound results reported by 
the laboratory to the department. Results should be sent to DNRWYPFASWastewater@wisconsin.gov. 
As our understanding of these emerging pollutants progresses, this information will likely be useful in 
quantifying the extent of contamination statewide. Currently, there are no USEPA-approved methods for 
PFAS analysis of wastewater, but the department recommends that facilities use a laboratory that utilizes 
an isotope dilution procedure.  

2. Investigate/Reduce Sources: If the combined (additive) concentration of PFOS and PFOA in the
influent or effluent is at or above 20 nanograms per liter (ng/L), the department recommends that you also 
conduct a review of your industrial users to identify facilities that may be potential sources of PFOA and 
PFOS. You will likely need to review records and interview your contacts to find out which industrial or 
commercial contributors use/have used or accept/have accepted PFAS-containing materials or wastes. 
Please note that since these compounds are persistent, they may adhere to the bottoms or sides of tanks 
and pits and be present long after PFAS-containing chemicals were used.  

Once you have samples collected and have identified potential PFAS sources, the department would like 
to work with you to establish a sampling protocol of the wastewater from probable PFAS sources.  After 
representative samples are collected and PFAS sources are more clearly identified, department staff 
would like to collaboratively work with municipalities and the industrial sources to reduce and eliminate 
PFAS in the effluent.  Source reduction efforts may include: product substitution, operational controls, 
pretreatment, and clean-up of historical contamination. 

137

http://www.epa.gov/pfas/basic-information-pfas#health
https://ehp.niehs.nih.gov/doi/pdf/10.1289/ehp.10598
http://www.oecd.org/chemicalsafety/portal-perfluorinated-chemicals/aboutpfass
http://www.oecd.org/chemicalsafety/portal-perfluorinated-chemicals/aboutpfass
mailto:DNRWYPFASWastewater@wisconsin.gov


3 

1 – US Environmental Protection Agency (www.epa.gov/pfas/basic-information-pfas#health) 
2 – Calafat et al, Polyfluoroalkyl Chemicals in the U.S. Population: Data from the National Health and Nutrition Examination 
Survey (NHANES) 2003–2004 and Comparisons with NHANES 1999–2000 (ehp.niehs.nih.gov/doi/pdf/10.1289/ehp.10598)   
3 – Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development (www.oecd.org/chemicalsafety/portal-perfluorinated-
chemicals/aboutpfass) 

Fate and Transport Study Participation 

The University of Wisconsin - Madison plans to conduct a study of twelve municipalities throughout the state 
that will examine the fate and transport of PFAS compounds within wastewater treatment facilities. The study 
will involve sampling of each facility’s influent, internal points of interest, biosolids, effluent, upstream 
receiving water, and downstream receiving water in order to conduct a mass balance analysis and to assess 
how these compounds behave. For facilities participating in the study, all costs associated with the study’s 
sampling efforts will be covered.  

If you are interested in participating in this study, please contact Nate Willis at 
nathaniel.willis@wisconsin.gov within 45 days of receipt of this letter for consideration. Please note that 
interest in this study does not necessarily mean your facility will be chosen for participation. Several factors 
will go into determining which facilities are chosen, including but not limited to: likelihood of presence of 
PFAS in the effluent, the design flow of the facility, the portion of the influent that originates from industrial 
contributors, etc. If your facility is chosen for this study and PFAS is detected above thresholds discussed in 
step 2, the department requests that you complete step 2 as outlined above. Additionally, if your facility is not 
chosen for this study, the department still requests that the actions outlined above be completed.  

The department appreciates your efforts to support this initiative. Data collected through this initiative will be 
used to mitigate PFAS impacts statewide. The data will also be used to evaluate and support rulemaking and 
associated economic impact analyses to adopt statewide water quality standards for PFAS compounds. 
Development of surface water quality standards for PFAS was identified as a priority in the most recent 
Triennial Standards Review, and the Department of Health Services has developed a recommendation for a 
groundwater enforcement standard of 20 ng/L combined PFOA and PFOS that the department intends to 
adopt. The department’s intent is that completion of the steps outlined will position facilities to more easily 
comply with expected PFAS standards upon promulgation. 

More Information 

To find out more about PFAS, go to dnr.wi.gov/topic/Contaminants/PFAS.html, https://pfas-
1.itrcweb.org/fact-sheets/ or www.epa.gov/pfas. More information on industrial sources can be found at
www.oecd.org/chemicalsafety/portal-perfluorinated-chemicals/aboutpfass. Toxicological information can be 
found at www.atsdr.cdc.gov/pfas. 

If you have any questions or comments regarding this monitoring request, please contact Nate Willis at 
nathaniel.willis@wisconsin.gov.  

STATE OF WISCONSIN 
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES 
For the Secretary 

Jason Knutson, P.E.  Wade Strickland 
Chief, Wastewater Section Chief, Water Permits Section 
Bureau of Water Quality Bureau of Water Quality 

138

http://www.epa.gov/pfas/basic-information-pfas#health
https://ehp.niehs.nih.gov/doi/pdf/10.1289/ehp.10598
http://www.oecd.org/chemicalsafety/portal-perfluorinated-chemicals/aboutpfass
http://www.oecd.org/chemicalsafety/portal-perfluorinated-chemicals/aboutpfass
mailto:nathaniel.willis@wisconsin.gov
https://dnr.wi.gov/topic/Contaminants/PFAS.html
http://www.epa.gov/pfas
http://www.oecd.org/chemicalsafety/portal-perfluorinated-chemicals/aboutpfass
http://www.atsdr.cdc.gov/pfas
mailto:nathaniel.willis@wisconsin.gov


7/23/2019 Wisconsin DNR asks sewage treatment plants to test for PFAS | Local News | madison.com

https://madison.com/wsj/news/local/environment/wisconsin-dnr-asks-sewage-treatment-plants-to-test-for-pfas/article_2ad61aa8-cb52-5d6f-9235-d524bd78431d.html 1/5

BREAKING ATC identi�ed mechanical issue before last week's Downtown explosion, power outage

https://madison.com/wsj/news/local/environment/wisconsin-dnr-asks-sewage-treatment-plants-to-test-for-pfas/article_2ad61aa8-cb52-5d6f-9235-

d524bd78431d.html

TOPICAL

Wisconsin DNR asks sewage treatment plants to test for PFAS
CHRIS HUBBUCH chubbuch@madison.com  7 hrs ago

$3 FOR 3 MONTHS

The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources is asking local wastewater treatment plants to begin testing for
hazardous industrial chemicals.

The agency sent a letter Monday to 125 municipal utilities encouraging them to begin sampling of water flowing into
and out of the plants for highly fluorinated compounds known as PFAS, in an effort to understand how and where the
chemicals find their way into drinking water.

“No one should ever be afraid to turn on their tap. Clean drinking water is a public health priority,” said DNR
Secretary-designee Preston Cole. “Water is life-giving. We have an opportunity with this initiative to take a large step
forward in protecting our citizens and our natural resources from harmful contaminants.”

You are seeing this message because ad or script blocking software is interfering with this page.
Disable any ad or script blocking software, then reload this page.

139

https://madison.com/wsj/news/local/atc-identified-mechanical-issue-before-last-week-s-downtown-explosion/article_e441ffb6-c1a0-5e40-b202-f90c48e94320.html
https://madison.com/users/profile/Chris%20Hubbuch
https://subscriberservices.lee.net/subscriberservices/Content/PaymentPage.aspx?Domain=madison.com&SubscriberLevel=DOP&Return=https%3A%2F%2Fmadison.com%2Fwsj%2Fnews%2Flocal%2Fenvironment%2Fwisconsin-dnr-asks-sewage-treatment-plants-to-test-for-pfas%2Farticle_2ad61aa8-cb52-5d6f-9235-d524bd78431d.html#tracking-source=green-subscribe-button&ir=true


7/23/2019 Wisconsin DNR asks sewage treatment plants to test for PFAS | Local News | madison.com

https://madison.com/wsj/news/local/environment/wisconsin-dnr-asks-sewage-treatment-plants-to-test-for-pfas/article_2ad61aa8-cb52-5d6f-9235-d524bd78431d.html 2/5

Used for decades in products such as non-stick cookware, stain-resistant sprays, and certain types of firefighting foam,
the virtually indestructible compounds often end up in sewage plants. The plants release the compounds with treated
wastewater into public waters and treated sewage sludge that is applied to farm fields as fertilizer.

Madison and Sun Prairie are among the municipalities asked to do testing, as are Janesville and Beloit. The DNR said
the utilities were chosen because they are most likely to receive wastewater from businesses that use the compounds.

Wisconsin DNR seeks PFAS testing of sewage

Map data ©2019 Google Terms 50 mi

You are seeing this message because ad or script blocking software is interfering with this page.
Disable any ad or script blocking software, then reload this page.

140

https://www.google.com/intl/en_US/help/terms_maps.html


7/23/2019 Wisconsin DNR asks sewage treatment plants to test for PFAS | Local News | madison.com

https://madison.com/wsj/news/local/environment/wisconsin-dnr-asks-sewage-treatment-plants-to-test-for-pfas/article_2ad61aa8-cb52-5d6f-9235-d524bd78431d.html 3/5

The Madison sewerage district handles more than 40 million gallons of wastewater per day from 26 communities. It
hasn’t tested for PFAS in the wastewater it receives or the effluent and sludge it releases.

Madison sewage plant employees have observed signs of PFAS contamination — excessive foaming that causes
maintenance problems — for more than a decade.

The DNR is asking the utilities to conduct one-time tests, which are estimated to cost $300 to $400.

“We want to get a snapshot of PFAS contamination throughout the state,” said Jason Knutson, the DNR’s wastewater
section chief. “It lets us know what we’re dealing with.”

 Wisconsin may adopt one of nation's toughest PFAS standards

Data from the voluntary sampling program will be used to develop plans to reduce the amount of two PFAS
compounds — known as PFOA and PFOS — entering the plants. The information will also help the DNR develop
rules and standards for safe levels of the chemicals in surface and groundwater.

The DNR plans to develop administrative rules in the fall to establish groundwater quality standards for PFOA and
PFOS because the federal Environmental Protection Agency does not have standards for the contaminants.

The state Department of Health Services has recommended a combined groundwater enforcement standard of 20 parts
per trillion for PFOA and PFOS.

That is similar to guidelines adopted by New Hampshire, New Jersey, Vermont and Minnesota.

PFAS has been detected at 10 Madison municipal wells, at levels below the new recommended state standard. One
well about a mile from the Truax Air National Guard base site has been shut down as a precaution.

You are seeing this message because ad or script blocking software is interfering with this page.
Disable any ad or script blocking software, then reload this page.

141

https://madison.com/wsj/news/local/environment/wisconsin-may-adopt-one-of-nation-s-toughest-pfas-standards/article_e854400c-4f8d-5fc5-929d-425767315db5.html


7/23/2019 Wisconsin DNR asks sewage treatment plants to test for PFAS | Local News | madison.com

https://madison.com/wsj/news/local/environment/wisconsin-dnr-asks-sewage-treatment-plants-to-test-for-pfas/article_2ad61aa8-cb52-5d6f-9235-d524bd78431d.html 4/5

MORE INFORMATION

GOP skepticism about climate change doomed Tony Evers' push for more scientistsYou are seeing this message because ad or script blocking software is interfering with this page.
Disable any ad or script blocking software, then reload this page.

142

https://madison.com/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/gop-skepticism-about-climate-change-doomed-tony-evers-push-for/article_77be8abc-1e47-5c89-9b45-2d2cc75a5a86.html
https://madison.com/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/gop-skepticism-about-climate-change-doomed-tony-evers-push-for/article_77be8abc-1e47-5c89-9b45-2d2cc75a5a86.html


7/23/2019 Wisconsin DNR asks sewage treatment plants to test for PFAS | Local News | madison.com

https://madison.com/wsj/news/local/environment/wisconsin-dnr-asks-sewage-treatment-plants-to-test-for-pfas/article_2ad61aa8-cb52-5d6f-9235-d524bd78431d.html 5/5

Chris Hubbuch
Data journalist for the Wisconsin State Journal. Covers energy and transportation, among other things. Rhymes with Lubbock. Contact him at 608-252-

6146.

Report: Watchdogs not looking hard enough for public health hazards in lakes, �sh

You are seeing this message because ad or script blocking software is interfering with this page.
Disable any ad or script blocking software, then reload this page.

143

https://madison.com/users/profile/Chris%20Hubbuch
https://madison.com/wsj/news/local/govt-and-politics/report-watchdogs-not-looking-hard-enough-for-public-health-hazards/article_c644cfa1-ef73-584e-9e93-419b4c7706d4.html


From: Renee Koback
To: Chris Groh
Subject: WRWA Alert to Members
Date: Wednesday, July 24, 2019 10:29:21 AM
Attachments: Background on PFAS Contamination WRWA.docx

PFAS Talking Points WRWA.docx

WRWA Alert to Members-Do Not Test for PFAS

Update on Recent PFAS Regulatory and Legislative Activities

Wisconsin Rural Water Association*
July 24, 2019

Regulation of PFAS compounds is quickly moving forward in Wisconsin at both the
legislative and administrative rule levels. In response, public sector organizations, including
WRWA, are working together in a coalition to represent the interests of municipal water and
wastewater utilities.  The group’s goals are to advocate collaboratively for science based
PFAS standards, educate the public about PFAS, and communicate our concerns to DNR, the
Legislature, and the Governor’s office about the potential high cost to municipal utilities of
complying with the proposed PFAS ground water standards. WRWA is working
collaboratively with the other groups in the coalition, including the League of Municipalities
and Municipal Environmental Group (MEG) – Wastewater. WRWA has adopted the
recommendations suggested by both groups below.  

State Agency Regulatory Developments. On June 21, 2019, the Department of
Health Services (DHS) recommended to the DNR that the groundwater quality standard for
perfluorooctanoic acid (PFOA) and perfluorooctane sulfonic acid (PFOS) be set at 20 ng/l
which is 20 parts per trillion (ppt). DHS also recommended a combined preventative action
limit (PAL) of 2 ppt. The 20 ppt standard is significantly lower than the health advisory of 70
ppt established by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), and the PAL of
2 ppt establishes a near-zero discharge standard for groundwater despite the fact that these
compounds already exist in groundwater.  These are recommendations for standards that will
need to go through the rule making process, which will take some time. Nevertheless, DNR is
referring to these standards in the interim.

It is also important to emphasize that the standards recommended by DHS are groundwater
standards; they are not surface water or biosolids standards. Surface water and land application
each have different exposure pathways and different fate and transport factors than
groundwater could result in a different standard.  If the groundwater standards are applied to
surface water and biosolids they could challenging implications for municipal wastewater
treatment plants. With respect to biosolids, for example, the imposition of a limit of or
approaching 2 ppt would likely foreclose the ability of many if not all plants to land apply
their biosolids.  DNR is moving forward with studies to develop standards for surface water,
but development of this standard is a ways off.

State Legislative Developments. There are also currently a number of bills
legislators have introduced relating to PFAS:

SB 109/AB 85. Imposes a 90-day timeframe for the establishment of groundwater

144

mailto:RKoback@wrwa.org
mailto:CGroh@wrwa.org
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/2019/proposals/reg/sen/bill/sb109
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/2019/proposals/ab85

[bookmark: _GoBack]Background on PFAS Contamination

Wisconsin Rural Water Association*

July 24, 2019



What are PFAS?  Per- and polyfluoroalkyl substances (PFAS) are a group of man-made chemicals that have properties allowing them to repel both water and oil.  PFAS have been manufactured and used in a variety of industries around the globe, including in the United States since the 1940s. PFOA and PFOS have been the most extensively produced and studied of these chemicals. Both chemicals are very persistent in the environment and in the human body – meaning they don’t break down and they can accumulate over time. There is evidence that exposure to PFAS can lead to adverse human health effects. [Source:  EPA https://www.epa.gov/pfas/basic-information-pfas#tab-1]



Where can PFAS be found? PFAS can be found in:

Food packaged in PFAS-containing materials, processed with equipment that used PFAS, or grown in PFAS-contaminated soil or water.

Commercial household products, including stain- and water-repellent fabrics, nonstick products (e.g., Teflon), polishes, waxes, paints, cleaning products, and fire-fighting foams (a major source of groundwater contamination at airports and military bases where firefighting training occurs).

Workplace, including production facilities or industries (e.g., chrome plating, electronics manufacturing or oil recovery) that use PFAS.

Drinking water, typically localized and associated with a specific facility serving as the source (e.g., manufacturer, landfill, firefighter training facility).

Living organisms, including fish, animals and humans, where PFAS have the ability to build up and persist over time.

Certain PFAS chemicals are no longer manufactured in the United States as a result of phase outs. Although PFOA and PFOS are no longer manufactured in the United States, they are still produced internationally and can be imported into the United States in consumer goods such as carpet, leather and apparel, textiles, paper and packaging, coatings, rubber and plastics.  [Source:  EPA https://www.epa.gov/pfas/basic-information-pfas#tab-1]



What are possible health concerns with PFAS? Scientists are still learning about the health effects of exposures to PFAS. If people ingest PFAS (by eating or drinking food or water that contain PFAS), the PFAS are absorbed, and can accumulate in the body. PFAS stay in the human body for long periods of time. As a result, as people get exposed to PFAS from different sources over time, the level of PFAS in their bodies may lead to adverse health effects. The likelihood of adverse health effects depends on several factors such as the amount and concentration of PFAS ingested as well as the time span of exposure.

The biggest concerns are for women who are pregnant or likely to become pregnant and children. Studies indicate that PFOA and PFOS can cause reproductive and developmental, liver and kidney, and immunological effects in laboratory animals. Both chemicals have caused tumors in animal studies. The most consistent findings from human epidemiology studies are increased cholesterol levels among exposed populations, with more limited findings related to:

· infant birth weights,

· effects on the immune system,

· cancer (for PFOA), and

· thyroid hormone disruption (for PFOS).

What are current exposure limits for PFAS in drinking water? The US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and the Agency for Toxic Substances and Disease Registry (ATSDR) have each estimated levels of total human exposure to PFOS and PFOA that they believe will not lead to toxicity. The draft ATSDR estimate is lower than the EPA number because they made different decisions on how to predict human toxicity from animal studies, but both include significant safety margins to account for uncertainty. EPA has issued guidance to state and local governments and public water providers about levels of PFOA and PFOS in drinking water and groundwater that are potentially concerning.

*Wisconsin Rural Water Association wishes to thank Municipal Environmental Group (MEG) – Wastewater and the League of Municipalities for their assistance in drafting this background on PFAS 








PFAS Talking Points

Wisconsin Rural Water Association*

July 24, 2019



Background/ Public Information Issues

1. As public entities responsible for the delivery of safe drinking water and the collection and treatment of wastewater, we acknowledge that PFAS at certain concentrations can pose a risk to public health and the environment, which we take seriously. Areas of concentrated known releases should be addressed like other hazardous substance spills. However, it is important to develop a regulatory approach that does not create more public health and welfare problems than it solves.

2. PFAS compounds are pervasive in our society. They are found in our blood, household dust, clothing, cosmetics, and many other products that we use on a daily basis.  

3. PFAS compounds are difficult to sample and analyze in certain material such as wastewater and biosolids.  There is no approved test method currently available.

4. Wastewater treatment plants and water utilities are not sources of PFAS. Water utilities do not add PFAS to drinking water and wastewater facilities do not add PFAS to waste streams. Removing all PFAS through treatment processes is not technically feasible.

State Agency Regulatory Issues

5. The DHS recommended groundwater standard of 20 ppt and the preventive action limit of 2 ppt are significantly more stringent than EPA’s health advisory of 70 ppt.

6. The DHS recommended standard needs further review. Wis. Stat. ch. 160 generally requires Wisconsin use federal numbers which are still in development; and the relationship between PFAS in material like biosolids, and adverse health effects, is not well documented.

7. A groundwater standard is not transferrable to surface water standards or land application standards.  Testing of surface water and land prior to the generation of material specific standards will result in misleading information.

8. Applying a standard of or approaching 2 ppt to biosolids would preclude many, if not all, treatment plants from land applying biosolids.

Regulatory Process

9. Development of PFAS standards and regulations must include input from all stakeholders to ensure these standards and regulations are developed to benefit the public. PFAS standards should be based on consistent, science-based approaches.

10. [bookmark: _GoBack]PFAS is a national issue, not a state issue. PFAS standards should come from the federal government and requirements to regulate the manufacture and use of PFAS should be nationwide.

*Wisconsin Rural Water Association thanks Municipal Environmental Group – Wastewater for preparing these talking points. 



·
quality standards for PFOA and PFOS. Because DHS already released standards for
these compounds on June 21, this bill is not likely to proceed at this point.

·  SB 302/AB 321  Requires DNR to establish and enforce standards for a wide range of
PFAS. This would include standards for drinking water, surface water, solid waste, soil
and sediment, among other things. No hearing has yet been scheduled on this bill,
which was introduced by Senator Miller (D-Madison) and Rep. Taylor (D-Madison).
No Republican legislators are listed as co-sponsors.

· SB 310/AB 323. Rep. Nygren (R-Marinette) and Sen. Cowles (R-Green Bay)
introduced this bill, which prohibits the use of firefighting foams that contain
intentionally added PFAS in training.

Federal Legislation.  At the federal level, amendments have been added to the National
Defense Authorization Act that would require EPA to issue national regulations for PFOS and
PFOA and establish a number of requirements regarding drinking water. A version of this bill
recently passed in the House.

Recent Correspondence from DNR to Municipal Wastewater
Treatment Facilities
DNR’s Request. On July 22, DNR began sending correspondence to about 125 municipal
wastewater treatment facilities with industrial pretreatment programs and/or industries
expected to be sources of PFAS discharge requesting that these facilities sample and analyze
influent and effluent for PFAS.  If facilities conducting such sampling and analysis obtain
results showing PFAS at or above 20 ppt in the influent or effluent, DNR recommends they
conduct a review of industrial users to identify potential sources of PFAS. DNR is also
recommending source reduction efforts after PFAS sources have been identified. It is
important to note that DNR is, at this point, requesting voluntary sampling and analysis. 

Recommended Media Response. If you are asked for comment by the press or customers in
the short term, we recommend the following response: “We are in the process of evaluating
the Department of Natural Resources’ request. We have not made a commitment as to
sampling at our facility at this time. We will continue to work with the Department on a
long term response to this issue.”

Recommended Long Term Response 1.  If you have a known source of concentrated PFAS
from manufacturing, or a spill from materials or products such as firefighting foam, efforts
should be taken to prevent those sources from entering the sanitary sewer or groundwater. 
This will likely include working with DNR to establish a plan for source reduction measures.

Recommended Long Term Response 2. We recommend that municipal wastewater treatment
facilities without a known source of PFAS contamination do not conduct sampling and
analysis for PFAS compounds at this time.  Among the reasons for this recommendation are
the following:

· As the letter from DNR recognizes, there are no EPA-approved methods for PFAS
sampling and analysis of wastewater. Without standardized, approved methods,
sampling results will not provide certainty or clarity as to the actual amount of PFAS
in a POTW’s wastewater. One role of municipal wastewater facilities in the water

145

https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/2019/proposals/sb302
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/2019/proposals/ab321
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/2019/proposals/reg/sen/bill/sb310
https://docs.legis.wisconsin.gov/2019/proposals/ab323


reclamation process is to provide reliable, science-based information to DNR and its
customers. Sampling and analysis without standardized and approved methods does
not advance this role.

· There is no standard for surface water or land application. Obtaining a test result that
has no standard to measure against is not meaningful information. The 20 ppt standard
recommended by DHS is a groundwater standard that is not transferrable to surface
water or land application standards. Analyzing wastewater influent and effluent against
a groundwater standard will result in misleading information.

· Municipal wastewater treatment facilities are not original sources of PFAS, do not add
PFAS to waste streams during the treatment process, and do not have the capability to
remove PFAS during the treatment process. For those communities without a known
source of PFAS, the PFAS in wastewater is likely to be coming from a wide array of
domestic and industrial dischargers that may have a limited ability to reduce the
amount of PFAS in their wastewater discharges.

For these reasons, Wisconsin Rural Water Association recommends that municipal wastewater
treatment facilities without a known source of PFAS contamination do not conduct sampling
and analysis for PFAS compounds at this time. We recognize that every community will have
unique circumstances it must evaluate when making this decision, and we would be happy to
discuss those circumstances or any questions further at any time in this process.

*Wisconsin Rural Water thanks Municipal Environmental Group (MEG) - Wastewater for
assistance in drafting these recommendations.

Chris Groh
Executive Director
Wisconsin Rural Water Association
cgroh@wrwa.org
(715) 340-2055

146

mailto:cgroh@wrwa.org


Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND

1
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

439,199.05 891,906.42 -452,707.37 49.24100-00-41110-000-000 GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES 0.00
0.00 1,150.00 -1,150.00 0.00100-00-41115-000-000 EXEMPT COMPUTER AID 0.00

8,613.01 12,000.00 -3,386.99 71.78100-00-41140-000-000 MOBILE HOME TAXES -6,879.29
6,938.02 30,000.00 -23,061.98 23.13100-00-41200-000-000 ROOM TAX 0.00

0.00 137,000.00 -137,000.00 0.00100-00-41310-000-000 UTILITY PAYMENT LIEU OF TAXES 0.00
0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.00100-00-41312-000-000 PILOT - IMPACT SEVEN 0.00
0.00 11,000.00 -11,000.00 0.00100-00-41320-000-000 HOUS AUTH PAYMENT LIEU TAXES 0.00

6,477.12 13,000.00 -6,522.88 49.82100-00-41330-000-000 FRANCHISE FEES - CABLE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-41800-000-000 INTEREST ON TAXES 0.00

-0.39 0.00 -0.39 0.00100-00-41810-000-000 INTEREST ON A/R 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
TAXES -6,879.29 41.97461,226.81 -637,829.611,099,056.42
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-42102-000-000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT CURB/GUTTER 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
INTERCITY REVENUES 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 454,360.69 -454,360.69 0.00100-00-43310-000-000 STATE SHARED REVENUE 0.00
11,541.67 0.00 11,541.67 0.00100-00-43311-000-000 PERSONAL PROPERTY AID - STATE 0.00

0.00 5,300.00 -5,300.00 0.00100-00-43420-000-000 2% FIRE INSURANCE TAX 0.00
72,552.00 145,170.64 -72,618.64 49.98100-00-43531-000-000 TRANSPORTATION AIDS 0.00

0.00 7,800.00 -7,800.00 0.00100-00-43590-000-000 STATE RECYCLING RECEIPTS 0.00
0.00 2,373.64 -2,373.64 0.00100-00-43610-000-000 PYMT MUNICIPAL SERVICES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-43650-000-000 CDBG GRANT REVENUE 0.00

4,523.00 4,523.00 0.00 100.00100-00-43690-000-000 OTHER STATE PAYMENTS 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
INTERSTATE REVENUE 0.00 14.3088,616.67 -530,911.30619,527.97
======================================================================================================================================================

5,797.44 8,300.00 -2,502.56 69.85100-00-44100-000-000 BUSINESS & OCCUPATIONAL LICEN 5,375.46
289.51 400.00 -110.49 72.38100-00-44200-000-000 NONBUSINESS LICENSES -5,334.56

17,547.96 6,000.00 11,547.96 292.47100-00-44300-000-000 BUILDING PERMITS 11,211.37
======================================================================================================================================================
LICENSES & PERMITS 11,252.27 160.7823,634.91 8,934.9114,700.00
======================================================================================================================================================

12,529.82 26,000.00 -13,470.18 48.19100-00-45100-000-000 LAW & ORDINANCE VIOL MUNI CT 934.58
405.00 600.00 -195.00 67.50100-00-45102-000-000 PARKING VIOLATIONS 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
FINES, FORFEITURES, PENALTIES 934.58 48.6312,934.82 -13,665.1826,600.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 600.00 -600.00 0.00100-00-46100-000-000 PUB CHGES FOR SERVICES GEN GOV 0.00
0.00 500.00 -500.00 0.00100-00-46310-000-000 STREET MAINTENANCE & CONSTRUCT 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-46430-000-000 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 0.00

48,671.38 70,000.00 -21,328.62 69.53100-00-46433-000-000 GARBAGE COLLECTION REVENUE 7,224.27
420.00 2,000.00 -1,580.00 21.00100-00-46440-000-000 MOWING 420.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-46900-000-000 OTHER PUB CHGES FOR SERVICES 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES 7,644.27 67.1649,091.38 -24,008.6273,100.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-47331-000-000 INTERGOV'T CHGES HWY 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
OTHER INCOME 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

23,995.20 2,000.00 21,995.20 1,199.76100-00-48111-000-000 INTEREST INCOME 3,681.09
0.00 400.00 -400.00 0.00100-00-48130-000-000 INTEREST ON SPEC ASSESSMENTS 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-48150-000-000 MUNICIPAL BLDG FND INT 0.00

3,850.00 9,000.00 -5,150.00 42.78100-00-48201-000-000 RENT OF CITY BUILDINGS 600.00

147



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND

2
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-48203-000-000 POLICE DEPT REV - MAINTENANCE 0.00
1,980.00 6,600.00 -4,620.00 30.00100-00-48205-000-000 LEASE INCOME - CELL TOWERS 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-48206-000-000 DB COMMUNICATIONS - LEASE 0.00
150.00 0.00 150.00 0.00100-00-48225-000-000 RENT OF CITY EQUIPMENT 150.00

0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 0.00100-00-48250-000-000 ADMIN LIBRARY 0.00
0.00 4,100.00 -4,100.00 0.00100-00-48306-000-000 SALE/RENT OF CITY PROPERTY 0.00

1,200.00 0.00 1,200.00 0.00100-00-48306-000-002 CEMETARY - SALE OF PLOTS 0.00
17,250.00 0.00 17,250.00 0.00100-00-48500-000-000 DONATIONS 0.00

644.47 3,000.00 -2,355.53 21.48100-00-48500-000-002 VENDING MACHINE 144.86
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-48500-000-003 MUNICIPAL BUILDING DONATIONS 0.00
0.00 1,350.00 -1,350.00 0.00100-00-48500-000-006 CEMETARY - SERVICE FEE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-48900-000-000 BLDG DONATIONS APPLIED 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-48900-000-100 PY ROLL OVERS 0.00
0.00 95,000.00 -95,000.00 0.00100-00-48900-000-110 15  YR REPMT FROM WTR UTILITY 0.00

15,371.52 66,945.75 -51,574.23 22.96100-00-48901-000-000 OTHER MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 4,185.50
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-48901-000-001 OTHER MISC REVENUE - PW EQUIP 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-48902-000-000 PROCEEDS FROM LONG-TERM DEBT 0.00

39,603.00 40,000.00 -397.00 99.01100-00-48903-000-000 SALES - PUBLIC WORKS 0.00
0.00 63,585.00 -63,585.00 0.00100-00-48904-000-000 SAFE ROADS TO SCHOOL 0.00
0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.00100-00-48906-000-000 FIRE DEPT RENT 0.00
0.00 2,800.00 -2,800.00 0.00100-00-48907-000-000 INSURANCE REIMBURSE - FIRE 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 8,761.45 34.03104,044.19 -201,736.56305,780.75
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

739,548.78 2,138,765.14Total Revenues 21,713.28 34.58-1,399,216.36
======================================================================================================================================================

148



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND

3
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

5,315.00 19,000.00 13,685.00 27.97100-00-51100-011-000 CITY COUNCIL-WAGES 1,280.00
406.63 1,453.50 1,046.87 27.98100-00-51100-011-100 CITY COUNCIL - FICA/MED 97.94

78.29 500.00 421.71 15.66100-00-51100-012-000 CITY COUNCIL-SUPP & EQUIP 30.87
125.00 850.00 725.00 14.71100-00-51100-013-000 CITY COUNCIL-DUES 0.00

0.00 500.00 500.00 0.00100-00-51100-015-000 CITY COUNCIL-MEAL/MILE/SCHOOL 0.00
1,500.00 3,000.00 1,500.00 50.00100-00-51200-011-000 JUDICIAL-WAGES 250.00
2,182.44 4,367.20 2,184.76 49.97100-00-51200-011-006 JUDICIAL - COURT CLERK WAGES 363.74

281.82 709.50 427.68 39.72100-00-51200-011-100 JUDICIAL - FICA/MED 46.97
-270.00 0.00 270.00 0.00100-00-51200-011-110 JUDICIAL - RETIREMENT 0.00

3,073.50 4,500.00 1,426.50 68.30100-00-51200-013-000 JUDICIAL-PLAN, MAINT, & OPER 13.20
11,163.66 6,000.00 -5,163.66 186.06100-00-51300-000-000 GENERAL ADMINISTRATION-LEGAL 8,798.66

4,181.45 0.00 -4,181.45 0.00100-00-51300-001-000 GEN ADMIN LEGAL- CITY ATTORNEY 1,036.97
890.50 2,500.00 1,609.50 35.62100-00-51350-000-000 GENERAL ADMIN-CODIFICATION 0.00

14,623.78 10,608.00 -4,015.78 137.86100-00-51400-011-000 CITY CLERK-WAGES 1,886.67
1,083.20 811.51 -271.69 133.48100-00-51400-011-100 CLERK - FICA/MED 144.22

654.99 694.82 39.83 94.27100-00-51400-011-110 CLERK - RETIREMENT 76.42
656.53 1,050.00 393.47 62.53100-00-51400-011-121 CLERK - HEALTH INSURANCE 5.75

2,878.00 0.00 -2,878.00 0.00100-00-51400-011-135 CITY HALL WORKERS COMP 0.00
952.15 4,200.00 3,247.85 22.67100-00-51401-001-000 CITY CLERK-PRINTING 582.00

6,889.56 6,100.00 -789.56 112.94100-00-51401-002-000 CITY CLERK-SUPPLIES 3,187.76
17,525.12 6,000.00 -11,525.12 292.09100-00-51401-003-000 CITY CLERK-COMP SUP/EQUIP 0.00

1,293.51 3,000.00 1,706.49 43.12100-00-51401-005-000 CITY CLERK-MEAL/MILE/SCHOOL 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-51401-008-000 CITY CLERK - PTY CSH OVR/UNDER 0.00

4,846.14 14,000.00 9,153.86 34.62100-00-51403-000-000 CITY ADMINISTRATOR - WAGES 1,076.92
344.01 1,071.00 726.99 32.12100-00-51403-011-100 CITY ADMINISTRATOR - FICA 76.45
317.43 917.00 599.57 34.62100-00-51403-011-110 CITY ADMINISTRATOR - RETIREMEN 70.54

1,398.20 3,923.25 2,525.05 35.64100-00-51403-011-120 CITY ADMINISTRATOR - HEALTH IN 310.58
1,048.65 5,516.16 4,467.51 19.01100-00-51404-000-000 ADMIN ASST - WAGES 223.60

80.25 421.99 341.74 19.02100-00-51404-011-100 ADMIN ASST - FICA 17.11
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-51404-011-121 ADMIN ASST -HEALTH INS 0.00

68.69 361.31 292.62 19.01100-00-51404-120-000 ADMIN ASST - RETIREMENT 14.64
0.00 840.00 840.00 0.00100-00-51404-121-000 ADMIN ASST - HEALTH INS 0.00

3,700.00 6,550.00 2,850.00 56.49100-00-51405-011-000 MAYOR-WAGES 850.00
283.07 501.08 218.01 56.49100-00-51405-011-100 MAYOR - FICA/MED 65.03

0.00 300.00 300.00 0.00100-00-51405-012-000 MAYOR-EXPENSE 0.00
1,348.48 4,000.00 2,651.52 33.71100-00-51410-011-000 ELECTION-WAGES 0.00

308.78 1,000.00 691.22 30.88100-00-51410-012-000 ELECTION-EXPENSES 151.50
16,596.50 0.00 -16,596.50 0.00100-00-51432-000-000 GENERAL ADMIN-PREM HEALTH 2,757.75

21.25 500.00 478.75 4.25100-00-51432-001-000 GENERAL ADMIN-PHYS/DRUG TESTS 0.00
3,200.00 15,000.00 11,800.00 21.33100-00-51500-000-000 GENERAL ADMIN-AUDITOR 3,200.00
8,192.28 16,225.00 8,032.72 50.49100-00-51510-000-000 GENERAL ADMIN-ASSESSOR 1,056.29

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-51520-000-000 GENERAL ADMIN-PROF RECRUITMENT 0.00
18,623.04 30,000.00 11,376.96 62.08100-00-51600-000-000 CITY -BLDG MAINT 1,720.54

4,818.06 10,850.00 6,031.94 44.41100-00-51600-000-100 CITY HALL-CLEANING WAGES 655.11
684.14 830.03 145.89 82.42100-00-51600-000-105 CITY HALL-CLEANING - FICA/MED 93.03

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-51600-000-200 CHAMBER OF COM - WAGES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-51600-000-205 CHAMBER OF COM - FICA 0.00

3,184.39 9,000.00 5,815.61 35.38100-00-51610-000-000 CITY HALL-UTILITIES 651.54
1,602.53 3,000.00 1,397.47 53.42100-00-51620-000-000 GENERAL ADMIN-TELEPHONE 472.29

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-51910-000-000 ILLEGAL TAXES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-51910-730-000 ILLEGAL TAXES 0.00

24,109.50 59,341.00 35,231.50 40.63100-00-51938-000-000 GENERAL ADMIN-PROP & LIAB INS 0.00

149



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND

4
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

0.00 4,471.00 4,471.00 0.00100-00-51938-100-000 WORKERS COMP ADMIN 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-51940-000-000 SS/MED MATCH EXPENSE 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
WAGES HOURLY RETIREMENT 31,264.09 64.38170,260.52 94,202.83264,463.35
======================================================================================================================================================

1,417.75 500.00 -917.75 283.55100-00-52100-011-000 SCHOOL CROSS GUARD-WAGES 251.75
108.46 38.25 -70.21 283.56100-00-52100-011-100 SCHOOL CROSSING GUARD FICA/MED 19.26

183,874.60 441,299.00 257,424.40 41.67100-00-52100-013-000 LAW ENFORCEMNT-PLAN,MAINT,OPER 36,774.92
50,485.00 96,000.00 45,515.00 52.59100-00-52200-013-000 FIRE PROTECT-PLAN,MAINT,OPER 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-52200-014-000 FIRE CAP IMP FUND HELD BY CITY 0.00
0.00 5,325.00 5,325.00 0.00100-00-52200-400-000 FIRE PROTECTN-2% FIRE INS TAX 0.00
0.00 89,783.00 89,783.00 0.00100-00-52200-590-000 FIRE PROTECTION 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-52200-591-000 FIRE/AMB AUDIT EXP 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-52300-013-000 AMBULANCE-PLAN,MAINT,OPER 0.00

770.08 0.00 -770.08 0.00100-00-52400-000-000 MISC EXPENSE 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
PUBLIC SAFETY EXPENSE 37,045.93 37.39236,655.89 396,289.36632,945.25
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00100-00-53100-810-000 MACH/EQUIP/VEHICLES 0.00
84,707.92 191,173.96 106,466.04 44.31100-00-53311-011-000 PUBLIC WORKS-WAGES 13,895.94

6,441.58 14,624.81 8,183.23 44.05100-00-53311-011-100 PUBLIC WORKS - FICA/MED 1,057.11
4,990.57 12,521.90 7,531.33 39.85100-00-53311-011-110 PUBLIC WORKS - RETIREMENT 817.21
2,019.19 12,936.00 10,916.81 15.61100-00-53311-011-121 PUBLIC WORKS - HEALTH INS. 310.58
8,666.38 9,000.00 333.62 96.29100-00-53311-013-000 PUBLIC WORKS-PLAN,MAINT,OPER 1,489.68

22,807.24 18,000.00 -4,807.24 126.71100-00-53311-013-001 PUBLIC WORKS - UTILITIES 4,092.85
10,286.69 12,000.00 1,713.31 85.72100-00-53311-013-005 PUBLIC WORKS - FUEL 1,254.81

556.47 2,000.00 1,443.53 27.82100-00-53311-013-006 PUBLIC WORKS - UNIFORMS CLOTHI 169.74
4,035.88 20,000.00 15,964.12 20.18100-00-53311-013-015 PUBLIC WORKS - VEHICLE MNTCE 324.98

654.35 7,099.93 6,445.58 9.22100-00-53311-013-020 PUBLIC WORKS - BRUSH WAGES 654.35
50.06 543.14 493.08 9.22100-00-53311-013-021 PUBLIC WORKS - BRUSH FICA/MED 50.06
42.86 465.05 422.19 9.22100-00-53311-013-022 PUBLIC WORKS - BRUSH RET 42.86

19,584.53 18,459.83 -1,124.70 106.09100-00-53311-013-025 PUBLIC WORKS - SNOW WAGES 0.00
1,498.21 1,412.18 -86.03 106.09100-00-53311-013-026 PUBLIC WORKS - SNOW FICA/MED 0.00
1,282.77 1,209.12 -73.65 106.09100-00-53311-013-027 PUBLIC WORKS - SNOW RET 0.00
8,885.96 15,000.00 6,114.04 59.24100-00-53311-013-100 PUBLIC WORKS - SALT 0.00

10,000.00 10,000.00 0.00 100.00100-00-53311-013-200 PUBLIC WORKS - CRACK FILLING 10,000.00
3,800.00 7,500.00 3,700.00 50.67100-00-53311-013-400 PUBLIC WORKS - STREET SWEEPING 3,800.00
9,993.71 180,000.00 170,006.29 5.55100-00-53311-014-000 PUBLIC WORKS-CAP IMPROVEMENT 9,993.71
2,412.50 0.00 -2,412.50 0.00100-00-53311-014-010 CAP IMP - EMG RPR - BUTTERNUT 2,412.50

0.00 73,891.50 73,891.50 0.00100-00-53311-014-020 SAFE ROUTE TO SCHOOL 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-53311-014-100 CDBG - 2018 0.00

1,500.00 0.00 -1,500.00 0.00100-00-53311-014-120 CDBG - PROFESSIONAL  SERVICES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-53311-015-000 STREET MAINT & SIDEWALK 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-53311-015-100 PUBLIC WORKS - WORKERS COMP 0.00
0.00 630.00 630.00 0.00100-00-53311-121-022 PUBLIC WORKS - BRUSH HEALTH IN 0.00
0.00 1,638.00 1,638.00 0.00100-00-53311-121-027 PUBLIC WORKS - SNOW HEALTH IN 0.00
0.00 6,149.25 6,149.25 0.00100-00-53311-121-100 PUBLIC WORKS - ADMIN HEALTH IN 0.00

652.23 25,000.00 24,347.77 2.61100-00-53420-000-000 STREET LIGHTING-UTILITIES 117.20
30,570.61 0.00 -30,570.61 0.00100-00-53630-012-000 GARBAGE COLL-PROFESSIONAL SERV 5,988.70
11,930.85 70,000.00 58,069.15 17.04100-00-53631-013-000 RECYCLING - PROFESSIONAL SERV 2,604.57

21.78 0.00 -21.78 0.00100-00-53631-013-620 RECYCLING -UTILITIES 0.00
3,150.00 6,580.00 3,430.00 47.87100-00-53631-014-000 LANDFILL- SUB TITLE D 3,150.00

150



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND

5
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

======================================================================================================================================================
PUBLIC WORK EXPENSE 62,226.85 32.63250,542.34 517,292.33767,834.67
======================================================================================================================================================

2,239.51 8,825.00 6,585.49 25.38100-00-54910-011-000 CEMETERY-WAGES 1,185.25
170.18 675.11 504.93 25.21100-00-54910-011-100 CEMETERY - FICA/MED 90.69

86.75 0.00 -86.75 0.00100-00-54910-013-000 CEMETERY-PLAN,MAINT,OPER 86.75
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-54910-014-000 CEMETERY-PERPETUAL CARE 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICE EXPENSE 1,362.69 26.282,496.44 7,003.679,500.11
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 89,415.00 89,415.00 0.00100-00-55110-013-000 LIBRARY-PLAN,MAINT,OPER 0.00
1,151.70 0.00 -1,151.70 0.00100-00-55150-013-000 SHORTNER PARK-PLAN,MAINT,OPER 442.23
1,262.77 2,000.00 737.23 63.14100-00-55200-005-000 BEAUTIFICATION 1,277.77

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-55200-010-000 BEAUTIFICATION WAGES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-55200-010-100 BEAUTIFICATION - FICA/MED 0.00

5,608.41 12,000.00 6,391.59 46.74100-00-55200-011-000 PARKS AND RECREATION-WAGES 2,044.26
429.05 918.00 488.95 46.74100-00-55200-011-100 PARK & REC - FICA/MED 156.37
278.87 0.00 -278.87 0.00100-00-55200-011-110 PARK & REC - RETIREMENT 45.41

1,062.21 0.00 -1,062.21 0.00100-00-55200-012-000 PARKS AND RECREATN-SUP & EQUIP 841.70
8,177.92 20,000.00 11,822.08 40.89100-00-55200-013-000 PARKS/REC-PLAN,MAINT,OPER 2,398.32

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-55200-014-000 PARKS AND RECREATION-CAP IMP 0.00
0.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 0.00100-00-55200-016-000 CLARK CO ECO DEV MBSHP 0.00
0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 0.00100-00-55290-000-000 CITY ADVERTISING/PROMOTION 0.00

3,700.00 2,500.00 -1,200.00 148.00100-00-55400-012-000 FIREWORKS-SUP & EQUIPMENT 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
LEISURE EXPENSE 7,206.06 15.9021,670.93 114,662.07136,333.00
======================================================================================================================================================

16,560.71 0.00 -16,560.71 0.00100-00-56700-000-000 ROOM TAX EXPENSE 0.00
240.93 0.00 -240.93 0.00100-00-56705-000-000 VENDING MACHINE EXPENSE 56.78

======================================================================================================================================================
BUS 29 PROJECT 56.78 0.0016,801.64 -16,801.640.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-57150-000-000 MUNICIPAL BUILDING 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-57152-000-000 INDUSTRIAL PARK EXPANSION 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
CAPITAL OUTLAY 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

7,197.12 110,012.95 102,815.83 6.54100-00-58100-000-000 PRINCIPAL - LONG TERM DEBT 0.00
150,000.00 150,000.00 0.00 100.00100-00-58110-000-000 PRINCIPAL - PUBLIC SAFETY 0.00

26,546.44 51,678.75 25,132.31 51.37100-00-58290-000-000 INTEREST - LONG TERM DEBT 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-58300-000-000 CONTINGENCY 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00100-00-58390-000-000 BOND ISSUE COST 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
DEBT SERVICE 0.00 58.95183,743.56 127,948.14311,691.70
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

882,171.32 2,122,768.08Total Expenses 139,162.40 41.561,240,596.76
======================================================================================================================================================

158,619.6015,997.06-117,449.12 -891.55-142,622.54Net Totals

151



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 400 - LIBRARY

1
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-40010-000-000 STATE AIDS 0.00
33,508.53 0.00 33,508.53 0.00400-00-40020-000-000 CLARK COUNTY AIDS 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-40030-000-000 CITY OF ABBOTSFORD 0.00
2,533.38 0.00 2,533.38 0.00400-00-40040-000-000 OTHER REVENUES 70.05
1,682.26 0.00 1,682.26 0.00400-00-40041-000-000 FINES/PRINTER 348.70

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-40042-000-000 FROM SVGS 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-40043-000-000 DONATIONS 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
INCOME ACCOUNTS 418.75 0.0037,724.17 37,724.170.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-43790-000-000 GRANTS FROM OTHER LOCAL GOVTS 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
INTERSTATE REVENUE 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

74.57 0.00 74.57 0.00400-00-48111-000-000 INTEREST INCOME 14.77
======================================================================================================================================================
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 14.77 0.0074.57 74.570.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

37,798.74 0.00Total Revenues 433.52 0.0037,798.74
======================================================================================================================================================

152



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 400 - LIBRARY

2
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

31,484.96 0.00 -31,484.96 0.00400-00-55140-100-000 LIBRARY COMPENSATION-SALARIES 4,840.87
1,558.65 0.00 -1,558.65 0.00400-00-55140-133-000 LIBRARY COMPENSATION-RETIREMNT 237.32
2,349.15 0.00 -2,349.15 0.00400-00-55140-135-000 LIBRARY COMPENSATION-FICA/MED 361.17

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-55141-000-000 LIBRARY COMPENSATION - IND PR 0.00
3,438.65 0.00 -3,438.65 0.00400-00-55142-000-000 LIBRARY SALARIES - HI 400.00

75.00 0.00 -75.00 0.00400-00-55147-000-000 GRANT EXPENSE/NON BUDGETED 0.00
7,638.34 0.00 -7,638.34 0.00400-00-55150-000-000 BOOKS 3,301.98

55.00 0.00 -55.00 0.00400-00-55151-000-000 PERIODICALS 0.00
861.55 0.00 -861.55 0.00400-00-55152-000-000 OFFICE & COMPUTER 127.96

1,458.23 0.00 -1,458.23 0.00400-00-55153-000-000 AUDIO VISUAL MATERIALS 136.40
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-55154-000-000 COMPUTER SUPPLIES 0.00

302.74 0.00 -302.74 0.00400-00-55155-000-000 PROGRAMING & SPECIALS 4.68
179.63 0.00 -179.63 0.00400-00-55156-000-000 EQUIPMENT 27.99

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-55156-100-000 LICENSES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-55157-000-000 WORKSHOPS AND EDUCATION 0.00

454.79 0.00 -454.79 0.00400-00-55158-000-000 TELEPHONE AND T1 LINE 134.20
25.00 0.00 -25.00 0.00400-00-55159-000-000 PUBLICATION AND MISC EXPENSE 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-55160-000-000 ADMIN CHARGES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-55161-000-000 COURIER SERVICE 0.00

3,282.20 0.00 -3,282.20 0.00400-00-55162-000-000 VCAT/WISCNET/ADMIN 0.00
58.55 0.00 -58.55 0.00400-00-55163-000-000 POSTAGE 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-55164-000-000 AUTOMATION START-UP 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-55165-000-000 WISCAT LICENSE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-55166-000-000 UTILITIES/JANITORIAL/MAINT 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00400-00-55167-000-000 ACCOUNTING/INSURANCE 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
LEISURE EXPENSE 9,572.57 0.0053,222.44 -53,222.440.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

53,222.44 0.00Total Expenses 9,572.57 0.00-53,222.44
======================================================================================================================================================

15,423.700.00-9,139.05 -15,423.70Net Totals

153



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 500 - POLICE DEPARTMENT

1
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-40001-000-000 CASH ON HAND 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
INCOME ACCOUNTS 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-43001-000-000 CITY OF COLBY 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-43002-000-000 CITY OF ABBOTSFORD 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-43003-000-000 REPORTS 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-43004-000-000 EARNED INTEREST 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-43005-000-000 OTHER INCOME 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-43005-406-000 OTHER INCOME 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-43005-410-000 OTHER INCOME 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
INTERSTATE REVENUE 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00Total Revenues 0.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

154



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 500 - POLICE DEPARTMENT

2
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51001-000-000 SALARIES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51002-000-000 AUTOMOBILE FUEL 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51003-000-000 TELEPHONE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51004-000-000 LIABILITY INSURANCE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51004-407-000 HEALTH INSURANCE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51004-409-000 WORKMEN'S COMP INSURANCE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51004-411-000 AUTO INSURANCE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51005-000-000 RADIO MAINTENANCE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51006-000-000 AUTOMOBILE MAINTENANCE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51007-000-000 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51007-401-000 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51008-000-000 SOC.SEC.(EMPLOYER SHARE) 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51009-000-000 TRAINING,SCHOOLS,CONVENTIONS 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51010-000-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51010-010-000 COPIES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51011-000-000 RADAR PURCHASE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51011-010-000 RADAR MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51011-020-000 RADAR CERTIFICATION 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51012-000-000 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51013-000-000 STATE RETIREMENT-DEPT. SHARE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51014-000-000 CONTINGENCY FUND 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51015-000-000 COPIER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51016-000-000 TITAN MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51017-000-000 COMPUTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51017-010-000 INTERNET 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51018-000-000 EQUIPMENT PURCHASES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51019-000-000 INVESTIGATIONS 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51020-000-000 AUDIT 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51021-000-000 LEGAL FEES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51022-000-000 TIME SYSTEM 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51023-000-000 AUTO PURCHASE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51024-000-000 RENT 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00500-00-51025-000-000 PAGER SERVICE 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
WAGES HOURLY RETIREMENT 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00Total Expenses 0.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.000.000.00 0.00Net Totals

155



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 600 - WATER UTILITY FUND

1
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00600-00-43650-000-000 CDBG GRANT REVENUE 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
INTERSTATE REVENUE 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00600-00-46100-000-419 PUB CHGES SVCS GEN GOV-INT/DIV 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00600-00-46100-000-426 MISCELLANEOUS AMORTIZATION 0.00

161,816.00 282,000.00 -120,184.00 57.38600-00-46100-000-461 PUB CHGES SVCS GEN GOV-RES MET 19,019.99
54,157.77 103,000.00 -48,842.23 52.58600-00-46100-000-462 PUB CHGES SVCS GEN GOV-COMM MT 5,951.11
30,448.64 41,000.00 -10,551.36 74.26600-00-46100-000-463 PUB CHGES SVCS GEN GOV-MULTI F 3,090.11
27,993.99 45,000.00 -17,006.01 62.21600-00-46100-000-464 PUB CHGES SVCS GEN GOV-PUB/AUT 3,034.43

530,606.70 875,000.00 -344,393.30 60.64600-00-46100-000-465 PUB CHGES SVCS GEN GOV-INDUST 61,265.84
90.00 0.00 90.00 0.00600-00-46100-000-466 DISCONNECT CHARGES 0.00

707.44 1,000.00 -292.56 70.74600-00-46100-000-470 PUB CHGES SVCS GEN GOV-PENALTY 132.60
57.28 3,000.00 -2,942.72 1.91600-00-46100-000-474 PUB CHGES SVCS GEN GOV-OTH WAT 5.97

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00600-00-46100-000-476 CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL REVENUE 0.00
0.00 89,783.00 -89,783.00 0.00600-00-46100-000-489 PUB FIRE PROTECTION 0.00

19,909.44 35,000.00 -15,090.56 56.88600-00-46100-000-490 PUB FIRE PROT - COMMERCIAL 2,923.04
17,821.71 31,000.00 -13,178.29 57.49600-00-46100-000-492 PUB FIRE PROTECTION - INDUSTRI 2,546.06
11,155.21 22,000.00 -10,844.79 50.71600-00-46100-000-494 PUB FIRE PROTECTION - PUB AUTH 1,632.88
74,613.36 124,000.00 -49,386.64 60.17600-00-46100-000-496 PUB FIRE PROTECTION - RES 10,794.21

======================================================================================================================================================
PUBLIC CHARGES FOR SERVICES 110,396.24 56.27929,377.54 -722,405.461,651,783.00
======================================================================================================================================================

2,291.45 1,000.00 1,291.45 229.15600-00-47100-000-419 WATER REVENUE-INT/DIV INCOME 380.61
33.36 3,000.00 -2,966.64 1.11600-00-47100-000-421 OTHER LOAN/CONT 33.36

======================================================================================================================================================
OTHER INCOME 413.97 58.122,324.81 -1,675.194,000.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

931,702.35 1,655,783.00Total Revenues 110,810.21 56.27-724,080.65
======================================================================================================================================================

156



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 600 - WATER UTILITY FUND

2
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00600-00-53200-000-000 PUBLIC WORKS 0.00
1,017.00 0.00 -1,017.00 0.00600-00-53200-000-021 WATER - ENGINEERING SERVICES 0.00

0.00 600,000.00 600,000.00 0.00600-00-53200-000-403 WATER-DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 0.00
0.00 14,000.00 14,000.00 0.00600-00-53200-000-408 WATER-TAXES 0.00
0.00 160,000.00 160,000.00 0.00600-00-53200-000-426 DEPRECIATION EXPENSE-CONTRIBUT 0.00

138,007.12 411,559.81 273,552.69 33.53600-00-53200-000-427 WATER-RECDS INTEREST PAYMT 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00600-00-53200-000-428 WATER - USDA PRIN 0.00

21,412.50 361,500.00 340,087.50 5.92600-00-53200-000-432 WATER-BOND AMORTIZATION 0.00
47,871.50 112,000.00 64,128.50 42.74600-00-53200-000-620 WATER-UTILITIES 7,977.77

7,522.20 11,000.00 3,477.80 68.38600-00-53200-000-630 WATER-CHEMICALS 1,306.18
24,217.15 157,000.00 132,782.85 15.42600-00-53200-000-640 WATER-OPER SUPP & EXPENSE 3,997.02
17,313.26 176,000.00 158,686.74 9.84600-00-53200-000-650 WATER-RPRS PLNT/LINES/HYDR 10,233.31

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00600-00-53200-000-652 PILOT PROGRAM EXPENSE 0.00
0.00 20,000.00 20,000.00 0.00600-00-53200-000-653 VEHICLE/EQUIP REPLACEMENT FND 0.00
0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00600-00-53200-000-657 CDBG - 2018 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00600-00-53200-000-658 EAU PLN WELL FIELD EXPLORATION 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00600-00-53200-000-659 EAU PLEINE - RD FUNDING 0.00

868.11 4,200.00 3,331.89 20.67600-00-53200-000-660 WATER-TRANSPORTATION 0.00
1,359.00 850.00 -509.00 159.88600-00-53200-000-681 WATER-OFFICE SUPPLIES 135.40
3,975.00 6,000.00 2,025.00 66.25600-00-53200-000-682 WATER-OUTSIDE SERVICES 3,975.00

10,554.75 13,461.00 2,906.25 78.41600-00-53200-000-684 WATER-INSURANCE 0.00
0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00600-00-53200-000-685 WATER - WORKERS COMP 0.00

1,782.10 825.00 -957.10 216.01600-00-53200-000-688 REGULATORY COMMISSION EXP 0.00
0.00 5,048.87 5,048.87 0.00600-00-53200-000-690 WATER WAGES/FICA 24/7 TEMP PNT 0.00

7,292.14 5,000.00 -2,292.14 145.84600-00-53200-001-000 WATER - LEGAL SERVICES 1,520.50
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00600-00-53200-100-000 PUBLIC WORKS 0.00

23,067.42 49,498.40 26,430.98 46.60600-00-53200-100-680 WATER-ADMIN SALARIES 3,507.89
50,932.73 65,998.31 15,065.58 77.17600-00-53200-120-680 WATER WAGES 8,762.63

0.00 8,348.06 8,348.06 0.00600-00-53200-121-680 WATER - ADMIN HEALTH INS 0.00
2,524.09 5,586.00 3,061.91 45.19600-00-53200-131-680 WATER-HEALTH INSURANCE 388.24
4,525.43 3,242.15 -1,283.28 139.58600-00-53200-133-680 WATER-ADMIN RETIREMENT 748.88
6,077.55 3,786.63 -2,290.92 160.50600-00-53200-135-680 WATER-ADMIN FICA/MEDICARE 995.90

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00600-00-53580-000-428 AMORTIZATION OF DEBT DISCOUNT 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
PUBLIC WORK EXPENSE 43,548.72 16.48370,319.05 1,877,085.182,247,404.23
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

370,319.05 2,247,404.23Total Expenses 43,548.72 16.481,877,085.18
======================================================================================================================================================

-1,153,004.53-591,621.2367,261.49 -94.89561,383.30Net Totals

157



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 700 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

1
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00700-00-48111-000-000 INTEREST INCOME 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00700-00-48306-000-000 SALE OF CITY PROPERTY 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00700-00-48900-000-000 REFUND OF ALLOWANCE FOR DBTFL 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00Total Revenues 0.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

158



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 700 - ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT

2
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00700-00-56700-000-000 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00700-00-56800-000-000 EXPENDITURES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00700-00-56900-000-000 BAD DEBT EXPENSE 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
BUS 29 PROJECT 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00Total Expenses 0.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.000.000.00 0.00Net Totals

159



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 800 - SEWER UTILITY FUND

1
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

2,964.67 0.00 2,964.67 0.00800-00-47100-000-419 SEWER REVENUE-INT/DIV INC 103.64
216,095.51 365,000.00 -148,904.49 59.20800-00-47100-000-623 SEWER REVENUE-RESID METERED 29,529.94

66,105.96 117,000.00 -50,894.04 56.50800-00-47100-000-624 SEWER REVENUE-COMM METERED 8,482.59
34,307.37 59,000.00 -24,692.63 58.15800-00-47100-000-625 SEWER REVENUE-IND METERED 4,838.06
36,025.19 53,000.00 -16,974.81 67.97800-00-47100-000-626 SEWER REVENUE-PUB AUTH METERED 4,723.84
22,749.96 29,000.00 -6,250.04 78.45800-00-47100-000-628 SEWER MULTI FAMILY REV 2,850.61

2,471.85 4,000.00 -1,528.15 61.80800-00-47100-000-631 SEWER REVENUE-CUST PENALTIES 505.61
-15,143.99 400,000.00 -415,143.99 -3.79800-00-47100-000-635 SEWER REVENUE-MISC OPERATING 300.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00800-00-47100-000-637 SEWER REVENUE 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00800-00-47100-000-640 OTHER INC - CONTRIB/LOAN 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00800-00-47100-006-400 SEVER PREV YEAR ROLL OVER 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
OTHER INCOME 51,334.29 35.60365,576.52 -661,423.481,027,000.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

365,576.52 1,027,000.00Total Revenues 51,334.29 35.60-661,423.48
======================================================================================================================================================

160



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 800 - SEWER UTILITY FUND

2
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00800-00-53580-000-428 AMORTIZATION OF DEBT DISCOUNT 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00800-00-53610-000-150 SEWER 0.00
0.00 300,000.00 300,000.00 0.00800-00-53610-000-426 DEPRECIATION EXPENCE-CONTRIBUT 0.00

80,363.25 279,649.50 199,286.25 28.74800-00-53610-000-427 SEWER-INTEREST PAYMENT 0.00
0.00 120,300.00 120,300.00 0.00800-00-53610-000-432 SEWER-BOND AMORTIZATION 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00800-00-53610-000-435 SEWER RESERVE FUND 0.00

10,554.75 13,461.00 2,906.25 78.41800-00-53610-000-463 SEWER-INSURANCE 0.00
0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00 0.00800-00-53610-000-464 SEWER - WORKERS COMP 0.00
0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00 0.00800-00-53610-000-465 SEWER - LEGAL EXPENSES 0.00

19,470.65 60,000.00 40,529.35 32.45800-00-53610-000-620 SEWER-UTILITIES 3,540.00
8,961.49 11,000.00 2,038.51 81.47800-00-53610-000-630 SEWER-CHEMICALS 4,960.84

25,645.68 56,000.00 30,354.32 45.80800-00-53610-000-640 SEWER-OPER SUPP/EXPENSE 2,826.90
26,901.00 46,000.00 19,099.00 58.48800-00-53610-000-645 SEWER - LINE MAINTENANCE 26,775.00

5,950.43 21,000.00 15,049.57 28.34800-00-53610-000-650 SEWER-REPAIRS TO PLANT/LINES 0.00
23,467.76 0.00 -23,467.76 0.00800-00-53610-000-656 SEWER - NEW PLANT 2014 0.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00800-00-53610-000-657 CDBG - 2018 0.00
206.80 1,000.00 793.20 20.68800-00-53610-000-660 SEWER-TRANSPORTATION 77.92

0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00 0.00800-00-53610-000-661 VEHICLE REPLACEMENT FUND 0.00
1,426.45 600.00 -826.45 237.74800-00-53610-000-681 SEWER-OFFICE SUPPLIES 44.00

14,040.57 6,000.00 -8,040.57 234.01800-00-53610-000-682 SEWER-OUTSIDE SERVICES 3,200.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00800-00-53610-017-000 SEWER-DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 0.00

36,963.61 49,890.48 12,926.87 74.09800-00-53610-100-680 SEWER-ADMINISTRATION SALARIES 5,022.43
0.00 4,322.89 4,322.89 0.00800-00-53610-120-000 SEWER - RETIREMENT 0.00

28,796.15 65,998.31 37,202.16 43.63800-00-53610-120-680 SEWER- WAGES 4,633.11
0.00 8,348.06 8,348.06 0.00800-00-53610-121-000 SEWER - ADMIN HEALTH INS 0.00

2,524.20 5,586.00 3,061.80 45.19800-00-53610-131-680 SEWER-HEALTH INSURANCE 388.30
4,125.86 3,267.83 -858.03 126.26800-00-53610-133-680 SEWER-RETIREMENT 601.83
4,471.62 8,865.49 4,393.87 50.44800-00-53610-135-680 SEWER-FICA/MEDICARE 666.59

======================================================================================================================================================
PUBLIC WORK EXPENSE 52,736.92 27.44293,870.27 776,919.291,070,789.56
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00800-00-58390-000-000 BOND ISSUE COST 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
DEBT SERVICE 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

293,870.27 1,070,789.56Total Expenses 52,736.92 27.44776,919.29
======================================================================================================================================================

-115,495.81-43,789.56-1,402.63 -163.7571,706.25Net Totals

161



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 900 - TIF DISTRICT #5

1
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

7,178.05 0.00 7,178.05 0.00900-00-41110-000-000 GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00900-00-41115-000-000 EXEMPT COMPUTER AID 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00900-00-41170-000-000 GEN PROPERTY TAX 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
TAXES 0.00 0.007,178.05 7,178.050.00
======================================================================================================================================================

50.49 0.00 50.49 0.00900-00-43311-000-000 PERSONAL PROPERTY AID - STATE 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
INTERSTATE REVENUE 0.00 0.0050.49 50.490.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00900-00-48111-000-000 INTEREST INCOME 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00900-00-48900-000-000 LOAN PROCEEDS 0.00
0.00 711,731.86 -711,731.86 0.00900-00-48901-000-000 TIF DISTRICT REVENUE 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 0.00 0.000.00 -711,731.86711,731.86
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

7,228.54 711,731.86Total Revenues 0.00 1.02-704,503.32
======================================================================================================================================================

162



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 900 - TIF DISTRICT #5

2
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

1,015.78 0.00 -1,015.78 0.00900-00-51000-000-000 TIF EXPENDITURES 200.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00900-00-51000-000-120 TIF 5 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
WAGES HOURLY RETIREMENT 200.00 0.001,015.78 -1,015.780.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00900-00-53311-000-000 CAP IMP 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
PUBLIC WORK EXPENSE 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

11,572.68 0.00 -11,572.68 0.00900-00-58100-000-000 TIF PRINIPAL 0.00
1,065.81 0.00 -1,065.81 0.00900-00-58290-000-000 TIF INTEREST 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
DEBT SERVICE 0.00 0.0012,638.49 -12,638.490.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

13,654.27 0.00Total Expenses 200.00 0.00-13,654.27
======================================================================================================================================================

718,157.59711,731.86-200.00 -0.90-6,425.73Net Totals

163



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 960 - TIF DISTRICT #6

1
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

269,106.88 356,170.00 -87,063.12 75.56960-00-41110-000-000 GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00960-00-41115-000-000 EXEMPT COMPUTER AID 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
TAXES 0.00 75.56269,106.88 -87,063.12356,170.00
======================================================================================================================================================

3,458.63 0.00 3,458.63 0.00960-00-43311-000-000 PERSONAL PROPERTY AID - STATE 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
INTERSTATE REVENUE 0.00 0.003,458.63 3,458.630.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00960-00-48111-000-000 INTEREST INCOME 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00960-00-48900-000-000 TIF DISRICT REVENUE 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

272,565.51 356,170.00Total Revenues 0.00 76.53-83,604.49
======================================================================================================================================================

164



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 960 - TIF DISTRICT #6

2
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

368,994.20 0.00 -368,994.20 0.00960-00-51000-000-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES/EXPENSES 266.59
500.00 0.00 -500.00 0.00960-00-51000-000-020 TIF 6 - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 500.00

73,698.75 0.00 -73,698.75 0.00960-00-51000-000-021 TIF EXPENDITURES - ENG 36,418.75
6,027.25 0.00 -6,027.25 0.00960-00-51000-000-120 TIF PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 1,209.25

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00960-00-51000-000-150 TIF INCENTIVES 0.00
468.00 0.00 -468.00 0.00960-00-51000-001-000 TIF 6 LEGAL SERVICES 468.00

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00960-00-51000-011-100 TIF 6 FICA/MEDICARE - HOURLY 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00960-00-51000-011-110 WAGES HOURLY RETIREMENT 0.00

3,499.99 0.00 -3,499.99 0.00960-00-51000-100-000 TIF 6 ADMIN WAGES 538.46
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00960-00-51000-120-000 TIF 6 WAGES 0.00

229.19 0.00 -229.19 0.00960-00-51000-133-000 TIF 6 ADMIN RETIREMENT 35.26
248.37 0.00 -248.37 0.00960-00-51000-135-000 TIF 6 ADMIN FICA/MEDICARE 38.21

1,009.60 0.00 -1,009.60 0.00960-00-51000-140-000 TIF 6 ADMIN HEALTH INSURANCE 155.29
======================================================================================================================================================
WAGES HOURLY RETIREMENT 39,629.81 0.00454,675.35 -454,675.350.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00960-00-53311-000-000 CAP IMP 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00960-00-53311-000-001 CDBG - PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
PUBLIC WORK EXPENSE 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00960-00-58100-000-000 PRINCIPAL-lAND PURCH-SCHILLING 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00960-00-58290-000-000 TIF INTEREST 0.00
0.00 152,758.33 152,758.33 0.00960-00-58290-000-001 TIF 6 PRINCIPAL 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00960-00-58390-000-000 BOND ISSUE COST 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
DEBT SERVICE 0.00 0.000.00 152,758.33152,758.33
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

454,675.35 152,758.33Total Expenses 39,629.81 297.64-301,917.02
======================================================================================================================================================

385,521.51203,411.67-39,629.81 -89.53-182,109.84Net Totals

165



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 970 - TIF DISTRICT #7

1
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00970-00-41170-000-000 GEN PROPERTY TAX 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
TAXES 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00970-00-48111-000-000 INTEREST INCOME 0.00
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00970-00-48901-000-000 TIF DISTRICT REVENUE 0.00

======================================================================================================================================================
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00Total Revenues 0.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

166



Budget Comparison - Detail

2019
2019 Budget

Status Budget
% of

June

Fund: 970 - TIF DISTRICT #7

2
ACCT

12:04 PM7/30/2019

Actual 2019
Account Number 06/30/2019 Budget

Page:

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00970-00-51000-000-000 TIF EXPENDITURES 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
WAGES HOURLY RETIREMENT 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00970-00-53311-000-000 CAP IMP 0.00
======================================================================================================================================================
PUBLIC WORK EXPENSE 0.00 0.000.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================
======================================================================================================================================================

0.00 0.00Total Expenses 0.00 0.000.00
======================================================================================================================================================

0.000.000.00 0.00Net Totals

167



 Kick-Off Meeting Agenda 

Date: August 13, 2019 
Time: 9:30-1:30 
Client Name: City of Abbotsford, WI 
Project Name: Financial and Utility Billing Software Implementation 

AGENDA ITEM TIME ATTENDEES 

INTRODUCTIONS & IMPLEMENTATION/ 
PROJECT MANAGEMENT PHILOSOPHY 9:30 – 10:00 ALL KEY PLAYERS 

TRAINING/IMPLEMENTATION TIMELINE 10:00 – 10:30 ALL KEY PLAYERS 
- Review key dates – payroll processes, utility billings, due dates, shut offs, vacations 
- Review training location  
- Review training equipment needs 

GENERAL LEDGER & MISC BREAKOUT 10:30 – 11:15 FINANCIAL
PERSONNEL 

- Review Chart of Accounts structure 
- Sample general reports used internally (e.g. Budget to Actual)* 
- Sample budget documents 
- Review current budget, journal entry and reconciliations processes 
- Sample Account Receivable Invoices 

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE BREAKOUT  11:15 – 11:45 AP PERSONNEL 
- Sample Invoice Register used for payment approval, if one is used. 
- Sample blank check stock 
- Sample check stock printed with vendor information 
- Other sample accounts payable reports used during the accounts payable process* 
- Discussion of accounts payable process including approvals 

PAYROLL BREAKOUT    11:45 – 12:30 PAYROLL PERSONNEL 
- Pay Code and Deduction Code Listing 
- Sample Payroll Register 
- Sample Benefits Register 
- Sample blank check and direct deposit slip stock 
- Sample check and direct deposit slip stock with employee information printed 
- Other sample payroll reports used during the payroll process* 
- Review payroll process 
- Review information needed for time entry (types of tasks performed) 

168



 Kick-Off Meeting Agenda 

UTILITY BILLING AND CASH
RECEIPTING BREAKOUT   12:30 – 1:15 UB PERSONNEL 

- Sample blank utility bill form 
- Sample utility bill form with customer information printed 
- Sample blank delinquent notice 
- Sample delinquent notice with customer information printed 
- Sample blank shutoff notice 
- Sample shutoff notice with customer information printed 
- Sample billing proof report* 
- Rate and service listing 
- Other sample utility billing reports used during the billing process* 
- Review billing processes 

WRAP-UP 1:15 – 1:30 

169



170



171



172



173



City of Abbotsford, WI   Clark and Marathon Counties 

Resolution 2019-5 
A resolution requiring that all checks written from City banks accounts 

require 2 (two) signatures 

1. WHEREAS, the City Council previously authorized requiring only one signature on City
2. Checks so that the City could use a debit card.
3. 
4. WHEREAS, on March 11, 2019, the City Council approved obtaining credit cards for the
5. City to improve accountability.
6. 
7. WHEREAS, credit cards have been issued to the City of Abbotsford and the debit card is
8. Deactivated.
9. 
10. WHEREAS, preferred cash management policies require two signatures for all checks
11. Written by the City.
12. 
13. NOWTHEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Abbotsford, Wisconsin,
14. Clark and Marathon Counties requires that all checks written by the City of Abbotsford
15. Require two signatures for payment.
16. 
17. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the approved signers for City banks accounts are Mayor Lori
18. Voss, Council President Brent Faber, City Administrator Dan Grady, and Deputy Clerk
19. Louella Luedtke.

Approved this 5th Day of August 2019 

174



_________________________ 

Mayor Lori Voss  

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Dan Grady – City Administrator/Clerk/Treasurer 

175



City of Abbotsford, WI   Clark and Marathon Counties 

Resolution 2019-6 
A Resolution Creating a Separate Savings Account for the Abbotsford 

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 

1. WHEREAS, the City of Abbotsford has agreed to pay the Abbotsford Cemetery
2. Association interest earned from the Perpetual Care Fund every January and July based
3. up the prevailing interest rate for a savings account with a balance of $10,000.00 or
4. More.
5. 
6. WHEREAS, currently all perpetual care monies have been co-mingled with the City
7. General fund and, as a result, City taxpayers have been paying the interest.
8. 
9. WHEREAS, creating a separate savings account for the perpetual care funds would allow
10. For greater accountability.
11. 
12. WHEREAS, a separate savings account for the Perpetual Care Funds would generate a
13. Separate interest payment to pay Abbotsford Cemetery Association not funded by the
14. City taxpayers.
15. 
16. NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of Abbotsford,
17. Wisconsin, Clark and Marathon Counties, approves the opening of a new savings
18. Account for the Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund and depositing the current fund balance
19. Of $38,455.92 (account # 100-00-27131-000-000) from the City general fund account
20. (account #100-00-10000-000-000).
21. 
22. BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, further interest payments to the Cemetery Association or its
23. Successor be paid from the interest generated from the new savings account.
24. 
25. BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, the approved signers for the new Perpetual Care Fund savings
26. Account are Mayor Lori Voss, Council President Brent Faber, City Administrator Dan
27. Grady, and Deputy Clerk Louella Luedtke.

176



Approved this 5th Day of August 2019 

_________________________ 

Mayor Lori Voss  

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

Dan Grady – City Administrator/Clerk/Treasurer 

177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189


	August 5, 2019 CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
	AGENDA FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING TO BE HELD

	3. A. Influent and Effluent copper results
	Sheet1

	3. B. Employee Handbook Minutes 6-10-19
	3. C. Employee Handbook Minutes 6-24-19
	3. D. United Mayors Minutes
	7. July 1 2019 City Council Minutes
	9. Library Aug 2019
	9. Library expectations
	9. Library Minutes July 2019
	10. Central Fire EMS meeting July 18, 2019
	10. July 2019 Chief's Report
	10. July 2019 Meeting Financials
	11. July 2019 Police Packet
	12. Ordinance 2019-5 Police Commission
	13. ORDINANCE 2019-7
	14. 2019 GO Debt Capacity and Projected Debt Levy (7.30.2019)
	14. 2019 TID 6 Update (7.30.2019)
	14. City of Abbotsford - 2018 Debt Information
	15. A. Abbotsford August 2019 Project Update
	15. B. Memo Industrial Park Drive
	15. B. 7681025 CSM Industrial Park Drive
	Sheets and Views
	7681025 CSM-LegalCSM1
	7681025 CSM-LegalCSM2
	7681025 CSM-LegalCSM2 (2)


	15. C. Spruce Street Resurfacing Estimate - Copy
	15. C. SRTS EStimate
	15. D. 7681014 Pay Req #5 -FINAL Haas signed
	15. E. 07681014 CO3 Zero Out 08.01.19
	15. F. 07681026 CO1 08.01.19
	CO1 Bid Items

	15. F. 7681026 Pay App #4 Haas signed
	15. G. Municipal Disaster Declaration July 19 and 20 storms
	15. H. Naming of the new subdivision
	16. GP-WaterTreatment_perm
	16. Public Notice Reminder Letter_WaterTreatmentandConditioning
	17. Water Quotes
	18. . WRWA Alert to Members
	18. A. Wisconsin DNR asks sewage treatment plants to test for PFAS _ Local News _ madison.com
	18. MunicipalPFASLetter20190722
	19. June 2019 Financials
	21. Civics Kick-off Agenda - Abbotsford
	22. City of Abbotsford PO Bonds July 2019
	23. 2019-5 Two Signatures for Chekcks
	24. 2019- 6 Creation of Savings Account for Perpetual Care Fund
	25. operator license
	26. HOLIDAY LICENSE



